
 
REGULAR MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  

PUBLIC NOTICE OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING  

WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 26, 2022 

12:00 P.M.  

228 TEXAS AVENUE, SUITE A, NEW BOSTON,  TX 75570 
 

Notice is hereby given pursuant to V.T.C.A., Government Code, Chapter 551, that the Board of 

Directors of the Riverbend Water Resources District will conduct a meeting; open to the public, 

on WEDNESDAY, January 26, 2022, at 12:00 p.m., at the Riverbend Water Resources District 

(“Riverbend”) office, in the Conference Room located at 228 Texas Avenue, Suite A, New 

Boston, TX 75570. 

The Board of Directors is authorized by the Texas Open Meetings Act to convene in closed or 

executive session for certain purposes. These purposes include receiving legal advice from its 

attorney (Section 551.071); discussing real property matters (Section 551.072); discussing gifts 

and donations (Section 551.073); discussing personnel matters (Section 551.074); discussing 

security personnel or devices (Section 551.076); or discussing economic development matters 

(Section 551.087). If the Board of Directors makes a determination to go into executive session 

on any item on this agenda, the Presiding Officer will announce that an executive session will be 

held and will identify the item to be discussed and provision of the Open Meetings Act that 

authorizes the closed or executive session. 

 

A G E N D A 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL 

 

II. INVOCATION & PLEDGE 

 

III. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 

The Board of Directors allows individuals to speak to the Board. Prior to the meeting, 

speakers must sign in on the public comment sheet. The time limit is five (5) minutes 

per speaker. Subject to the provisions set forth under Section 551.007 of the 

Government Code. 

 

IV. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 

 

A. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of the November 18, 2021 

Regular Meeting Minutes and the December 8, 2021 Special Called Meeting 

minutes. 

 

1



 

 

 

V. REGIONAL ENTITY REPORTS 

 

A. Discussion and possible action regarding activities with Sulphur River Basin 

Authority. 

 

B. Discussion and possible action regarding activities with TexAmericas Center. 

 

C. Discussion and possible action regarding activities with REDI. 

 

VI. AGENDA ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION 

 

The Board of Directors will consider, discuss, and if appropriate, take action on the 

following item(s): 

 

A. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution adopting the 

2021 Member Entities True-Up for use in FY 2022. 

 

B. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution approving the 

fourth quarter financials of FY 2021. 

 

C. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution approving the 

fourth quarter investment report for FY 2021. 

 

D. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution approving the 

FY 2021 Annual Audit performed by Wilf and Henderson, P.C. 

 

E. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution approving the 

first quarter financials of FY 2022. 

 

F. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution approving the 

first quarter investment report for FY 2022. 

 

G. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution authorizing the 

issuance, sale, and delivery of  Riverbend Water Resources District contract 

revenue bonds (Regional Water System Project), Taxable Series 2022A, and 

approving and authorizing instruments and procedures relating thereto.  

 

H. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution authorizing the 

issuance, sale, and delivery of  Riverbend Water Resources District contract 

revenue bonds (Regional Water System Project), Tax-Exempt Series 2022B, and 

approving and authorizing instruments and procedures relating thereto. 

 

 

2



 

 

 

I. Discussion and possible action regarding the Lone Star and Red River Army 

Depot Community Support Committee (Military Affairs). 

 

J. Discussion regarding Riverbend Water Resources District’s future growth plan. 

 

VII. REPORTS 

 

A. Board Members 

 

B. Executive Director/CEO 

 

VIII. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

The Board of Directors is authorized by the Texas Open Meetings Act to convene in 

closed or executive session for certain purposes. These purposes include receiving 

legal advice from its attorney (Section 551.071); discussing real property matters 

(Section 551.072); discussing gifts and donations (Section 551.073); discussing 

personnel matters (Section 551.074); discussing security personnel or devices (Section 

551.076); or discussing economic development matters (Section 551.087). If the Board 

of Directors makes a determination to go into executive session on any item on this 

agenda, the Presiding Officer will announce that an executive session will be held and 

will identify the item to be discussed and provision of the Open Meetings Act that 

authorizes the closed or executive session. 

 

IX. NEXT REGULAR MEETING 

 

Riverbend Regular Meeting, February 23, 2022 at 12:00 p.m. at Riverbend Offices, 

228 A Texas Avenue, New Boston, Texas 75570. 

 

X. ADJOURNMENT 

 

Kyle Dooley 

Kyle Dooley, Executive Director/CEO 

Riverbend Water Resources District 

 
*Persons with disabilities who plan to attend the RWRD Board of Directors’ meeting and who may need 

auxiliary aids or services are requested to contact the RWRD Administrative Offices at (903) 831-0091, as soon 

as possible. All reasonable efforts will be taken to make the appropriate arrangements. 

3



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  
WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 26, 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CONSENT AGENDA ITEM IV. A. 

November 18, 2021  

Regular Meeting Minutes 

December 8, 2021  

Special Called Meeting Minutes 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4



 

  

Regular Called Meeting 

Riverbend Water Resources District    

Board Meeting Minutes  

November 18, 2021 

228 Texas Avenue, Suite A, New Boston, Texas 75570   

 
M I N U T E S 

 

I. Call to Order, Roll Call, and Establishment of Quorum and Certification of   

 Notice 
 

Pursuant to a notice posted on the District website, the Chair, Tina Veal Gooch, President of the 

Board, called the meeting to order at 12:04 p.m.     

  

Directors Present: 

Tina Veal-Gooch, President  

Fred Milton, Secretary  

Marshall Wood, Treasurer 

Van Alexander, Vice President  

Sonja Hubbard, Past President 

 

Directors Absent:  

 None 

 

Administration Present: 

Kyle Dooley, Executive Director/CEO 

Eli Hunt, Operations Manager 

Tara Houck, CFO 

Becky Melton, HR Manager/Executive Assistant 

          

Public Present: 

 

Please see the attached list for additional guests.  

 

II. Invocation & Pledge 

 

 Marshall Wood led the invocation. 

 

Tina Veal Gooch led the pledge of allegiance. 

 

III. Public Comments 

  

 None. 

 

IV. Consent Agenda Items 

 

Item IV. A. was considered under a Consent Agenda for one single motion of approval. 

5



 

  

A. Discussion and possible action regarding October 27, 2021 Regular Called Meeting 

Minutes. 

 

A single motion was made by Van Alexander and seconded by Sonja Hubbard to approve 

the Consent Agenda Item as listed above. The motion passed unanimously. 

V. Regional Entity Reports 

 

A. Discussion and possible action regarding activities with Sulphur River Basin Authority 

(SRBA). 

 

No report.  No action taken. 

 

B. Discussion and possible action regarding activities with TexAmericas Center (TAC). 

 

No report. No action taken.  

 

C. Discussion and possible action regarding activities with Ar-Tex REDI. 

 

Rob Sitterly, Executive Director of Ar-Tex REDI, provided an update on the certified 

industrial sites on both sides of the state line. The 1,350 acre site on the Arkansas side of 

Texarkana is called the Arkansas Manufacturing Center. The 850 acre East Texas Logistics 

Center is located just across the highway from TAC. These two sites are geared to compliment 

the efforts of TexAmericas Center. In addition to the assets of these certified sites, the regional 

school systems are also a positive selling point to entice businesses to expand to our area.  

 

Sonja Hubbard reiterated how important it is for ArTex-REDI and Riverbend to continue to 

collaborate when planning for bringing manufacturers to the area.  

 

VI. Agenda Items for Individual Consideration 

 

A. Discussion regarding draft fourth quarter financials for FY 2021 and any applicable 

quarterly investment reports. 

 

Tara Houck, Chief Executive Officer, provided an overview of the draft financials for the 

fourth quarter of FY 2021.  

 

No action was taken. 

 

B. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution authorizing the 

Executive Director/CEO to accept and award bids for financial software. 

 

Kyle Dooley provided information on the need to upgrade the District’s financial software. 

We reached out to and researched three software companies that provide the services we will 

need. Incode, STW by OpenGov, and Casselle all provide different types of the needed system 

and services. Incode met the needs of the District with room for growth. There are several local 

municipalities that use this software and they are very happy with it. The funds have been set 

6



 

  

aside in the budget for implementation during this fiscal year. The annual cost will be available 

in the budget going forward. Mr. Dooley also stated that the representatives from Incode are 

familiar with the conversion from Quickbooks to Incode. Van Alexander appreciates that Kyle 

and staff are looking ahead at the District’s needs.  

  

A motion was made by Marshall Wood and seconded by Fred Milton to approve RESO 

20211118-01 authorizing the Executive Director/CEO to accept and award a bid for financial 

software. The motion passed unanimously. 

 

VII.   Riverbend Reports 

 

A. Board Members 

 

Fred Milton provided an update on the recent Region D meeting.  He provided that he is the 

alternate for Jim Thompson, Board Chairman, on the Interregional Planning Committee.  

 

B. Executive Director/CEO 

 

Kyle Dooley provided the following updates: 

 

Regional Water System Project: VT Madhavan with Pape-Dawson provided the following 

updates.  

• Continuing the efforts on 30% preliminary design documents 

• Work continues on multiple technical memos - intake structure, intake pipe design, 

pumps, electrical power assessment, zebra mussel control/fish entrapment, intake 

screens/backwash system, hydraulic evaluation, raw water main pipeline, water treatment 

process development, residuals evaluation and chlorine and ammonia assessment 

• Continue to take monthly and quarterly water samples from the lake to test for quality. 

No big surprises were found. 

• We are commencing with the initial preparations for selection of the design consultants 

for the next phase of work. This includes preparing a TWDB-appropriate advertisement 

and contract documents. This is on track for first quarter 2022. 

• Nov 2 – Advisory committee meeting went well and was well attended; Citizen portal 

demo was informative and helpful. These meetings will be held quarterly unless an 

earlier update is necessary. 

• Nov 2, 3, 4 – Met with contractors to get input on project risk, CMAR delivery. Program 

manager’s recommendation will be submitted to RWRD soon. 

• ROE obtained from TAC, USACE – approx. 70% of ROE has been obtained. 

• Preliminary geotechnical and environmental work has started in areas where we have 

ROE. 

• Work continues on coordination with the Army Corps of Engineers.  

• The next round of bonds will likley be brought to the Board in January. 

 

TCEQ & Water Rights Application: Lines of communication are still open between the District 

and those requesting a contested case hearing. Other than that, no new update.   

 

7



 

  

Ulitmate Rule Curve and Environmental & Cultural Resources Study: Still working with the 

USACE. Do not have an update on the new cost estimate for the Cultural Resources Study. 

Industrial Waste Water Plant: We are still working with RRAD to change the existing language 

in the contract that will cover the payback for the bond to fund the new plant.  In addition, the 

deadline for the DAAG Grant was November 10. The decision was not to submit and 

application this round due to the 2-year window to spend those funds if they are awarded. We 

are not far enough into contract negotiations, planning and design to commit to that tight of a 

window at this time.  The next application window is the summer of 2022 and an application 

will for funding will likely be submitted at that time.  

 

Region D: All contracts and technical consultants are now in place. The next meeting 

tentatively scheduled for January 2022 will be to beging the planning process.  We are waiting 

on some preliminary data from TWDB to let Carollo Engineers can begin work. Fred Milton 

commended Kyle and the staff for their hard work in putting the Region D meetings together. 

 

Member Entity True-Up Meeting: Texarkana Water Utilities is finalizing the True-Up 

document. They are preparing to present the document for discussion on December 8th or 

December 15th.  The final date will be set once we get access to the final document.  

 

No action taken.  

 

VIII.  Executive Session 

The board stood at ease at 12:41 p.m. 

 

The board reconvened in Executive Session at 12:45 p.m with quorum pursuant to section 

551.071 of the Texas Open Meetings Act. 

 

The board came out of Executive Session at 1:51 p.m.  

 

The board reconvened with quorum at 1:52 p.m.  

 

IX. Next Riverbend Meetings 

Riverbend Regular Meeting, Wednesday, January 26, 2022 at 12:00 p.m. at Riverbend Offices, 

228 A Texas Avenue, New Boston, Texas 75570. 

X.  Adjournment 

 

With no additional business to be discussed, a motion was made by Fred Milton and seconded 

by Marshall Wood to adjourn the meeting at 1:55 p.m. The motion passed unanimously. 

 

The minutes of the Riverbend Water Resources District Board of Directors meeting, held on 

November 18, 2021, were read and approved on the _____ day of ________________, 2022. 

 

 

 

 

 

8



 

  

_______________________________________   

Tina Veal Gooch, President 

 

Attest:  

 

 

________________________________________  

Kyle Dooley, Executive Director/ CEO 

9



 

 

  

Special Called Meeting 

Riverbend Water Resources District    

Work Session Minutes  

December 8, 2021 

228 Texas Avenue, Suite A, New Boston, Texas 75570   

 
M I N U T E S 

 

I. Call to Order, Roll Call, and Establishment of Quorum and Certification of   

 Notice 
 

Pursuant to a notice posted on the District website on December 8, 2021, the Chair, Tina 

Veal Gooch, President of the Board, called the meeting to order at 10:07 a.m.     

  

Directors Present: 

Tina Veal-Gooch, President 

Van Alexander, Vice President  

Fred Milton, Secretary 

Sonja Hubbard, Past President 

 

Directors Absent: 

Marshall Wood, Treasurer 
 

 Administration Present: 

Kyle Dooley, Executive Director/CEO 

Tara Houck, Chief Financial Officer 

Eli Hunt, Operations Manager 

        Becky Melton, Executive Assistant/HR Manager 

 

Public Present: 

 

See attached list. 

 

II. Invocation & Pledge 

 

 Van Alexander led the invocation and the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 

III.  Agenda Items for Individual Consideration 

 

A. Presentation and discussion of Member Cities’ True-Up for use in FY 2021-2022. 

 

Kyle Dooley reminded the Board that the discussion today will center around a review of 

the True-Up document as prepared by the City of Texarkana, TX and Texarkana Water 

Utilities(TWU). Mr. Dooley then introduced Gary Smith, Interim Executive Director and 

Tricia Briggs, CFO for TWU and David Orr, City Manager for the City of Texarkana, TX.  

 

10



 

 

  

Mr. Smith and Ms. Briggs with TWU presented the 2020 Member Cities’ True-up and 

provided information specific to completed, ongoing, and future projects for TWU as well 

as reasons for increasing costs associated with the operation of the New Boston Road Water 

Treatment Plant.   

 

No action taken. 

 

IV.   Riverbend Reports 

 

A. Board Members 

 

No reports. 

 

B. Executive Director/CEO 

 

Kyle Dooley provided that typically, the Board considers this True-Up document and 

approve the new rate at the next board meeting scheduled for January 26, 2022. This 

rate would be effective for the February billing period. Next year, the plan is to have 

the True-Up meeting earlier in the fiscal year, likely in July 2022. 

 

V. Next Riverbend Meetings & Activities:  

 

Riverbend Regular Meeting, Wednesday, January 26, 2022 at 12:00 p.m. at Riverbend 

Offices. 

 

VI. Adjournment 

 

With no additional business to be discussed, a motion was made by Van Alexander and 

seconded by Sonja Hubbard to adjourn the meeting at 10:34 a.m.  

 

The minutes of Riverbend Water Resources District Board of Directors meeting, December 

8, 2021 were read and approved on the _____ day of ________________, 2022. 

 

 

_______________________________________   

Tina Veal Gooch, President 

 

Attest:  

 

 

________________________________________  

Kyle Dooley, Executive Director/ CEO 

11



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  
WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 26, 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM VI. A. 

RWRD RESO 20220126-01 

Member Entities True-Up 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

12



   
RIVERBEND RESOLUTION NO. 20220126-01 

 

ADOPTING THE FY 2021 MEMBER ENTITIES’ TRUE-UP  

AND WHOLESALE WATER RATES AND FEES OF THE 

TEXARKANA WATER UTILITIES 

 

 WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District is a conservation and reclamation district 

created under and essential to accomplish the purposes of Section 59 Article XVI, Texas 

Constitution, existing pursuant to and having the powers set forth in Chapter 9601 of the Special 

District Local Laws Code of the State of Texas; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District is charged with oversight of the annual 

True-Up conducted amongst and between the City of Texarkana, Texas and all Member Entities; 

and 

 

 WHEREAS, due to unforeseen circumstances related to the cyberattack on Texarkana 

Water Utilities (TWU), the True-Up process could not be finalized until the annual audit for TWU 

was complete; and 

 

 WHEREAS, On September 22, 2021, the Riverbend Board approved Resolution 

20210922-01 approving a $0.03 increase in the current water production rate of $0.9302 for an 

interim rate of $0.9602 for use in fiscal year 2022 until the final calculations were completed and 

reviewed; and 

 

WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District held an annual True-Up meeting on 

December 8, 2021 at the Riverbend offices to discuss the True-Up Process and information 

provided by the City of Texarkana, Texas and its water department through Texarkana Water 

Utilities. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Riverbend 

Water Resources District hereby adopts the FY 2021 Member Entities’ True-Up and wholesale 

water rates and fees of the Texarkana Water Utilities. 

 

 PASSED and APPROVED this 26th day of January 2022 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Tina Veal Gooch, President 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

Fred Milton, Secretary 

 

Attached: 2021 Member City Rate Calculation Packet provided by Texarkana Water Utilities 

13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  
WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 26, 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM VI. B. 

RWRD RESO 20220126-02 

FY 2021 Fourth Quarter Financials 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

46



 
 

RIVERBEND RESOLUTION NO. 20220126-02 

 

APPROVING THE FOURTH QUARTER FY 2021 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS   

 

 

 WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District is a conservation and reclamation 

district created under and essential to accomplish the purposes of Section 59 Article XVI, Texas 

Constitution, existing pursuant to and having the powers set forth in Chapter 9601 of the Special 

District Local Laws Code of the State of Texas; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District staff prepares and presents quarterly 

financial statements, which provide for the fiduciary guidance of Riverbend Water Resources 

funds. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Riverbend Water Resources District 

Board of Directors accepts and approves the Fourth Quarter FY 2021 financials. 

 

 PASSED and APPROVED this 26th day of January 2022 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Tina Veal Gooch, President 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

Fred Milton, Secretary 

 

 

 

 

Attached: Fourth Quarter FY 2021 Financials 

47



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

September 30, 2021

Regional Water System Regional Water System Wet Utilities

Administration Fund Facilities Fund Fund Total

ASSETS

Current assets: 

     Cash 223,165$               -$                           1,289,074$         1,512,239$        

     Accounts receivable 17,688 274,372 839,752 1,131,812

     Due from other fund 3,009 - 352 3,361

     Restricted assets:

          Cash restricted for bond debt reserves - 246,611 1,121,686 1,368,297

          Cash restricted for construction - bond proceeds - 13,004,490 312,423 13,316,913

          Cash restricted for operations - - 900,745 900,745

Prepaid expenses - - 99,130 99,130

Inventory - - 78,716 78,716

          Total current assets 243,862 13,525,473 4,641,878 18,411,213

Noncurrent assets:

     Cash and cash equivalents - restricted bor bond debt reserves - 4,444,321 1,446,608 5,890,929

Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation):

     Equipment - - 415,929 415,929

     Utility system - - 16,012,858 16,012,858

     Intangible assets - - 265,536 265,536

     Construction in progress - 6,670,259 883,514 7,553,773

     Total capital assets - 11,114,580 19,024,445 30,139,025

          Total noncurrent assets - 11,114,580 19,024,445 30,139,025

TOTAL ASSETS 243,862 24,640,053 23,666,323 48,550,238

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:

     Accounts payable 3,064 2,302,720 78,767 2,384,551

     Payroll liabilities - - 44,226 44,226

     Due to other fund 352 3,009 - 3,361

     Due to Region D Planning 41,138 - - 41,138

     Accrued interest payable - 113,030 166,029 279,059

     Accrued compensated absences - current - - 19,186 19,186

     Revenue bonds payable - current - - 775,000 775,000

          Total current liabilities 44,554 2,418,759 1,083,208 3,546,521

Noncurrent liabilities:

     Accrued compensated absences - long term - - 55,209 55,209

     Revenue bonds payable - long term - 18,000,000 7,820,000 25,820,000

          Total noncurrent liabilities - 18,000,000 7,875,209 25,875,209

TOTAL LIABILITES 44,554 20,418,759 8,958,417 29,421,730

NET POSITION

     Net investment in capital assets - (634,606) 9,978,495 9,343,889

     Restricted for bond reserves - 4,852,274 2,569,053 7,421,327

     Restricted for construction - 3,626 312,423 316,049

     Unrestricted 199,306 - 1,847,934 2,047,240

TOTAL NET POSITION 199,306$               4,221,294$            14,707,905$       19,128,505$      

48



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021
Regional Water System Regional Water System Wet Utilities

Administration Fund Facilities Fund Fund Total

OPERATING REVENUES
     Charges for services:

          Member fees 204,635$               -$                          -$                 204,635$      

          Army volumetric charge - 3,141,686 3,141,686

          Army water supply charge - 249,672 249,672

          Commercial & residential charge - 232,713 232,713

          Total operating revenues 204,635 -$                          3,624,071 3,828,706

OPERATING EXPENSES

     Accounting & audit 4,500 - - 4,500

     Analyticals - - 101,755 101,755

     Community relations 5,003 - - 5,003

     Conferences & seminars 2,840 - - 2,840

     Consulting 180,596 - 23,941 204,537

     Dues & memberships 8,357 - - 8,357

     Engineering services 20,697 - - 20,697

     Equipment maintenance, repair & fuel - - 27,889 27,889

     Insurance - - 46,891 46,891

     Legal & professional fees 12,665 - - 12,665

     Materials - - 185,047 185,047

     Meetings expense 4,279 - - 4,279

     Military affairs 11,000 - - 11,000

     Miscellaneous 309 - - 309

     Office supplies and expense 1,136 - - 1,136

     Permits - - 34,279 34,279

     Repairs - - 177,927 177,927

     Salaries, wages, payroll taxes & benefits 154,662 - 890,213 1,044,875

     Supplies & materials - - 25,365 25,365

     Travel & training 5,001 - - 5,001

     Utilities - - 145,291 145,291

     Waste disposal - - 37,158 37,158

     Water purchase cost - - 180,852 180,852

     Web design & maintenance 2,667 - - 2,667

     Overhead allocation - water - - 164,434 164,434

     Overhead allocation - wastewater - - 178,613 178,613

     Overhead allocation - industrial wastewater - - 180,129 180,129

          Total operating expenses 413,712 - 2,399,784 2,813,496

Operating income (loss) before depreciation (209,077) - 1,224,287 1,015,210

     Depreciation - - 805,179 805,179

Operating income (loss) (209,077) - 419,108 210,031

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

     Facility charges revenue - - 1,502,606 1,502,606

     Minimum monthly payments - 4,570,950 - 4,570,950

     Interest revenue 2 23,851 12,650 36,503

     Project admin fees - - 17,147 17,147

     Gain (loss) on disposal of asset - - (62,676) (62,676)

     Interest expense - (210,304) (362,717) (573,021)

     Bond issuance costs - (628,526) - (628,526)

     Franchise fees expense - - (108,710) (108,710)

     Special projects expense (6,858) - - (6,858)

          Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (6,856) 3,755,971 998,300 4,747,415

Income (loss) before capital contributions and transfers (215,933) 3,755,971 1,417,408 4,957,446

Transfers in (out) 230,000 - (230,000) -

Changes in net position 14,067 3,755,971 1,187,408 4,957,446

Net position, beginning of year 185,239 465,323 13,520,497 14,171,059

Net position, end of year 199,306$               4,221,294$            14,707,905$ 19,128,505$ 

49



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

REGIONAL WATER SYSTEM ADMINISTRATION

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Variance with % of

Budget Actual Budget Budget

OPERATING REVENUES

     Charges for services 203,928$       204,635$       707$              100.35%

     Total operating revenues 203,928 204,635 707 100.35%

OPERATING EXPENSES

     Accounting & audit 4,500 4,500 - 100.00%

     Community relations 8,000 5,003 2,997 62.54%

     Conferences & seminars 4,700 2,840 1,860 60.43%

     Consulting 200,000 180,596 19,404 90.30%

     Dues & memberships 8,735 8,357 378 95.67%

     Engineering services 130,000 20,697 109,303 15.92%

     Legal & professional fees 27,500 12,665 14,835 46.05%

     Meetings expense 6,000 4,279 1,721 71.32%

     Military affairs 11,000 11,000 - 100.00%

     Miscellaneous 1,400 - 1,400 0.00%

     Office supplies & expense 2,300 1,136 1,164 49.39%

     Salaries, wages & benefits 157,922 154,662 3,260 97.94%

     Subscriptions 400 309 91 77.25%

     Travel & training 18,000 5,001 12,999 27.78%

     Web design & maintenance 4,000 2,667 1,333 66.68%

          Total operating expenses 584,457 413,712 170,745 70.79%

Operating income (loss) (380,529) (209,077) (171,452) 54.94%

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

     Interest Revenue - 2 2

     Special projects expense (50,000) (6,858) 43,142 13.72%

     Use of prior year equity 200,529 - (200,529) 0.00%

          Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 150,529 (6,856) (157,385) 4.55%

Income (loss) before transfers (230,000) (215,933) 14,067 93.88%

Transfer in 230,000 230,000 - 100.00%

Change in net position - 14,067 14,067

Net position, beginning of year 185,239 185,239 - 100.00%

Net position, end of year 185,239$       199,306$       14,067 107.59%

50



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

REGIONAL WATER SYSTEM FACILITIES FUND

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Variance with % of

Budget Actual Budget Budget

OPERATING REVENUES

     Charges for services -$              -$              -$              

     Total operating revenues - - -

OPERATING EXPENSES

      Expenses - - -

          Total operating expenses - - -

Operating income (loss) - - -

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

     Minimum monthly payments 4,389,715 4,570,950 181,235 104.13%

     Interest Revenue 21,000 23,851 2,851 113.58%

     Interest Expense (210,304) (210,304) - 100.00%

     Bond Issuance Costs (634,884) (628,526) 6,358 99.00%

         Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 3,565,527 3,755,971 190,444 105.34%

Change in net position 3,565,527 3,755,971 190,444 105.34%

Net position, beginning of year 465,323$       465,323 - 100.00%

Net position, end of year 4,030,850$    4,221,294$    190,444$       104.72%

51



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

WET UTILITIES FUND

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Variance with % of

Budget Actual Budget Budget

OPERATING REVENUES

     Charges for services 3,673,640$            3,624,071$       (49,569)$       98.65%

     Total operating revenues 3,673,640 3,624,071 (49,569) 98.65%

OPERATING EXPENSES

     Analytical 150,000 101,755 48,245 67.84%

     Consulting 60,000 23,941 36,059 39.90%

     Equipment maintenance, repair & fuel 47,756 27,889 19,867 58.40%

     Insurance 46,891 46,891 - 100.00%

     Materials 233,000 185,047 47,953 79.42%

     Permits 55,000 34,279 20,721 62.33%

     Repairs 206,000 177,927 28,073 86.37%

     Salaries, wages, payroll taxes & benefits 1,015,082 890,213 124,869 87.70%

     Supplies & materials 52,150 25,365 26,785 48.64%

     Utilities 188,000 145,291 42,709 77.28%

     Waste disposal 70,000 37,158 32,842 53.08%

     Water purchase cost 307,663 180,852 126,811 58.78%

     Overhead allocation - water 199,955 164,434 35,521 82.24%

     Overhead allocation - wastewater 217,196 178,613 38,583 82.24%

     Overhead allocation - industrial wastewater 219,041 180,129 38,912 82.24%

          Total operating expenses 3,067,735 2,399,784 667,951 78.23%

Operating income (loss) before depreciation 605,905 1,224,287 618,382 202.06%

Depreciation 799,500 805,179 (5,679) 100.71%

Operating income (loss) (193,595) 419,108 612,703 216.49%

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

     Facility charges revenues 1,513,088 1,502,606 (10,482) 99.31%

     Interest revenue 14,000 12,650 (1,350) 90.36%

     Project Admin Fees 46,229 17,147 (29,082) 37.09%

     Gain (loss) on disposal of asset (71,000) (62,676) 8,324 88.28%

     Interest expense (405,449) (362,717) 42,732 89.46%

     Franchise fees expense (108,504) (108,710) (206) 100.19%

         Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 988,364 998,300 9,936 101.01%

Income (loss) before capital contributions and transfers 794,769 1,417,408 622,639 178.34%

Transfers in (out) (230,000) (230,000) - 100.00%

Change in net position 564,769 1,187,408 622,639 210.25%

Net position, beginning of year 13,520,497 13,520,497 - 100.00%

Net position, end of year 14,085,266$          14,707,905$     622,639$      104.42%

52



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

REGIONAL WATER SYSTEM ADMINISTRATION

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

September 30, 2021 September 30, 2020 $ Change % Change

OPERATING REVENUES
     Charges for services:

          Member fees 204,635$                     180,842$                      23,793$                 13.16%

          Total operating revenues 204,635 180,842 23,793 13.16%

OPERATING EXPENSES

     Accounting & audit 4,500 4,500 - 0.00%

     Community relations 5,003 2,285 2,718 118.95%

     Conferences & seminars 2,840 2,783 57 2.05%

     Consulting 180,596 181,617 (1,021) -0.56%

     Dues & memberships 8,357 7,615 742 9.74%

     Engineering services 20,697 55,977 (35,280) -63.03%

     Legal & professional fees 12,665 51,200 (38,535) -75.26%

     Meetings expense 4,279 2,063 2,216 107.42%

     Military affairs 11,000 16,500 (5,500) -33.33%

     Office supplies and expense 1,136 330 806 244.24%

     Salaries, wages, payroll taxes & benefits 154,662 157,727 (3,065) -1.94%

     Travel & training 5,001 5,492 (491) -8.94%

     Web design & maintenance 2,667 2,258 409 18.11%

     Miscellaneous 309 499 (190) -38.08%

          Total operating expenses 413,712 490,846 (77,134) -15.71%

Operating income (loss) before depreciation (209,077) (310,004) 100,927 32.56%

     Depreciation - 205 (205) -100.00%

Operating income (loss) (209,077) (310,209) 101,132 -32.60%

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
     Interest Revenue 2 0 2

     Special projects expense (6,858) (42,960) 36,102 84.04%

          Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (6,856) (42,960) 36,104 84.04%

Income (loss) before transfers (215,933) (353,169) 137,236 38.86%

Transfers in (out) 230,000 200,000 30,000 15.00%

Change in net position 14,067 (153,169) 167,236 109.18%

Net position, beginning of year 185,239 338,408 (153,169) -45.26%

Net position, end of year 199,306$                     185,239$                      14,067$                 7.59%

53



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

REGIONAL WATER SYSTEM FACILITIES FUND

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

September 30, 2021 September 30, 2020 $ Change % Change

OPERATING REVENUES
     Charges for services: - - -

          Total operating revenues - - -
-

OPERATING EXPENSES

     Expenses - - -

          Total operating expenses - - --

Operating income (loss) - - --
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) -

     Minimum monthly payments 4,570,950 465,323 4,105,627 882.32%

     Interest Revenue 23,851 - 23,851

     Interest Expense (210,304) - (210,304)

     Bond Issuance Costs (628,526) - (628,526)

          Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 3,755,971 465,323 3,290,648 707.18%

Change in net position 3,755,971 465,323 3,290,648 707.18%

Net position, beginning of year 465,323 - 465,323

Net position, end of year 4,221,294$                  465,323$                     3,755,971$            807.18%

54



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

WET UTILITIES FUND

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

September 30, 2021 September 30, 2020 $ Change % Change

OPERATING REVENUES
     Charges for services:

          Army volumetric charge 3,141,686$                 2,890,837$                   250,849$               8.68%

          Army water supply charge 249,672 241,890 7,782 3.22%

          Commercial & residential charge 232,713 245,850 (13,137) -5.34%

          Total operating revenues 3,624,071 3,378,577 245,494 7.27%
-

OPERATING EXPENSES -

     Analyticals 101,755 109,811 (8,056) -7.34%

     Consulting 23,941 66,809 (42,868) -64.17%

     Equipment maintenance, repair & fuel 27,889 51,442 (23,553) -45.79%

     Insurance 46,891 29,443 17,448 59.26%

     Materials 185,047 221,802 (36,755) -16.57%

     Permits 34,279 33,335 944 2.83%

     Repairs 177,927 201,985 (24,058) -11.91%

     Salaries, wages, payroll taxes & benefits 890,213 896,999 (6,786) -0.76%

     Supplies & materials 25,365 25,526 (161) -0.63%

     Utilities 145,291 152,289 (6,998) -4.60%

     Waste disposal 37,158 50,363 (13,205) -26.22%

     Water purchase cost 180,852 241,757 (60,905) -25.19%

     Overhead allocation - water 164,434 194,930 (30,496) -15.64%

     Overhead allocation - wastewater 178,613 211,738 (33,125) -15.64%

     Overhead allocation - industrial wastewater 180,129 213,536 (33,407) -15.64%

          Total operating expenses 2,399,784 2,701,765 (301,981) -11.18%-

Operating income (loss) before depreciation 1,224,287 676,812 547,475 80.89%

     Depreciation 805,179 762,867 42,312 5.55%

Operating income (loss) 419,108 (86,055) 505,163 -587.02%-
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) -

     Facility charges revenue 1,502,606 1,192,433 310,173 26.01%

     Interest revenue 12,650 31,413 (18,763) -59.73%

     Administrative fund salary revenue - 157,761 (157,761) -100.00%

     Project admin fees 17,147 (889) 18,036 2028.80%

     Gain (loss) on disposal of asset (62,676) 4,660 (67,336) -1444.98%

     Interest expense (362,717) (392,130) 29,413 7.50%

     Franchise fees expense (108,710) (101,350) (7,360) -7.26%

          Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 998,300 891,898 106,402 11.93%

Income (loss) before capital contributions and transfers 1,417,408 805,843 611,565 75.89%

Capital contributions - 983,153 (983,153) -100.00%

-
Transfers in (out) (230,000) (200,000) (30,000) -15.00%

Change in net position 1,187,408 1,588,996 581,565 36.60%

Net position, beginning of year 13,520,497 11,925,953 1,594,544 13.37%

Net position, end of year 14,707,905$               13,514,949$                 2,176,109$            16.10%

55



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  
WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 26, 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM VI. C. 

RWRD RESO 20220126-03 

FY 2021 Fourth Quarter  

Investment Report 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

56



 
 

RIVERBEND RESOLUTION NO. 20220126-03 

 

APPROVING THE FOURTH QUARTER FY 2021 INVESTMENT REPORT   

 

 

 WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District is a conservation and reclamation 

district created under and essential to accomplish the purposes of Section 59 Article XVI, Texas 

Constitution, existing pursuant to and having the powers set forth in Chapter 9601 of the Special 

District Local Laws Code of the State of Texas; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District has adopted an Investment Policy as 

required by law to manage the funds of Riverbend Water Resources District; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Investment Policy Reporting Section XIII requires that the Investment 

Officer prepare and sign a quarterly investment report that includes activity on all interest-bearing 

accounts held by Riverbend Water Resources District. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Riverbend Water Resources District 

accepts and approves the Fourth Quarter FY 2021 Investment Report. 

 

 PASSED and APPROVED this 26th day of January 2022 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Tina Veal Gooch, President 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

Fred Milton, Secretary 

 

 

 

 

Attached: Fourth Quarter FY 2021 Investment Report 

57



58



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  
WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 26, 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM VI. D. 

RWRD RESO 20220126-04 

FY 2021 Annual Audit 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

59



 
RIVERBEND RESOLUTION NO. 20220126-04 

 

APPROVING THE FY 2021 ANNUAL AUDIT  

PERFORMED BY WILF & HENDERSON, P.C. 

 

WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District is a conservation and reclamation district 

created under and essential to accomplish the purposes of Section 59 Article XVI, Texas 

Constitution, existing pursuant to and having the powers set forth in Chapter 9601 of the Special 

District Local Laws Code of the State of Texas; and 

 

WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District Board of Directors deems it necessary to 

engage a qualified Certified Public Accounting firm to conduct an annual audit, wich provides for 

increased fiduciary responsibility of Riverbend Water Resources District funds; and 

 

WHEREAS, Wilf & Henderson, P.C. provides the necessary accounting and financial 

services to fully perform an annual audit; and 

 

WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District staff and Wilf & Henderson, P.C. staff 

collaborated to conduct the audit and represent the financial statements, management discussion 

and analysis, and management representations in accordance with applicable laws and regulations.   

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Riverbend Water Resources District 

approves the FY 2021 Annual Audit performed by Wilf and Henderson, P.C. for distribution. 

 

PASSED and APPROVED this 26th day of January 2022 

 

 

     ___________________________________ 

     Tina Veal Gooch, President 

 

ATTEST:  
 

 

______________________________ 

Fred Milton, Secretary 

 

 

 

Attached: FY 2021 Annual Audit for Riverbend Water Resources District 

60



 
 
 

 
RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT 

NEW BOSTON, TEXAS 

ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL REPORT  

For the Fiscal Year Ended 

September 30, 2021 

Prepared by 

Tara Houck, CPA 

Chief Financial Officer 

228 Texas Avenue, Suite A 

New Boston, Texas 75570 



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Introductory Section

Letter to the Board of Directors i-iv

Principal Officials v

Organizational Chart vi

GFOA Certificate of Achievement vii

Annual Filing Affidavit viii

Financial Section

Independent Auditor's Report 1-3

Management's Discussion and Analysis 4-8

Basic Financial Statements

Statement of Net Position - Enterprise Fund 9

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position -

     Enterprise Fund 10

Statement of Cash Flows - Enterprise Fund 11

Notes to the Financial Statements 12-22

Supplementary Information - Budgetary Comparison Schedules

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Regional Water System Administration Fund 23

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Wet Utilities Fund 24

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Regional Water System Facilities Fund 25

Supplementary Information - Required by Texas Commission of Environmental Quality

Schedule of Services and Rates 26-28

Schedule of Enterprise Fund Expenses 29

Schedule of Temporary Investments 30

Schedule of Taxes Levied and Receivable Not applicable

Schedule of Long-Term Debt Service Requirements Series 2016A by Years 31

Schedule of Long-Term Debt Service Requirements Series 2016B by Years 32

Schedule of Long-Term Debt Service Requirements Series 2020A by Years 33

Schedule of Long-Term Debt Service Requirements Series 2020B by Years 34

Schedule of Long-Term Debt Services Requirements All Bonded Debt Series by Years 35

Schedule of Changes in Long-Term Bonded Debt 36

Comparative Schedule of Revenues and Expenses - Last Five Years 37-38

List of Board Members, Key Personnel and Consultants 39-40

Statistical Section

Statistical Section Narrative 41

Net Position - Accrual Basis of Accounting 42-43

Change in Net Position - Accrual Basis of Accounting 44-45

Operating Revenues by Source - Accrual Basis of Accounting 46-47



Operating Expenses - Accrual Basis of Accounting 48

Five Largest Customers 49-50

Ratio of Outstanding Debt by Type 51

Pledged Revenue Coverage 52-53

Demographic and Economic Statistics 54-60

Percentage of Member Counties in RWRD 61-62

Principal Employers 63

Operating Indicators by Function  64-65

Operating Indicators by Function - Full Time Employees 66

Capital Asset Statistics by Function 67-68

Single Audit Section

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other

     Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance

     with Government Auditing Standards  - Independent Auditor's Report 69-70

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and Report on Internal

     Control over Compliance - Independent Auditor's Report 71-72

Schedule of Expenditure of Federal Awards 73

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 74

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 75

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 76



Introductory Section



i 
 

 

 

January 26, 2022 

 

 

 

The Board of Directors, 

Members of Riverbend 

Water Resources District 

 

In accordance with state statutes, the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) of Riverbend Water 

Resources District for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2021 is hereby submitted.  Responsibility for both 

the accuracy of the data, and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests 

with management.  To the best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed data is accurate in all material 

respects and is reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position and results of operations 

of the enterprise funds of Riverbend.  All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain the maximum 

understanding of Riverbend’s financial activities have been included.  

 

PROFILE OF RIVERBEND 

 

Riverbend Water Resources District was created in 2009 by Senate Bill 1223 of the Texas Legislature.  It is a 

conservation and reclamation district with statutory powers including the authority to acquire any and all 

storage rights and storage capacity in a reservoir and to acquire the right to take water from that reservoir.  

The roots of Riverbend can be found in the area’s past regional water partnerships focused on utilizing Wright 

Patman Lake as their primary water supply source.  In 1953, and again in 1968, the City of Texarkana, Texas, in 

cooperation and with the support of its neighboring cities, executed agreements with the U.S. Army Corps of 

Engineers to use a portion of the flood control pool at Wright Patman to meet their long-term water supply 

needs.  Over time, Texarkana, Texas on behalf of itself and other area users, secured permits which allowed 

them to impound, divert, and appropriate water in Wright Patman lake for both municipal and industrial use.   

 

In 1966, the Lake Texarkana Water Supply Corporation (“LTWSC”) was created for the purpose of financing the 

acquisition, construction and maintenance of a new water treatment and distribution system to its members.  

In 1969 in order to support LTWSC’s debt issue and facilitate administration of the new water treatment and 

distribution system, the City of Texarkana, Texas signed water supply contracts with surrounding Texas-side 

communities, known as the original Member Cities (including Annona, Avery, DeKalb, Hooks, Maud, New 

Boston, Texarkana, Texas, and Wake Village), collectively known as “Member City Contracts.”  Today, 

Riverbend has now grown to include eighteen (18) members that include communities within Bowie, Cass and 

Red River Counties in northeast Texas.  Riverbend membership grew during 2011, after being reconstituted, 

and again in 2019, Texas Special District Local Law Code Section 9601.005(b) allowed water supply corporations 

to join Riverbend.  Current members include Annona, Atlanta, Avery, Central Bowie County WSC, DeKalb, 

Hooks, Leary, Maud, Nash, New Boston, Oak Grove Water Supply Corporation, Redwater, Texarkana, Wake 

Village, TexAmericas Center, as well as Bowie, Cass and Red River Counties.   



 

ii 
 

Riverbend provides water, wastewater, and industrial wastewater for Red River Army Depot and the 

tenants within the TexAmericas Center footprint for an estimated population of 6,000 people.  Riverbend 

represents, through Interlocal Agreements with our membership, the water supply interest for area 

communities.  Riverbend operates as a retail water supplier.  The treated water is purchased from the City 

of Texarkana, Texas and Texarkana Water Utilities and supplied to customers on our system.  Riverbend 

serves as the local representative for Wright Patman Lake on issues with the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, 

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ), the Texas Water Development Board (TWDB) as well 

as acting as representatives for our membership in the North East Texas Regional Water Planning Group 

(Region D), a state water planning area, and will be working on the initial statewide flood planning effort 

over the next few years.   

 

Riverbend is governed by a Board of five directors consisting of two directors appointed by the City of 

Texarkana; one director appointed by the City of New Boston; one director appointed by TexAmericas 

Center; and one director appointed by the remaining member entities.   

 

ECONOMIC INFORMATION/OUTLOOK 

 

The largest employer in Riverbend, Red River Army Depot (RRAD), is also the largest customer of 

Riverbend and represents the majority of the operating revenue for Riverbend.   The FY 2022 RRAD budget 

is approximately 10% higher than the current year and the remaining business, commercial and residential 

retail water customers located in TexAmericas Center, are expected to remain the same.   

 

MAJOR INITIATIVES/LONG TERM FINANCIAL PLANNING 

 

Riverbend has major on-going initiatives that staff will be focusing on for this fiscal year and into the 
future.  First, Riverbend has secured $200M of funding, through the Texas Water Development Board’s 
Drinking Water State Revolving Fund, for a new regional water treatment facility.  Riverbend executed 
water supply contracts with the participating member entities to support the debt payback along with the 
operations and maintenance on the project.  This project will utilize a multi-year bond issuance package, 
to be distributed as listed below. 

 
- FY 2020-2021            $18M bond issuance 
- FY 2021-2022            $93M bond issuance 
- FY 2022-2023            $14.4M bond issuance 
- FY 2023-2024            $74.6M bond issuance 

 
The first bond issuance in the amount of $18M was made in November, 2020.  In April, 2021 Riverbend 
entered into an agreement with Pape-Dawson Engineers to provide Professional and Project Management 
Services.  All aspects of the project are under way including planning, design, environmental, permitting, 
surveying, geotechnical and easement acquisition.  At fiscal year-end $7,298,785 has been spent on the 
project. 
 
Also, Riverbend and Texarkana, TX have submitted a water rights application to the Texas Commission on 
Environmental Quality (TCEQ).  This water right application has been submitted to hopefully secure 
enough water for the region for the next fifty years.  Currently, the application is both administratively 
and technically complete and a public notice of the request for water use permit has been posted.  TCEQ 
has received requests for a contested hearing from several entities.  We are currently working with those 
entities to resolve the issues in order for the permit to be issued. 
 
 



 

iii 
 

 
 
Riverbend is also working with RRAD to secure funding to complete the design and construction of a new 
industrial wastewater treatment facility.  The original 2018 $13.5M cost estimate for the project has been 
updated to $30,273,800 with 40% contingency.   
 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

 

Riverbend’s accounting system consists of three enterprise funds where all financial activities are 

recorded.  Management of Riverbend are responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control 

structure designed to ensure that the assets of Riverbend are protected.   Because the cost of a control 

should not exceed the benefits to be derived, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute 

assurance, that the financial statements are free from any material misstatements.  Within this 

framework, management believes that Riverbend’s transactions are properly recorded, and the financial 

report is complete and reliable in all material respects. 

 

Enterprise Operations.  Total revenues for all funds for the fiscal year were $9,955,912 compared to 

$5,257,062 for FY2020. 

 

Budget Controls.  A budget is prepared annually in accordance with the Texas Water Code Chapter 49, 

Subchapter G, Sec. 49.199 and, after approval by the Board of Directors, is used in planning and controlling 

costs.  During the year, necessary budget amendments are submitted and approved by the Board prior to 

implementation. 

 

Debt Administration.   Outstanding large debt on September 30, 2021 totaled $26,595,000 which 
consisted of Water and Wastewater Revenue Bonds Taxable Series 2016A of $4,315,000, Water and 
Wastewater Revenue Bonds Taxable Series 2016B of $4,280,000, Water and Wastewater System Contract 
Revenue Bonds Taxable Series 2020A of $10,800,000, and Water and Wastewater System Contract 
Revenue Bonds Tax-Exempt Series 2020B of $7,200,000.   
 

OTHER INFORMATION 

 

As required by the Texas Water Code Chapter 49, Subchapter G, Sec. 49.191, an audit of the Riverbend’s 

fiscal accounts and records must be conducted annually.  Accordingly, the Board of Directors appointed 

the firm of Wilf & Henderson, P.C. to complete the audit of the Riverbend’s records. 

 

Wilf & Henderson, P.C. has issued an unmodified opinion of the Riverbend’s financial statements for year 

ended September 30, 2021.  The independent auditor’s report is located at the front of the financial 

section of this report.  Immediately following the reader will find Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

(MD&A) that provides a narrative introduction, overview and analysis of the basic financial statements.  

The MD&A complements this letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it. 

 

AWARD AND ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 

 

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a 

Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to Riverbend Water Resources District for 

its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2020.  This is the second 

consecutive year that Riverbend has achieved this prestigious award.  In order to be awarded a Certificate 



 

iv 
 

of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized annual 

comprehensive financial report.  This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles 

and applicable legal requirements. 

 

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only.  We believe that our current annual 

comprehensive financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements 

and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate. 

 

The preparation of this report would not have been possible without the efficient and dedicated service 

of the entire staff of Riverbend Water Resources District and our independent auditors.  I would like to 

express appreciation to the Board of Directors and Executive Director for their unfailing support and for 

maintaining the highest standards of professionalism in the management of Riverbend Water Resources 

District finances. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

Tara Houck, CPA 

Chief Financial Officer 

 

January 26, 2022 



PRINCIPAL OFFICIALS 

     AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

v

Treasurer

Member At-Large

FRED MILTON

VAN ALEXANDER

SONJA YATES HUBBARD

President

City of Texarkana

TINA VEAL-GOOCH

Vice President

TexAmericas Center

MARSHALL WOOD

Secretary

City of Texarkana

Past President

City of New Boston

TARA HOUCK, CPA

Chief Financial Officer

KYLE DOOLEY, P.E.

Executive Director/Chief Executive Officer



vi

Riverbend Water Resources District Organizational Chart

Riverbend Water 
Resources District

Board of Directors

Auditors

Executive 
Director/CEO

Kyle Dooley

Chief Financial 
Officer

Tara Houck

Accounting 
Operations 
Specialist

Kathy Pierce

Operations 
Manager

Eli Hunt

Maintenance

Keith Adams

Water Distribution

Dave Matthews  
Cliff Lee

Maintenance 
Technicians

Industrial Waste 
Water 

Austin Robnett

Operators

Waste Water

Rickie Henderson

Operators

Brandon Patterson

Executive 
Assistant/HR 

Manager
Becky Melton

Consultants

Nick Hon

Legal Counsel

Garrett Burnett

Bobby Jones

Jacobe Reader

Paul Maish



Government Finance Officers Association

Certificate of 
Achievement
for Excellence

in Financial 
Reporting

Presented to

Riverbend Water Resources District
Texas

For its Annual Comprehensive
Financial Report

For the Fiscal Year Ended

September 30, 2020

Executive Director/CEO



ANNUAL FILING AFFIDAVIT 

 

 

 

 

THE STATE OF TEXAS   } 

COUNTY OF BOWIE                                          } 

 

__I,______________KYLE DOOLEY_________________________________________________ of the 
(Name of Duly Authorized District Representative) 

 

 

_RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT _________________________________________ 
(Name of District) 

hereby swear, or affirm, that the district named above has reviewed and approved at a meeting of the 

Board of the Directors of the District on the  26TH __ day of __JANUARY, 2022______________________ 

its annual audit report for the fiscal year or period ended __SEPTEMBER 30, 2021__________________   

and that copies of the annual audit report have been filed in the district office, located at _________ 

_228A TEXAS AVENUE, NEW BOSTON, TX  75570_________________________________________ 
(Address of District) 

 

The annual filing affidavit and the attached copy of the audit report are being submitted to the Texas 

Commission on Environmental Quality in satisfaction of the annual filing requirements of Texas Water 

Code Section 49.194. 

 

 

Date: _______01/26/2022__________   By: _________________________________ 
             (Signature of District Representative) 

 

       KYLE DOOLEY 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/CEO___________ 
                        (Typed Name & Title of above District Representative) 

 

Sworn to and subscribed to before me this _____ day of _______________________, _______. 

 

 (SEAL) 

 

 

 

        ______________________________ 
               (Signature of Notary)  

 

 

 

 

 

My Commission Expires On: ________________________ 

Notary Public in the State of Texas. 

 

 

      viii  



Financial Section









 

4 

 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 

 

This section of the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) for Riverbend Water Resources District 

(Riverbend) presents a discussion and analysis of Riverbend’s financial performance during the fiscal year ended 

September 30, 2021.  Please read it in conjunction with the transmittal letter at the front of this report and Riverbend’s 

basic financial statements following this section. 

 

Financial Highlights 

 

• The assets of Riverbend exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $19,128,505 

 (net position).  Of this amount $9,343,889 (49%) are invested in capital assets for business-type uses 

and are not available to generate liquid capital. Net position restricted for specific purposes total 

$7,737,376 (40%).  The remaining $2,047,240 (11%) is made up unrestricted funds which may be used 

to meet Riverbend’s ongoing obligations to members and creditors in accordance with Riverbend’s fiscal 

policies.  

 

• In fiscal year 2021, Riverbend’s combined net position increased $4,957,446 to $19,128,505. The 

increase can be attributed to an increase in non-operating revenues with the majority of the increase due 

to debt service member payments received in the Regional Water System Facilities Fund.   

 

• Riverbend’s total long-term obligations increased by $17,239,396 (300%) due to the issuance of bonds 

in the amount for $18,000,000 reduced by regularly scheduled debt service payments on existing bonds.   

 

• Riverbend’s operating revenue increased by $264,584 to a total for fiscal year 2021 of $3,828,706.  The 

Administrative fund’s operating revenue increased by $23,793, primarily due to an increase in monthly 

member fees charged member cities per annual true-up.  The Wet Utilities fund’s operating revenue 

increased by $240,791, the majority of the increase due to an 8% increase in RRAD volumetric charges. 

 

• Riverbend’s combined operating expenses decreased by $336,163 to a total for fiscal year 2021 of 

$3,618,675.  The Administrative fund’s operating expenses decreased $77,134 due to decrease in legal 

and special project expenses related to water supply contracts and the regional water system project in 

the prior year.  The Wet Utilities fund’s operating expenses decreased $301,136 due to a decreases in 

maintenance expenses.   Depreciation expense increased by $42,107. 

 

• Riverbend’s combined nonoperating revenues/expenses increased by $3,433,154 to a total for fiscal year 

2021 of $4,747,415.  As stated above, the majority of this increase is due to debt service member 

payments received in the new Regional Water System Facilities Fund. 

 

• Riverbend received no capital contributions this fiscal year, a reduction of $983,153 from prior year. 

 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

 

The discussion and analysis provided here are intended to serve as an introduction to Riverbend Water Resources 

District’s basic financial statements. Riverbend’s basic financial statements consist of fund financial statements and 

the notes to the financial statements.  The report also includes supplementary information intended to furnish 

additional detail to support the basic financial statements themselves. 

 

The financial statements – The financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of 

Riverbend’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.  The Statement of Net Position presents 

information on all of Riverbend’s assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net position.  

Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of 

Riverbend is improving or deteriorating.  The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents 

information showing how Riverbend’s net position changed during the fiscal year.  All changes in net position are 



 

5 

 

reported when the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  

Riverbend’s activities are functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user 

fees and charges and are thus, considered as business-type activities.  

 

Riverbend like other governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related 

legal requirements. Riverbend uses three enterprise funds.  The Regional Water System Administration Fund accounts 

for the revenue from its participating member entities based on the number of gallons of water purchased by the 

entities as well as supplemental contributions, as necessary, and consulting fees.  The Wet Utilities fund, which is the 

second enterprise fund, is used to account for the water and wastewater operations.  The Regional Water System 

Facilities Fund is an enterprise fund used to collect debt services payments from member entities and receive bond 

funds to be used for the construction of a regional water system facility.   When placed in service, the new regional 

water system facility will provide wholesale water to the member entities in the three county region. 

 

The basic financial statements of the enterprise funds can be found on pages 9 - 11 of this report. 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

 

The notes provide additional information that is necessary to acquire a full understanding of the data provided in the 

basic financial statements. 

 

The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 12 – 22 of this report. 

 

Other Information 

 

Riverbend adopts an annual budget for planning, control and evaluation purposes. 

 

The budgetary information may be found on pages 23 - 25 of this report. 

 

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required 

supplementary information required by the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality. 

 

This required information may be found on pages 26 - 40 of this report. 

 

Statistical Section 

 

Additional statistical information has been prepared to complete the annual comprehensive financial report (ACFR) 

in accordance with Governmental Financial Standards Board (GASB) guidance.  The objective of the statistical section 

is to provide information on financial trends, revenue capacity, debt capacity, demographic and economic information 

and operating information.   

 

The statistical information may be found on pages 41 - 68 of this report. 

 

Single Audit Section 

 

Riverbend is required to obtain a Single Audit Report for fiscal year 2021.  Riverbend has received a federal award 

provided by the Environmental Protection Agency and approved by the Texas Water Development Board.   

 

The single audit section may be found on pages 69 – 76 of this report. 

 

 

Financial Analysis 

 

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position.  In the 

case of Riverbend Water Resources District, assets exceeded liabilities by $19,128,505 as of September 30, 2021.  The 

largest portion of Riverbend’s net position are the amounts related to the net investment in capital assets totaling 

$9,344,077. Restricted funds in the amount of $7,737,376 are comprised of $7,421,327 restricted for bond payments 



 

6 

 

and $316,049 restricted for Red River Army Depot construction projects. The unrestricted balance of $2,047,240 may 

be used to meet Riverbends ongoing obligations.  Riverbend had an increase in net position during the year of 

$4,957,446.  

     

  
                             

  
 

Total

2021 2020 $ Change

Assets:

Current assets 18,411,213$     4,670,344$       13,740,869$     

Noncurrent assets 5,890,929         1,213,419         4,677,510         

Capital Assets 24,248,096       18,025,801       6,222,295         

Total assets 48,550,238       23,909,564       24,640,674       

Liabilities:

Current liabilities 3,546,521         1,102,692         2,443,829         

Long-term liabilities 25,875,209       8,635,813         17,239,396       

Total liabilities 29,421,730       9,738,505         19,683,225       

Net position:

Net investment in capital assets 9,343,889         9,614,188         (270,299)           

Restricted for bond reserves 7,421,327         2,714,457         4,706,870         

Restricted for construction 316,049            474,906            (158,857)           

Unrestricted 2,047,240         1,367,508         679,732            

Total net position 19,128,505$     14,171,059$     4,957,446$       

NET POSITION

Total

2021 2020 $ Change

Operating revenue:

Charges for services 3,828,706$   3,559,419$   269,287$      

Other -                4,703            (4,703)          

Total operating revenue 3,828,706     3,564,122     264,584        

Operating expenses:

Administrative 413,712        490,846        (77,134)        

Wet Utilities 2,399,784     2,700,920     (301,136)      

Depreciation 805,179        763,072        42,107          

Total operating expenses 3,618,675     3,954,838     (336,163)      

Operating income 210,031        (390,716)       600,747        

Nonoperating revenues/expenses 4,747,415     1,314,261     3,433,154     

Capital contributions -                983,153        (983,153)      

Change in net position 4,957,446     1,906,698     3,050,748     

Net position, beginning of year 14,171,059   12,264,361   1,906,698     
Prior period adjustment -                -                -               

Net position, end of year 19,128,505$ 14,171,059$ 4,957,446$   

CHANGES IN NET POSITION



 

7 

 

Riverbend’s total operating revenues increased by $264,584 in fiscal year 2021 from the 2020 revenue.  Charges for 

services fees for fiscal year 2021 of $3,828,706 were increased from fiscal year 2020 of $3,559,419 by $269,287.  

Other operating revenues for the fiscal year 2021 decreased by $4,703. Riverbend’s combined operating expenses 

decreased by $336,163 for a fiscal year 2021 total of $3,618,675.  The Administrative fund’s operating expenses 

decreased $77,134 and the Wet Utilities fund operating expenses decreased $301,136. Depreciation expense increased 

by $42,107. 

 

Budgetary Highlights 

 

The fiscal year ended with a Wet Utilities Fund budget surplus of $622,639 attributable to staff vacancies, water 

purchase cost credit, infrastructure services expense reimbursement, and favorable expenditure variances.  The 

Regional Water System Administration Fund budget surplus in the amount of $14,067 is attributable to less expense 

for legal and engineering services than anticipated and other favorable expense variances.  The Regional Water System 

Facilities Fund budget surplus in the amount of $190,444 is due to member city water usage exceeding contracted 

minimum volumes. 

 

Capital Assets 

 

Riverbend’s capital assets as of September 30, 2021 amount to $24,248,096.  The capital assets include computer 

equipment, equipment, utility system, intangible assets, and construction in process.  Major capital asset additions 

during the current fiscal year were two 2021 Ford F150’s $58,359, Lenovo Thinkserver SR650 $31,561, Kubota 

tractor with loader and box blade $31,822, a 25-yard dewatering box $18,194, Spectrometer $10,476, 225’ 4” water 

line at Building 341 and construction in progress on the regional water system $6,670,259, drying bed rehab $110,165, 

and elevated water tank $155,645.  Additional information on Riverbend’s capital assets can be found in Note 5 on 

page 16 of this report. 

 

 
 

Debt Administration 

 

In the year ended September 30, 2016, Riverbend issued Riverbend Water Resources Riverbend Water and 

Wastewater Revenue Bonds Taxable Series 2016A for $4,925,000 and Riverbend Water Resources District Water and 

Wastewater Revenue Bonds Taxable Series 2016B for $6,685,000.  During the current fiscal year Riverbend issued 

Riverbend Water Resources District Water and Wastewater System Contract Revenue Bonds Taxable Series 2020A 

for $10,800,000 and Riverbend Water Resources District Water and Wastewater System Contract Revenue Bonds 

Tax-Exempt Series 2020B for $7,200,000.  Payments of principal in the amount of $740,000 and interest in the amount 

of $473,419 were made during the fiscal year. Total bonded debt at September 30, 2021 totaled $26,595,000.  

Additional information on the Riverbend’s long-term debt can be found in Note 6 on pages 16 -18 of this report. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2021 2020

Equipment 415,929$      343,220$      

Utility system 16,012,858   16,768,340   

Intangible assets 265,536        296,537        

Construction in progress 7,553,773     617,704        

Total capital assets 24,248,096$ 18,025,801$ 

CAPITAL ASSETS, NET OF DEPRECIATION



 

8 

 

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget 

 

The Wet Utilities Fund budget for fiscal year 2021-2022 includes an increase of approximately 10% in the Red River 

Army Depot (RRAD) revenue.  The increase is due to RRAD’s increase in percentage of usage of overall water and 

wastewater volumes and budgeting for planning, design, and construction of a new industrial wastewater treatment 

plant. 

 

The Regional Water System Facilities Fund budget includes a full year of monthly fees, debt service payments and 

continued expenditures on the regional water treatment facility.  Riverbend anticipates issuing the second of the multi-

year bond package in February, 2022 in the amount of $93M.  

 

The Regional Water System Administration Fund budget includes a full year of member fees as well as planning for 

expenses for professional services related to future and ongoing water, wastewater and industrial wastewater projects. 

 

Request for Information 

 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of Riverbend’s finances for all those with an interest 

in the government’s finances.  Questions concerning any of the information included in this report or requests for 

additional information should be addressed to Kyle Dooley, Riverbend’s Executive Director/CEO at 

kyledooley@rwrd.org, 228 Texas Ave Suite A, New Boston, Texas 75570 or by telephone at 903-831-0091. 



Basic Financial Statements



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Regional Water System Regional Water System Wet Utilities

Administration Fund Facilities Fund Fund Total

ASSETS

Current assets: 

     Cash and cash equivalents 223,165$             -$                       1,289,074$         1,512,239$       

     Accounts receivable 17,688 274,372 839,752 1,131,812

     Interfund accounts 3,009 - 352 3,361

     Restricted assets:

          Cash and cash equivalents restricted for bond debt reserves - 246,611 1,121,686 1,368,297

          Cash and cash equivalents restricted for construction - 13,004,490 312,423 13,316,913

          Cash and cash equivalents restricted for operations - - 900,745 900,745

     Prepaid expenses - - 99,130 99,130

     Inventories - - 78,716 78,716

          Total current assets 243,862 13,525,473 4,641,878 18,411,213

Noncurrent assets:

    Cash and cash equivalents  - restricted for bond debt reserves - 4,444,321 1,446,608 5,890,929

Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation):

     Equipment - - 415,929 415,929

     Utility system - - 16,012,858 16,012,858

     Intangible assets - - 265,536 265,536

     Construction in progress - 6,670,259 883,514 7,553,773

     Total capital assets - 11,114,580 19,024,445 30,139,025

          Total noncurrent assets - 11,114,580 19,024,445 30,139,025

TOTAL ASSETS 243,862 24,640,053 23,666,323 48,550,238

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:

     Accounts payable 3,064 2,302,720 78,767 2,384,551

     Payroll liabilities - - 44,226 44,226

     Interfund accounts 352 3,009 - 3,361

     Due to North East Texas Regional Water Planning Group 41,138 - - 41,138

     Accrued interest payable - 113,030 166,029 279,059

     Accrued compensated absences - current portion - - 19,186 19,186

     Revenue bonds payable - current portion - - 775,000 775,000

          Total current liabilities 44,554 2,418,759 1,083,208 3,546,521

Long-term liabilities:

     Accrued compensated absences - long term - - 55,209 55,209

     Revenue bonds payable - long term - 18,000,000 7,820,000 25,820,000

          Total long-term liabilities - 18,000,000 7,875,209 25,875,209

TOTAL LIABILITES 44,554 20,418,759 8,958,417 29,421,730

NET POSITION

     Net investment in capital assets - (634,606) 9,978,495 9,343,889

     Restricted for bond reserves - 4,852,274 2,569,053 7,421,327

     Restricted for construction - 3,626 312,423 316,049

     Unrestricted 199,306 - 1,847,934 2,047,240

TOTAL NET POSITION 199,306$             4,221,294$             14,707,905$       19,128,505$     

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

9



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021
Regional Water System Regional Water System Wet Utilities

Administration Fund Facilities Fund Fund Total

OPERATING REVENUES
     Charges for services:

          Member fees 204,635$                 -$                           -$                             204,635$               

          Army volumetric charge - - 3,141,686 3,141,686

          Army water supply charge - - 249,672 249,672

          Commercial and residential charge - - 232,713 232,713

          Total operating revenues 204,635 - 3,624,071 3,828,706

OPERATING EXPENSES

     Accounting and audit 4,500 - - 4,500

     Analyticals - - 101,755 101,755

     Community relations 5,003 - - 5,003

     Conferences & seminars 2,840 - - 2,840

     Consulting 180,596 - 23,941 204,537

     Dues and memberships 8,357 - - 8,357

     Engineering services 20,697 - - 20,697

     Equipment maintenance, repair and fuel - - 27,889 27,889

     Insurance - - 46,891 46,891

     Legal and professional fees 12,665 - - 12,665

     Materials - - 185,047 185,047

     Meetings expense 4,279 - - 4,279

     Military affairs 11,000 - - 11,000

     Miscellaneous 309 - - 309

     Office supplies and expense 1,136 - - 1,136

     Permits - - 34,279 34,279

     Repairs - - 177,927 177,927

     Salaries, wages, payroll taxes and benefits 154,662 - 890,213 1,044,875

     Supplies - - 25,365 25,365

     Travel and training 5,001 - - 5,001

     Utilities - - 145,291 145,291

     Waste disposal - - 37,158 37,158

     Water purchase cost - - 180,852 180,852

     Web design and maintenance 2,667 - - 2,667

     Overhead allocation - water - - 164,434 164,434

     Overhead allocation - wastewater - - 178,613 178,613

     Overhead allocation - industrial wastewater - - 180,129 180,129

          Total operating expenses before depreciation 413,712 - 2,399,784 2,813,496

Operating income (loss) before depreciation (209,077) - 1,224,287 1,015,210

     Depreciation - - 805,179 805,179

Operating income (loss) (209,077) - 419,108 210,031

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

     Facility charges revenue - - 1,502,606 1,502,606

     Minimum monthly payments - 4,570,950 - 4,570,950

     Interest revenue 2 23,851 12,650 36,503

     Other revenue - - - -

     Project admin fees - - 17,147 17,147

     Gain (loss) on disposal of asset - - (62,676) (62,676)

     Interest expense - (210,304) (362,717) (573,021)

     Franchise fees expense - - (108,710) (108,710)

     Special projects expense (6,858) - - (6,858)

     Bond issuance costs - (628,526) - (628,526)

          Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (6,856) 3,755,971 998,300 4,747,415

Income (loss) before capital contributions and transfers (215,933) 3,755,971 1,417,408 4,957,446

Capital contributions - - - -

Transfers in (out) 230,000 - (230,000) -

Changes in net position 14,067 3,755,971 1,187,408 4,957,446
Net position, beginning of year 185,239 465,323 13,520,497 14,171,059

Net position, end of year 199,306$                 4,221,294$                14,707,905$            19,128,505$          

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

10



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT     
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Regional Water System Regional Water System Wet Utilities

Administration Fund Facilities Fund Fund Total

Cash flows from operating activities: 

     Cash received from customers 204,793$               -$                          3,197,590$          3,402,383$          

     Cash paid to suppliers (215,945) - (1,586,502) (1,802,447)

     Cash paid to employees (154,662) - (865,387) (1,020,049)

          Net cash provided (used) by operating activities (165,814) - 745,701 579,887

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:

     Net increase (decrease) in interfund receivable/liability accounts (1,617) 3,009 (1,392) -

     Other nonoperating expenses paid (6,857) (628,526) (171,386) (806,769)

     Operating transfer in (out) 230,000 - (230,000) -

          Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities 221,526 (625,517) (402,778) (806,769)

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:

     Receipt of facility charges revenues - 4,663,500 1,502,606 6,166,106

     Acquisition and construction of capital assets - (4,367,539) (357,214) (4,724,753)

     Interest expense paid - (97,274) (376,145) (473,419)

     Receipt of project admin fees - - 17,147 17,147

     Proceeds on bonds issued - 18,000,000 - 18,000,000

     Bonded debt principal reduction - - (740,000) (740,000)

          Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities - 18,198,687 46,394 18,245,081

Cash flows from investing activities: - -

     Interest revenue received 2 23,851 12,650 36,503

          Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 2 23,851 12,650 36,503

Net increase(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 55,714 17,597,021 401,967 18,054,702

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 167,451 98,401 4,668,569 4,934,421

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 223,165 17,695,422 5,070,536 22,989,123

Cash and cash equivalents consists of:

     Cash and cash equivalents - Unrestricted 223,165 - 1,289,074 1,512,239

     Cash and cash equivalents restricted for bonded debt purposes - 4,690,932 2,568,294 7,259,226

     Cash and cash equivalents restricted for construction - 13,004,490 312,423 13,316,913

     Cash and cash equivalents restricted for operations - - 900,745 900,745

Total cash and cash equivalents 223,165 17,695,422 5,070,536 22,989,123

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to

net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Operating income (loss) (209,077)$             -$                          419,108$             210,031$             

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to

  net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation expense - - 805,179 805,179

(Increase) decrease in current assets:

     Accounts receivable 158 (426,481) (426,323)

     Inventory (1,837) (1,837)

     Prepaid expenses - - (25,746) (25,746)

Increase (decrease) in current liabilities: -

     Accounts payable 43,105 (49,348) (6,243)

     Payroll liabilities - - 10,249 10,249

     Accrued compensated absences - - 14,577 14,577

Total adjustments 43,263 - 326,593 369,856

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities (165,814)$             -$                          745,701$             579,887$             

Noncash Capital, Financing and Investing Activities

Capital contributions -$                      -$                          -$                    -$                    

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

11



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT_______________________ 

12 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 

 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 
A. Organization and Operations of the Reporting Entity 

 

The Riverbend Water Resources District (Riverbend) is a political subdivision of the State of Texas created with the 

passage of Texas Senate Bill 1223 in 2009, pursuant to the authority granted by Section 59, Article XVI of the Texas 

Constitution.  This provision authorizes the legislature to create agencies to develop and conserve the natural resources 

of the State of Texas.  In establishing Riverbend, legislature delegated to it all the power enumerated under Article 49 

of the Texas Water Code along with the express authority to contract with other states and political subdivisions of 

other states of the United States in the performance of Riverbend’s lawful duties.  

 

In 2011 the Texas Legislature re-organized composition of the Riverbend Board of Directors and appointed a 

temporary conservator with the passage of HB 3847.  The temporary conservator served as Riverbend’s administrator 

until July 4, 2012.  The current Board of Directors were appointed January 2012, drew lots to determine staggered 

terms, with three of the directors serving three-year terms and two of the directors serving four-year terms.  The 

Riverbend Board consists of two directors appointed by the City of Texarkana, Texas, one director appointed by the 

City of New Boston, one director appointed by TexAmericas, and one director appointed by multiple general law 

communities within the region. 

 

Riverbend currently serves eighteen (18) organizations including the cities of Annona, Atlanta, Avery, Central Bowie 

County Water Supply Corporation, DeKalb, Hooks, Leary, Maud, Nash, New Boston, Oak Grove Water Supply 

Corporation, Redwater, Texarkana, Texas, Wake Village and TexAmericas Center, Bowie, Cass, and Red River 

Counties.  The organizations served by Riverbend desire to procure certain services from Riverbend and participate 

in the funding of the development of Riverbend projects in exchange for a specified fee and dollar-for-dollar credits 

towards participation in future water purchases should Riverbend develop such capability, and Riverbend is willing 

to provide such services and agree to such credits.  Organizations served by Riverbend agree to pay or dedicate to 

Riverbend a fee of $0.045 per 1,000 gallons of potable water processed through Lake Texarkana Water Supply 

Corporation facilities that each organization purchases from the City of Texarkana, Texas. 

 

On May 1, 2016 Riverbend acquired and began operating the water, wastewater and industrial wastewater systems 

formerly owned and operated by TexAmericas Center.  Riverbend provides water, domestic wastewater and industrial 

wastewater services to the Red River Army Depot, the TexAmericas Industrial Park as well as various commercial 

and residential customers.  

 

In September, 2020 Riverbend began billing the participating members monthly fees as set forth in Water Supply 

Contracts completed and executed in 2020.  The Water Supply Contracts set a fee of $1.20 per 1,000 gallons of potable 

water processed through Lake Texarkana Water Supply Corporation facilities that each organization purchases from 

the City of Texarkana, Texas.  The members are charged the greater of their actual usage for the month or the minimum 

monthly payment set in their water supply contract. 

 

B. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 

 

For financial reporting purposes, Riverbend reports its operations on an enterprise fund basis.  Enterprise funds (a 

proprietary fund type) are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus.  This measurement 

focus provides that all assets and liabilities associated with operations are included on the Statement of Net Position. 

 

The accrual basis of accounting is utilized by Riverbend for financial reporting.  Under the accrual basis of accounting, 

income is recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred.  The Statement of 

Revenue, Expenses, and Changes of Net Position present increases (income) and decreases (expenses) in Riverbend 

net position.  

 

 



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT_______________________ 
Notes to Financial Statements continued. 

 
 

13 

 

Riverbend distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.  Operating revenues and expenses 

generally result from providing services in connection with ongoing operations.  Operating revenues include charges 

for services, member contributions for acting as the designee, local sponsor, and agent for the member organizations 

regarding certain matters and supervising performance of agreements between the member organizations and the City 

of Texarkana, Texas as well as consulting revenue.  Operating expenses include all necessary costs related to the 

performance and administration of Riverbend’s ongoing activities.  All revenues and expenses not meeting this 

definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

 

Riverbend reports the following three major Enterprise Funds: 

 

The Regional Water System Administration Fund accounts for the member contributions and expenses related to the 

activities as the agent for the member organizations regarding certain matters and supervising performance of 

agreements between the member organizations and the City of Texarkana, Texas. 

 

The Wet Utilities Fund accounts for the operations of the wet utilities systems and facilities providing water, 

wastewater, and industrial wastewater to its customers. 

 

The Regional Water System Facilities Fund accounts for member entity payments, according to their Water Supply 

Contracts, for the repayment of the multi-year debt issuance to build a new regional water system.  The fund will also 

account for the bond funds received and capital expenditures for construction of the facility. 

 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is Riverbend’s policy to use restricted 

resources first then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

 

C. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position 

 

1. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 

Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand and cash on deposit, as well as highly liquid debt 

instruments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. 

2. Investments 

Investments are recorded at fair value. Fair value is the amount at which a financial instrument could be exchanged in 

a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. 

 

3. Receivables and payables 

 

Activity between funds that is representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the year is 

referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other 

funds” (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans).  All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as 

“due to/from other funds”. 

 

Accounts receivable are considered fully collectible; accordingly, no allowance for doubtful accounts is required.  In 

the event an account in whole or in part becomes uncollectible in the future, such amount will be charged to operations 

when that determination is made. 

 

4. Prepaid Items 

 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items.  

 

 

 

 

 



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT_______________________ 
Notes to Financial Statements continued. 

 
 

14 

 

5. Restricted Assets 

 

Some of Riverbend’s assets have certain constraints that have been placed on how they can be used.  By definition, 

restricted assets are cash and cash equivalents or other assets whose use in whole or in part is restricted for specific 

purposes bound by virtue of contractual agreements, legal requirements or enabling legislation. Certain proceeds of  

revenue bonds, as well as resources set aside for their repayment, are classified as restricted assets on the statement of 

net position because they are maintained in separate bank accounts and their use is limited by applicable bond 

covenants. 

 

6. Inventories  

 

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (determined by using the weighted average cost or first-in first-out) or 

market. 

 

7. Capital Assets 

 

Capital assets are stated at costs.  Assets are recorded as property, plant, and equipment when valued at $10,000 or 

more and have an estimated useful life in excess of one year.  The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not 

add to the value of the asset or materially extend the asset lives is not capitalized. 

 

Capital assets of Riverbend are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives: 

 

 Computer equipment  5 years 

 Equipment   5-10 years 

 Utility system   20-60 years 

 Intangible assets   20-60 years 

 

8. Compensated Absences 

 

Riverbend's policy is to permit the employee to accumulate earned vacation leave. Accumulated vacation time is 

accrued at year-end to account for Riverbend's obligation to the employee for the amount owed. The employee earns 

15 days of vacation each year, or 120 hours. A maximum of 200 unused vacation hours can be carried forward from 

year to year. A maximum of 200 hours will be paid out upon termination for employees that have been employed for 

6 months and worked 1,040 hours. The employee also earns 12 days of sick time each year, or 96 hours. Unused sick 

time can be carried forward from year to year but is not payable upon termination. The maximum allowable 

accumulation of sick leave is 600 hours. No accrual for sick time is reported. 

9. Long-term Obligations 

 

Long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the statement of net position.  Issuance 

costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as expenses. 

 

10. Contributions of Capital (Non-Monetary Transactions) 

 

Contributions of capital in proprietary fund financial statements arise from outside contributions of resources restricted 

to capital acquisition and construction. Riverbend did not receive capital contributions during 2021. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT_______________________ 
Notes to Financial Statements continued. 

 
 

15 

 

11. Net Position 

 

Unrestricted net position is the net amount of the assets and liabilities that are not included in the determination of the 

net investment in capital assets or restricted net position.  Sometimes Riverbend may fund outlays for a particular 

purpose from both restricted (e.g., restricted bond or grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources.  In order to calculate 

the amounts to report as restricted – net position and unrestricted – net position in the proprietary fund financial 

statements, a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied.  It 

is Riverbend’s policy to consider restricted – net position to have been depleted before unrestricted – net position is 

applied.  

 

12. Use of Estimates 

 

The preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires 

management to make some estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 

disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported changes in net 

position during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

 

 

NOTE 2 – STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

 

While water district budgets are not “legally adopted” within the meaning of GASB 34, they are adopted according to 

Texas Law. Riverbend adopts an annual budget for planning, control, and evaluation purposes.  Budgetary control and 

evaluation are affected by comparisons of actual revenues and expenses with planned revenues and expenses. 

 

NOTE 3 – DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 

 

Riverbend adopted an investment policy in accordance with the Public Funds Investment Act which governs all 

deposits and investments of Riverbend. 

 

Custodial Credit Risk - Custodial credit risk for deposits with financial institutions is the risk that in the event of bank 

failure, Riverbend’s deposits may not be returned to it.  Riverbend’s demand deposit accounts, and time and saving 

deposit accounts with financial institutions are each insured by the FDIC up to a maximum of $250,000.  Riverbend 

requires collateralized securities for the excess over FDIC coverage.  The deposits were fully insured by FDIC or 

additional coverage of pledged securities.  

 

Concentration of Credit Risk - Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of Riverbend’s 

investment in a single financial institution.  Concentrations of credit risk over 5% are as follow at September 30, 2021: 

     

  
 

Investments – The BOK Financial funds are held in their Short Term Cash Fund I, a short-term cash investment fund 

designed specifically for BOKF clients. The cash is deposited into a demand deposit account at the BOK Financial 

Corporation (BOKF) affiliate bank. As is required by state law and federal regulations, public fund deposits and 

accounts where affiliate banks act in a trustee or a managed agency capacity, will be collateralized 110 percent of the 

cash market value in excess of FDIC Coverage. The collateral consists of U.S. Treasury and U.S. Agency securities. 

The fair value of the funds invested at BOKF at September 30, 2021 was $13,003,309.  The investment maturity was 

less than 1 year, fair value hierarchy level 1. 

 

Type Financial Institution Fair Value

Cash and cash equivalents BOK Financial 13,003,309$ 

Cash and cash equivalents State Bank of DeKalb 5,070,336     

Cash and cash equivalents Texana Bank 4,915,251     



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT_______________________ 
Notes to Financial Statements continued. 

 
 

16 

 

NOTE 4 – ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

 

Riverbend’s accounts receivable as of September 30, 2021 was $1,131,812. Riverbend considers all accounts 

receivable to be fully collectible; therefore, no allowance for doubtful accounts is recorded.  In the event an account 

in whole or in part becomes uncollectible in the future, such amount will be charged to operations when that 

determination is made. 

 

NOTE 5 – CAPITAL ASSETS 

 

Riverbend had several construction projects in process during the year ended September 30, 2021.  The Regional 

Planning Master Study, Water Rate Study, Regional Water System Project, Elevated Water Storage Tank Project, 

Drying Bed Rehab and the Industrial Feasibility Study had accumulated $7,553,773 of construction in progress cost 

at September 30, 2021.  Major capital asset additions during the current fiscal year were two 2021 Ford F150’s 

$58,359, Lenovo Thinkserver SR650 $31,561, Kubota tractor with loader and box blade $31,822, a 25-yard 

dewatering box $18,194, Spectrometer $10,476, and 225’ 4” water line at Building 341. Total depreciation expense 

of $805,179 was included in operating expenses.  

 

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2021 was as follows:  

 

 
 

 

NOTE 6 – LONG-TERM DEBT OBLIGATIONS 

 

Riverbend has pledged future water, wastewater and industrial wastewater customer revenues, net of specific operating 

expenses to repay $11,610,000 in water and wastewater system revenue bonds issued in 2016 and has entered into 

water supply contracts with participating members committing to repay $18,000,000 in water and wastewater revenue 

bonds issued in 2020.  Proceeds from the 2016 bonds provided financing for the water and wastewater facility 

acquisition and improvements.  The 2016 bonds are payable solely from customer net revenues.   The Series 2016 A 

Balance Balance

October 1, Reclassifications/ September 30, 

2020 Additions Retirements 2021

Capital assets, not being depreciated

Construction in progress 617,704$             6,936,069$          -$                    7,553,773$          

Capital assets, being depreciated

Computer equipment 1,362                   -                      -                      1,362                   

Equipment 483,119               150,387               5,056                   628,450               

Utility systems 19,321,446          12,612                 67,327                 19,266,731          

Intangible assets 324,784               -                      23,092                 301,692               

Total capital assets, being depreciated 20,130,711          162,999               95,475                 20,198,235          

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Computer equipment (1,362)                 -                      (1,362)                 

Equipment (139,899)             (76,170)               (3,551)                 (212,518)             

Utility systems (2,553,106)          (718,261)             (17,492)               (3,253,875)          

Intangible assets (28,247)               (10,748)               (2,838)                 (36,157)               

Total accumulated depreciation (2,722,614)          (805,179)             (23,881)               (3,503,912)          

Total capital assets, being depreciated 17,408,097          (642,180)             71,594                 16,694,323          

Total capital assets, net 18,025,801$        6,293,889$          71,594$               24,248,096$        



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT_______________________ 
Notes to Financial Statements continued. 

 
 

17 

 

bonds are callable in whole or in part inversely on any date at par. The Series 2016 B bonds are callable in whole or 

in part inversely at any date at par.  The 2020 bonds are payable from member and customer net revenues.  The Series 

2020 A bonds are callable in whole or in part inversely beginning October 15, 2030 at par plus accrued interest. The 

Series 2020 B bonds are callable in whole or in part inversely beginning October 15, 2030 at par plus accrued interest.  

The total principal and interest remaining to be paid on the bonds is $35,949,083.  Riverbend made $740,000 of 

principal payment and $473,419 of interest payments during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2021. Riverbend 

incurred $573,021 of interest expense during the year ended September 30, 2021.  

Long-term debt at September 30, 2021 is comprised of the following:  

 

 
       

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Outstanding

Rate of Original September 30,

Interest Issue 2021

Riverbend Water Resources District

     Water and Wastewater System Revenue Bonds

     Taxable Series 2016A -- Due serially in varying

     amounts from October 2017 through October 2045 0.8-4.56% 4,925,000$         4,315,000$         

Riverbend Water Resources District

     Water and Wastewater System Revenue Bonds

     Taxable Series 2016B -- Due serially in varying

    amounts from October 2017 through October 2030 4.24% 6,685,000           4,280,000           

Riverbend Water Resources District

     Water and Wastewater System Contract Revenue Bonds

     Bonds Taxable Series 2020A -- Due serially in varying

     amounts from April 2021 through October 2051 0.0-2.25% 10,800,000         10,800,000         

Riverbend Water Resources District

     Water and Wastewater System Contract Revenue Bonds

     Tax-Exempt Series 2020B -- Due serially in varying 

     amounts from April 2021 through October 2051 0.0-1.57% 7,200,000           7,200,000           

Total bonded indebtedness 29,610,000$       26,595,000         

Less current maturities (775,000)             

Total long-term debt 25,820,000$       



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT_______________________ 
Notes to Financial Statements continued. 

 
 

18 

 

Annual requirements to amortize Riverbend’s revenue bonds outstanding at September 30, 2021 including interest 

payments are as follows:  

     

  
The following is a summary of the changes in long-term obligations for the year ended September 30, 2021. 

 

 
NOTE 7 – RETIREMENT PLAN 

 

Riverbend sponsors a defined contribution plan, Riverbend Water Resources District 457 Plan, for those employees 

that elect to participate.  The plan is a Government Plan as defined in Internal Revenue Code Section 457(b) and is 

administered through InWest Retirement Solutions.  All employees of Riverbend are eligible to elect participation in 

the plan.  Employees may contribute, by salary reduction, a percentage as specified in the Internal Revenue Code.  

Employee contributions are immediately vested.  Riverbend matches the employee contributions on a discretionary 

basis.  Eligible employees may only participate in the matching program after the first 6 months of service.  The 

current policy matches up to 12.5% of employee contributions based on the following rates: 2 for 1 up to the first 4% 

of contributions; 1 for 1 of 5-7% of contributions; 0.5 to 1 of 8-10% of contributions.  Employer and employee 

contributions to the plan for the year ended September 30, 2021 totaled $122,432 and $90,745, respectively.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Requirements

Year Ending

September 30 Principal Interest Total

2022 775,000 593,296 1,368,296         

2023 1,335,000 561,290 1,896,290         

2024 930,000 536,898 1,466,898         

2025 950,000 520,449            1,470,449         

2026 965,000 579,226            1,544,226         

2027-2031 5,270,000 2,611,894         7,881,894         

2032-2036 3,565,000 1,682,920         5,247,920         

2037-2041 3,970,000 1,271,854         5,241,854         

2042-2046 4,500,000 733,363            5,233,363         

2047-2051 3,575,000 255,329            3,830,329         

2052 760,000 7,564                767,564            

26,595,000$     9,354,083$       35,949,083$     

Water and Wastewater System Revenue Bonds

Beginning Ending

Balance Balance

October 1, September 30, Due Within

2020 Additions Retirements 2021 One Year

Revenue bonds 9,335,000$        18,000,000$      (740,000)$         26,595,000$      775,000$           

Accrued compensated absences 59,818               60,814               (46,237)             74,395               19,186               

Total 9,394,818$        18,060,814$      (786,237)$         26,669,395$      794,186$           



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT_______________________ 
Notes to Financial Statements continued. 

 
 

19 

 

At the September 30, 2021 valuation and measurement date, the following employees were covered by the benefit 

terms: 

 

 Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits   0 

 Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits                  3 

 Active employees       16 

  Total       19 

 

NOTE 8 – RISK MANAGEMENT 

 

Riverbend is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and 

omissions; injuries to employees; and other claims of various natures.  Riverbend participates in the Texas Water 

Conservation Association Risk Management Fund (Fund) to ensure the appropriate insurance has been acquired for 

the fund year in relation to Riverbend operations and assets in the event of a loss.  Riverbend has workers compensation 

coverage, general liability, errors and omissions liability, and automobile insurance through the Fund.  Riverbend 

maintains coverage of $1,000,000 per claim and $9,000,000 additional per claim and annual aggregate in excess of 

$1,000,000 for general liability, errors and omissions, and automobile insurance coverage.  Riverbend has a deductible 

of $1,000 under the policies.  There were no settlements in excess of the insurance coverage in any of the three prior 

fiscal years.  

 

NOTE 9 – INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS  

 

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2021, a payable of $352 was recorded by the Regional Water System 

Administration Fund to the Wet Utilities Fund with an offsetting receivable recorded by the Wet Utilities Fund to 

reclassify expenses between funds.  A payable of $3,009 was recorded by the Regional Water System Facilities Fund 

to the Regional Water System Administration Fund with an offsetting receivable recorded by the Regional Water 

System Administration Fund to reclassify expenses between funds.  These interfund balances will be repaid currently. 

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2021, the Wet Utilities Fund transferred $230,000 to the Regional Water 

System Administration Fund. Transfers totaling $230,000 will be used for professional service expenses related to 

future and ongoing water, wastewater and industrial wastewater projects. 

 

 

NOTE 10 – ACQUISITION OF WET UTILITIES OPERATIONS 

 

On May 26, 2015 Riverbend and TexAmericas Center entered into an Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Assets and 

Assignment and Assumption of Contract Rights, providing for the sale of the water, wastewater and industrial 

wastewater systems that were owned and operated by TexAmericas Center.  On April 25, 2016 the Riverbend Water 

Resources District Board of Directors issued Resolution No. 20160425-02 to close the sale of the water, wastewater, 

and industrial wastewater systems from TexAmericas Center.  The closing date of the transfer was April 28, 2016 and 

the effective date of the transfer of the wet utility systems, its operations and its employees was May 1, 2016.  

Riverbend paid $10,000 for the purchase of the wet utility operations from TexAmericas Center. 

 

The water, wastewater and industrial wastewater operations were acquired as a transfer of operations from 

TexAmericas Center totaling $8,318,334. Riverbend received capital assets with a net book value of $11,026,495 from 

TexAmericas Center as part of the transfer of the wet utility operations.   

 

Riverbend issued $4,925,000 Revenue Bonds Taxable Series 2016A and $6,685,000 Revenue Bonds Taxable Series 

2016B which were utilized in part to redeem the TexAmericas Center bonds. As part of the agreement, TexAmericas 

Center funded a promissory note for $900,000. 

 

TexAmericas Center retained seven-twelfths (7/12) of the profits from the operation of the wet utility system budgeted 

by TexAmericas Center for FY 2015-2016.  The remainder of the profits, or $347,520, was transferred to Riverbend 

in September 2016 and reported as part of the transfer of operations. 

 



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT_______________________ 
Notes to Financial Statements continued. 

 
 

20 

 

NOTE 11 – WATER SUPPLY AND WASTEWATER TREATMENT CONTRACT WITH RED RIVER 

ARMY DEPOT 

 

Volumetric Charges and Operating Revenues 

 

Volumetric charges for the water, wastewater and industrial wastewater systems are equal to the annual budgeted 

amount for operations and maintenance plus an 8% margin/fee multiplied by the Army’s actual percentage of overall 

usage from the prior fiscal year.   Volumetric water supply charges are the water supply cost multiplied by the actual 

RRAD usage each month.  During the year ending September 30, 2020 the Army’s percentage of usage of the water 

system was 98.40%, wastewater system was 81.59%, and the industrial wastewater system was 100%.  These 

percentages, applied to the budget for the year ended September 30, 2021, set annually with the Army, produce 

operating revenue for the system.   

 

Facility Charges  

 

Facility Charges 1 and 2 pay bonded indebtedness currently outstanding for capital improvements previously made in 

the water, wastewater, and industrial wastewater systems.  Facility Charge 3 is for improvements to the industrial 

wastewater system currently in the design and planning stage.  RRAD has requested the construction of a new 

industrial wastewater plant with an estimated cost of $20-30M (40% contingency).  The net proceeds from all Facility 

Charges collected are separated in restricted accounts on the statement of net position by Riverbend and managed 

consistent with generally accepted municipal investment practices. 

 

NOTE 12 – MAJOR CUSTOMERS 

 

Riverbend’s Wet Utilities Fund has one major customer, Red River Army Depot (RRAD).  At September 30, 2021, 

RRAD owed Riverbend $812,185, 96.71% of the billed receivables.  Riverbend billed RRAD $4,797,201, 92.47% of 

the charges for services and facility charges for the year ended September 30, 2021.  

 

Riverbend’s Regional Water System Facilities Fund has two customers contributing more than 10% of the fund’s 

$4,570,950 member revenue. Riverbend billed the City of Texarkana $2,937,384 (64%) and the City of New Boston 

$457,502 (10%) for the year ended September 30, 2021. At September 30, 2021 the City of Texarkana owed Riverbend 

$278,332.    

 

Riverbend’s Regional Water System Administration Fund has one major customer, the City of Texarkana.  At 

September 30, 2021, the City of Texarkana owed Riverbend $9,788, 55.33% of the billed receivables.  Riverbend 

billed the City of Texarkana $117,451, 57.39% of the member fee charges for the year ended September 30, 2021. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT_______________________ 
Notes to Financial Statements continued. 

 
 

21 

 

 

NOTE 13 – LEASE AGREEMENT WITH TEXAMERICAS CENTER 

 

Riverbend has three contracts with TexAmericas Center to rent office space for $1 for the term of the contract.  The 

buildings rented are building 164 with 4,300 square feet, building 167 with 2,400 square feet and the west wing of 

building 228A with 3,562 square feet.  The initial term began May 1, 2016 and terminates April 1, 2017 with options 

to extend the term for nine additional one-year periods.  Riverbend will pay additional rent equal to the rental square 

feet times an initial rent of $2.50 per square foot for building 164, $1 per square foot for building 164, and $5 per 

square foot for building 228A for the first year.  The additional rent is earned upon the first day of each term and 

extended term of the lease and is payable by Riverbend in future credits for water or wastewater services redeemable 

by TAC or its assignees from Riverbend from the current Wet utility systems, any future additional or expansions and 

from any future new water treatment plant facilities by Riverbend.  In order to redeem any accrued water or wastewater 

credits, TAC will give Riverbend notice for credits to be redeemed in the following budget year.  TAC is not permitted 

to redeem more than twenty percent of the then-current balance of TAC’s accrued water and wastewater credits arising 

from the additional rent during any ninety-day period.  The requests are subject to Riverbend’s budgetary ability to 

meet the request. The amount of future credits accrued by TexAmericas Center for the current year ending September 

30, 2021 was $35,891.  The cumulative TAC rental water credits are included in the schedule in Note 15. 

 

 

NOTE 14 – FRANCHISE FEES 

 

A franchise fee of three percent (3%) of the gross revenues generated from the operation of any utility system owned 

by Riverbend which is located on any real property owned by TexAmericas Center is due to TexAmericas Center on 

a monthly basis.  The amount of the franchise fee to be paid is based on the amount of billed charges for the preceding 

month.  During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2021, Riverbend paid franchise fees of $108,710. 

 

 

NOTE 15 – CONTINGENCIES 

 

Litigation 

 

In the ordinary course of operations, Riverbend is subject to claims from outside parties.  After consultation with legal 

counsel, Riverbend believes the ultimate outcome of such matters, if any, will not materially affect its financial 

condition.  

 

Pandemic 

 

Greg Abbott, Governor of Texas, issued a disaster proclamation on March 13, 2020, certifying under Section 418.014 

of the Texas Government Code that the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) poses an imminent threat of disaster for all 

counties in the State of Texas; and in each subsequent month effective through today, he has issued proclamations 

renewing the disaster declaration for all Texas counties.  Other states also have been declared disaster areas as a result 

of the COVID-19 pandemic.  The pandemic will most probably have a profound effect on governmental and private 

entities.  The extent of the effect cannot at this time be estimated or quantified.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT_______________________ 
Notes to Financial Statements continued. 

 
 

22 

 

 

Water fees and credits 

 

An item of operating revenue for Riverbend represents fees paid by member organization for future water credits 

should Riverbend develop a project with the capability of providing potable water.  Each one dollar in advances may 

be exchanged for one dollar in credits that Riverbend will accept for the purchase of water.  

 

The amount of advances paid by each member organization for Riverbend fees, supplemental contributions and rental 

credits by year is as follows:  

 

 
 

NOTE 16 – CONSTRUCTION AND OTHER SIGNIFICANT COMMITMENTS 

 

Riverbend has begun planning and designing for the construction of a new regional water treatment 

facility.  Participating member water supply contracts support the payment of the $200M multi-year bond issuance 

package.  Riverbend and the City of Texarkana, Texas have submitted a water rights application to the Texas 

Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) seeking to secure the future water needs of the region. 

The Elevated Water Tank and Drying Bed Rehab projects were completed in December, 2021 with additional costs 

of $292,116 and $109,623 respectively. Riverbend is also working with RRAD to build a new industrial wastewater 

treatment facility.  Updated cost estimates anticipate the cost to be $30,273,800 with a 40% contingency.  A revised 

site location could result in a cost savings of $5M. 

 

NOTE 17 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

 

In preparing these financial statements, management of Riverbend has evaluated events and transactions for potential 

recognition or disclose through January 19, 2022, the date the financial statements were available to be issued.              

 

Member Prior

Organization 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 Years Total

City of Annona 315$             374$             407$             350$             689$             734$             1,317$          3,871$          

City of Atlanta 15,125          14,988          15,165          15,622          21,997          30,583          45,877          144,232        

City of Avery 821               782               904               1,054            1,292            2,287            3,723            10,042          

Central Bowie Co. WSC 10,512          9,414            -                -                -                -                -                9,414            

City of DeKalb 3,481            3,192            3,482            3,218            5,385            7,650            12,671          35,598          

City of Hooks 7,530            7,274            7,253            7,238            12,645          13,956          22,311          70,677          

City of Leary 985               975               945               807               1,238            1,747            2,939            8,651            

City of Maud 2,235            2,059            2,163            1,881            3,160            4,946            7,774            21,983          

City of Nash 4,323            4,249            4,319            4,450            6,656            9,242            11,947          40,863          

City of New Boston 15,635          15,350          17,756          17,944          26,369          35,367          58,663          171,449        

Oak Grove WSC 1,082            96                 -                -                -                -                -                96                 

City of Redwater 5,771            5,661            5,449            6,224            8,818            10,387          13,116          49,655          

City of Texarkana, TX 117,451        97,893          122,404        120,039        196,878        276,759        381,428        1,195,401     

City of Wake Village 7,472            7,024            7,470            7,297            12,726          17,012          27,162          78,691          

TexAmericas Center -                -                -                -                -                20,444          39,854          60,298          

TexAmericas Center Rental Credit 35,891          34,845          33,830          32,845          31,889          30,960          -                164,369        

Wet Utilities Fund 11,897          11,511          9,891            11,960          24,260          3,369            -                60,991          

Total 240,526$      215,687$      231,438$      230,929$      354,002$      465,443$      628,782$      2,126,281$   



Supplementary Information
Budgetary Comparison Schedules



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

REGIONAL WATER SYSTEM ADMINISTRATION FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Original Final Variance with

Budget Budget Actual Final Budget

OPERATING REVENUES

     Charges for services 203,928$       203,928$       204,635$       707$              

     Total operating revenues 203,928 203,928 204,635 707

OPERATING EXPENSES

     Accounting and audit 4,500 4,500 4,500 -

     Community relations 8,000 8,000 5,003 (2,997)

     Conferences and seminars 4,700 4,700 2,840 (1,860)

     Consulting 200,000 200,000 180,596 (19,404)

     Dues and memberships 7,735 8,735 8,357 (378)

     Engineering services 150,000 130,000 20,697 (109,303)

     Legal and professional fees 27,500 27,500 12,665 (14,835)

     Meetings expense 6,000 6,000 4,279 (1,721)

     Military affairs 11,000 11,000 11,000 -

     Miscellaneous 1,400 1,400 - (1,400)

     Office supplies and expense 3,300 2,300 1,136 (1,164)

     Salaries, wages, payroll taxes and benefits 157,922 157,922 154,662 (3,260)

     Subscriptions 400 400 309 (91)

     Travel and training 18,000 18,000 5,001 (12,999)

     Web design and maintenance 4,000 4,000 2,667 (1,333)

          Total operating expenses before depreciation 604,457 584,457 413,712 (170,745)

Depreciation - - - -

Total operating expenses 604,457 584,457 413,712 (170,745)

Operating Income (loss) before special projects expense

     and transfers (400,529) (380,529) (209,077) 171,452

Non-operating revenues (expenses)

Interest revenue - - 2 2

Special projects expense (100,000) (50,000) (6,858) 43,142

Use of prior year equity 200,529 200,529 - (200,529)

Transfer in 300,000 230,000 230,000 -

Changes in net position - - 14,067 14,067

Net position, beginning of year 185,239 185,239 185,239 -

Net position, end of year 185,239$       185,239$       199,306$       14,067$         

Note: GAAP serves as the basis of budgeting. 

23



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

WET UTILITIES FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Original Final Variance with

Budget Budget Actual Final Budget

OPERATING REVENUES

     Charges for services 3,617,400$     3,673,640$             3,624,071$       (49,569)$       

     Total operating revenues 3,617,400 3,673,640 3,624,071 (49,569)

OPERATING EXPENSES

     Analytical 150,000 150,000 101,755 48,245

     Capital Replacement 414,000 - - -

     Consulting 60,000 60,000 23,941 36,059

     Equipment maintenance, repair and fuel 53,356 47,756 27,889 19,867

     Insurance 45,263 46,891 46,891 -

     Materials 233,000 233,000 185,047 47,953

     Miscellaneous 12,000 - - -

     Permits 55,000 55,000 34,279 20,721

     Repairs 207,000 206,000 177,927 28,073

     Salaries, wages, payroll taxes and benefits 1,077,111 1,015,082 890,213 124,869

     Supplies 51,700 52,150 25,365 26,785

     Utilities 188,000 188,000 145,291 42,709

     Waste disposal 70,000 70,000 37,158 32,842

     Water purchase cost 307,663 307,663 180,852 126,811

     Overhead allocation - water 214,012 199,955 164,434 35,521

     Overhead allocation - wastewater 232,464 217,196 178,613 38,583

     Overhead allocation - industrial wastewater 234,439 219,042 180,129 38,913

          Total operating expenses before depreciation 3,605,008 3,067,735 2,399,784 667,951

Operating income (loss) before depreciation 12,392 605,905 1,224,287 618,382

Depreciation 799,500 799,500 805,179 (5,679)

Operating income (loss) (787,108) (193,595) 419,108 612,703

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

     Facility charges revenues 1,485,628 1,513,088 1,502,606 (10,482)

     Interest revenue 52,000 14,000 12,650 (1,350)

     Other revenue 235,651 46,229 17,147 (29,082)

     Gain (loss) on disposal of asset - (71,000) (62,676) 8,324

     Interest expense (585,182) (405,449) (362,717) 42,732

     Franchise fees expense (108,504) (108,504) (108,710) (206)

         Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 1,079,593 988,364 998,300 9,936

Income (loss) before capital contributions and transfers 292,485 794,769 1,417,408 622,639

Transfers in (out) (300,000) (230,000) (230,000) -

Changes in net position (7,515) 564,769 1,187,408 622,639

Net position, beginning of year 13,520,497 13,520,497 13,520,497 -

Net position, end of year 13,512,982$   14,085,266$           14,707,905$     622,639$       

Note: GAAP serves as the basis of budgeting. 

24



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

REGIONAL WATER SYSTEM FACILITIES FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Original Final Variance with

Budget Budget Actual Final Budget

OPERATING REVENUES

     Charges for services -$              -$              -$              -$                

     Total operating revenues - - - -

OPERATING EXPENSES

      Expenses - - - -

          Total operating expenses - - - -

Operating income (loss) - - - -

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

     Minimum monthly payments 4,389,715 4,389,715 4,570,950 181,235

     Interest income - 21,000 23,851 2,851

     Bond interest expense (24,705) (210,304) (210,304) -

     Bond issuance costs (650,000) (634,884) (628,526) 6,358

         Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 3,715,010 3,565,527 3,755,971 190,444

Change in net position 3,715,010 3,565,527 3,755,971 190,444

Net position, beginning of year 465,323$       465,323$       465,323 -

Net position, end of year 4,180,333$    4,030,850$    4,221,294$    190,444$         

25



Supplementary Information
Required by Texas Commission on Environmental Quality



26 
 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

SCHEDULE OF SERVICES AND RATES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 

 

 

1. Services Provided by the District during the Fiscal Year: 

 Retail Water    Wholesale Water    Drainage 

 Retail/Wastewater   Wholesale Wastewater   Irrigation 

 Parks/Recreation   Fire Protection    Security 

 Solid Waste/Garbage  Flood Control    Roads 

 Participates in joint ventures, regional system, and/or wastewater service 

      (other than emergency interconnect) 

 Other (specify): _____________________________________________________________________ 

 

2. Retail Service Providers 

a. Retail Rates for a 5/8” meter (or equivalent): 

Flat Rate per 1,000

Minimum Minimum Rate Gallons Over Usage

Charge Usage Y/N Minimum Use Levels

WATER: $_______ ____SEE___ $_______.___ ____ to ____

WASTEWATER: $_______ ATTACHED $_______.___ ____ to ____

SURCHARGE: $_______ SCHEDULE $_______.___ ____ to ____

District employs winter averaging for wastewater usage?  Yes   No  

Total charges per 10,000 gallons usage: Commercial   Water: $97.50    Wastewater: $102.50 

     Residential     Water: $62.50    Wastewater:   $97.50 

 

b. Water and Wastewater Retail Connections: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Total Active ESFC Active

Meter Size Connections Connections Factor ESFCs

Unmetered 0 0 x 1.0

≤ 3/4" 20 14 x 1.0

1" 33 27 x 2.5

1 1/2" 7 5 x 5.0

2" 15 12 x 8.0

3" 14 9 x 15.0

4" 4 4 x 25.0

6" 3 3 x 50.0

8" 3 3 x 80.0

12" 2 1 x 115.0

Total Water 99 76

Total Wastewater 72 58 x 1.0



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT_______________________ 
 

27 
 

 

 

 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

SCHEDULE OF SERVICES AND RATES (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 

 

 

3. Total Water Consumption during the Fiscal Year (rounded to the nearest thousand): 

 

Gallon pumped into system:  297,454,830   Water Accountability Ratio: 

         (Gallons billed/Gallon pumped) 

 

Gallons billed to customers:  297,454,830   __________100%__________ 

 

4. Location of District: 

 

County(ies) in which District is located:  Bowie, Cass, Red River       

 

Is the District entirely within one county?     Yes   No  

 

Is the District located within a city?                       Entirely        Partly        Not at all  

 

City(ies) in which the District is located? ____________________________________________________ 

 

Is the District located within a city’s extra territorial jurisdiction (ETJ)? 

        Entirely        Partly        Not at all  

 

ETJs in which the District is located: See above        

       

Are board members appointed by an office outside the district:   Yes   No  

 

If Yes, by whom?          

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT_______________________ 
 

28 
 

 

 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

SCHEDULE OF SERVICES AND RATES (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 

 

Commercial Commercial

sewer Commercial Private Private 1" hydrant /

only water/sewer water/sewer sprinkler sprinkler

Standard water rate ($/1,000) -$                6.50$               3.50$              3.50$            -$              

Standard sewer rate ($/1,000) 7.00                7.00 7.00 -                -                

Facility charge

     Water -                  3.25 2.75 2.50              -                

     Sewer 3.25                3.25 2.75 -                -                

Total charge ($/1,000) 10.25              20.00 16.00 6.00              9.75               

Fixed minimum charge 20.00              35.00               20.00              10.00            15.00             

     Water rate 10.00               7.00                7.00              10.00             

     Sewer rate 15.00              15.00               10.00              -                -                

     Facility charge water 5.00                 1.50                3.00              5.00               

     Facility charge wastewater 5.00                5.00                 1.50                -                -                

Backflow Device 

    Annual Calibration 75.00              -                  -                  -                -                

Customer Service Inspection

     New Connections 85.00              

WATER/SEWER RATE SCHEDULE

 



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT   

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF ENTERPRISE FUND EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Regional Water System Regional Water System Wet Utilities

Administration Fund Facilities Fund Fund Total

Personnel Expenses (including benefits)* 154,662$           -$                  1,304,687$        1,459,349$        

Professional Fees:

     Auditing and financial consulting 4,500 - 17,475 21,975

     Legal 12,665 - - 12,665

     Engineering services 20,697 - - 20,697

     Consulting 180,596 - 23,941 204,537

Purchased Services for Resale:

     Water purchase cost - - 180,852 180,852

Utilities - - 145,291 145,291

Repairs and Maintenance:

     Analytical - - 101,755 101,755

     Repairs and maintenance - equipment - - 28,968 28,968

     Repairs and maintenance - utility system - - 177,927 177,927

     Supplies and materials - - 210,412 210,412

     Insurance - - 46,891 46,891

     Waste disposal - - 37,158 37,158

Administrative Expenses:

     Office supplies and expenses 1,136 - 5,774 6,910

     Utilities - - 18,044 18,044

     Insurance - - 200 200

     Other administrative expenses 39,456 - 100,409 139,865

Other Expenses:

     Depreciation - - 805,179 805,179

     Franchise fees - - 108,710 108,710

     Gain (loss) on disposal of asset - - 62,676 62,676

     Special projects expense 6,858 - - 6,858

     Bond issuance costs 628,526 - 628,526

     Interest expense - 210,304 362,717 573,021

     TOTAL EXPENSES 420,570$           838,830$           3,739,066$        4,998,466$        

* Number of persons employed by the District:      16      Full-Time      0      Part-Time

29



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF TEMPORARY INVESTMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Balance Accrued

Funds Identification Maturity at End Int Rec

Number Date of Year End of Year

Administrative Fund

Operations 50003704 Daily checking 182,012$         -$                 

Restricted - Region D Planning 8009740 Money Market 41,128 -$                 

Operations 457060 Daily savings 25 -

Wet Utilities Fund

Operations 21695 Daily checking 1,288,874 -

Restricted bond sinking 21709 Daily checking 1,961,148 -

Restricted bond reserves 21217 Daily checking 607,146 -

Restricted construction funds 21741 Daily checking 312,423 -

Restricted operations 21733 Money Market 900,745 -

Regional Water System Facilities Fund

Restricted - Minimum Monthly Payments 3011380 Daily Savings 455,024 -

Restricted - 2020A Construction 2037890 Money Market 1,181 -

Restricted - 2020A Revenue 8009732 Money Market 2,359,308 -

Restricted - 2020B Revenue 8009716 Money Market 1,628,721 -

Restricted - 2020A Interest & Redemption 8009813 Money Market 172,742 -

Restricted - 2020B Interest & Redemption 8009724 Money Market 75,137 -

Restricted - 2020A Construction Escrow 82-4416-01-0 Bot Short-Term Cash Fund 6,068,794

Restricted - 2020B Construction Escrow 82-4405-01-3 Bot Short-Term Cash Fund 6,934,515

Total - All Funds 22,988,923$    -$                 

30



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF LONG-TERM DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS

SERIES 2016A - BY YEARS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Due During Fiscal Principal Due Interest Due

Year Ending 10/15 10/15, 4/15 Total

2016 -$                  -$                  -$                  

2017 - - -

2018 - - -

2019 - - -

2020 - - -

2021 - - -

2022 105,000 179,418 284,418

2023 110,000 176,562 286,562

2024 115,000 173,370 288,370

2025 115,000 169,914 284,914

2026 120,000 166,235 286,235

2027 125,000 162,215 287,215

2028 130,000 157,743 287,743

2029 130,000 152,848 282,848

2030 140,000 147,597 287,597

2031 145,000 142,053 287,053

2032 150,000 135,926 285,926

2033 155,000 129,200 284,200

2034 160,000 122,255 282,255

2035 170,000 114,978 284,978

2036 175,000 107,370 282,370

2037 185,000 99,294 284,294

2038 195,000 90,630 285,630

2039 200,000 81,624 281,624

2040 210,000 72,276 282,276

2041 220,000 62,472 282,472

2042 230,000 52,212 282,212

2043 240,000 41,496 281,496

2044 250,000 30,324 280,324

2045 265,000 18,582 283,582

2046 275,000 6,270 281,270

4,315,000$       2,792,864$       7,107,864$       

Series 2016A

31



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF LONG-TERM DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS

SERIES 2016B - BY YEARS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Due During Fiscal Principal Due Interest Due

Year Ending 10/15 10/15, 4/15 Total

2016 -$                  -$                  -$                  

2017 - - -

2018 - - -

2019 - - -

2020 - - -

2021 - - -

2022 670,000 167,268 837,268

2023 705,000 138,118 843,118

2024 295,000 116,918 411,918

2025 315,000 103,986 418,986

2026 325,000 166,854 491,854

2027 300,000 218,400 518,400

2028 340,000 180,000 520,000

2029 390,000 136,200 526,200

2030 440,000 86,400 526,400

2031 500,000 30,000 530,000

4,280,000$       1,344,144$       5,624,144$       

Series 2016B

32



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF LONG-TERM DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS

SERIES 2020A - BY YEARS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Due During Fiscal Principal Due Interest Due

Year Ending 10/15 10/15, 4/15 Total

2021 -$                       -$                       -$                       

2022 - 171,858 171,858

2023 305,000 171,858 476,858

2024 305,000 171,858 476,858

2025 305,000 171,797 476,797

2026 305,000 171,385 476,385

2027 305,000 170,409 475,409

2028 305,000 168,914 473,914

2029 310,000 166,883 476,883

2030 310,000 164,294 474,294

2031 315,000 161,230 476,230

2032 320,000 157,736 477,736

2033 320,000 153,832 473,832

2034 325,000 149,542 474,542

2035 330,000 144,857 474,857

2036 335,000 139,735 474,735

2037 340,000 134,165 474,165

2038 345,000 128,101 473,101

2039 355,000 121,430 476,430

2040 360,000 114,190 474,190

2041 370,000 106,468 476,468

2042 375,000 98,441 473,441

2043 385,000 90,213 475,213

2044 395,000 81,731 476,731

2045 400,000 73,045 473,045

2046 410,000 64,155 474,155

2047 420,000 55,004 475,004

2048 430,000 45,590 475,590

2049 440,000 35,911 475,911

2050 450,000 25,965 475,965

2051 460,000 15,750 475,750

2052 470,000 5,288 475,288

10,800,000$      3,631,630$        14,431,630$      

Series 2020A

33



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF LONG-TERM DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS

SERIES 2020B - BY YEARS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Due During Fiscal Principal Due Interest Due

Year Ending 10/15 10/15, 4/15 Total

2021 -$                       -$                       -$                       

2022 - 74,753 74,753

2023 215,000 74,753 289,753

2024 215,000 74,753 289,753

2025 215,000 74,753 289,753

2026 215,000 74,753 289,753

2027 215,000 74,677 289,677

2028 215,000 74,333 289,333

2029 215,000 73,656 288,656

2030 220,000 72,676 292,676

2031 220,000 71,367 291,367

2032 220,000 69,761 289,761

2033 225,000 67,868 292,868

2034 225,000 65,708 290,708

2035 225,000 63,345 288,345

2036 230,000 60,808 290,808

2037 230,000 58,129 288,129

2038 235,000 55,327 290,327

2039 240,000 52,381 292,381

2040 240,000 49,297 289,297

2041 245,000 46,071 291,071

2042 250,000 42,680 292,680

2043 250,000 39,155 289,155

2044 255,000 35,506 290,506

2045 260,000 31,721 291,721

2046 260,000 27,834 287,834

2047 265,000 23,843 288,843

2048 270,000 19,737 289,737

2049 275,000 15,527 290,527

2050 280,000 11,212 291,212

2051 285,000 6,790 291,790

2052 290,000 2,277 292,277

7,200,000$        1,585,445$        8,785,445$        

Series 2020B

34



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF LONG-TERM DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS

ALL BONDED DEBT SERIES - BY YEARS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

Due During Fiscal Principal Due Interest Due

Year Ending 10/15 10/15, 4/15 Total

2016 -$                  -$                  -$                  

2017 - - -

2018 - - -

2019 - - -

2020 - - -

2021 - - -

2022 775,000 593,296 1,368,296

2023 1,335,000 561,290 1,896,290

2024 930,000 536,898 1,466,898

2025 950,000 520,449 1,470,449

2026 965,000 579,226 1,544,226

2027 945,000 625,701 1,570,701

2028 990,000 580,991 1,570,991

2029 1,045,000 529,587 1,574,587

2030 1,110,000 470,967 1,580,967

2031 1,180,000 404,650 1,584,650

2032 690,000 363,423 1,053,423

2033 700,000 350,900 1,050,900

2034 710,000 337,504 1,047,504

2035 725,000 323,180 1,048,180

2036 740,000 307,913 1,047,913

2037 755,000 291,588 1,046,588

2038 775,000 274,058 1,049,058

2039 795,000 255,435 1,050,435

2040 810,000 235,763 1,045,763

2041 835,000 215,011 1,050,011

2042 855,000 193,333 1,048,333

2043 875,000 170,864 1,045,864

2044 900,000 147,561 1,047,561

2045 925,000 123,348 1,048,348

2046 945,000 98,259 1,043,259

2047 685,000 78,847 763,847

2048 700,000 65,327 765,327

2049 715,000 51,438 766,438

2050 730,000 37,177 767,177

2051 745,000 22,540 767,540

2052 760,000 7,564 767,564

26,595,000$     9,354,083$       35,949,083$     

Combined

35



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN LONG-TERM BONDED DEBT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Series Series Series Series

2016A 2016B 2020A 2020B Total

Interest rate 0.8-4.56% 4.24% 0.0-2.25% 0.0-1.57%

Dates interest payable 4/15; 10/15 4/15; 10/15 4/15; 10/15 4/15; 10/15

Maturity dates 10/15/2045 10/15/2030 10/15/2051 10/15/2051

Beginning bonds outstanding 4,420,000$  4,915,000$ -$                 -$                 9,335,000$   

Bonds sold during the fiscal year - - 10,800,000 7,200,000 18,000,000

Bonds retires during the fiscal year (105,000) (635,000) - - (740,000)

Ending Bonds Outstanding $4,315,000 $4,280,000 $10,800,000 $7,200,000 $26,595,000

Interest paid during the fiscal year $181,959 $194,186 $67,788 $29,486 $473,419

Paying agent's name and city

Series 2016A BOK Financial Tulsa, OK

Series 2016B Regions Bank Birmingham, AL

Series 2020A BOK Financial Tulsa, OK

Series 2020B BOK Financial Tulsa, OK

Bond authority: Revenue Bonds

Amount authorized $29,610,000

Amount issued $29,610,000

Remaining to be issued -

Debt Service restricted cash balances as of September 30, 2021: $7,259,226

Cash restricted for construction as of September 30, 2021: $313,604

Unspent bond funds for planning & acquisition as of September 30, 2021: $13,003,309

Average annual debt service payment (principal and interest)

     for remaining term of all debt: $1,159,648

Bond Issues

36



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - FIVE YEARS ENDED

Last Five Years

(Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited)

2021 2020 2019 2018 Restated 2017

OPERATING REVENUES

     Charges for services 3,828,706$      3,559,419$      3,509,452$  3,349,857$   3,052,742$        

     Supplemental member contributions - - - - 120,000

     Other revenues - 4,703 79,369 29,250 53,024

          Total operating revenues 3,828,706$      3,564,122$      3,588,821$  3,379,107 3,225,766

OPERATING EXPENSES

     Accounting & audit 21,975 21,435 25,042 37,557 36,963

     Analyticals 101,755 109,811 91,156 82,511 101,904

     Community relations 5,003 2,285 5,936 5,040 4,268

     Conferences & seminars 2,840 2,783 5,724 3,595 2,291

     Consulting 204,537 248,426 212,129 163,913 196,228

     Dues and memberships 8,357 7,615 7,694 2,089 1,818

     Engineering services 20,697 55,977 78,924 18,475 58,193

     Insurance 47,091 29,643 15,239 24,268 27,298

     Legal and professional fees 12,665 51,200 41,414 12,580 25,478

     Meetings 5,385 3,991 5,570 4,621 3,636

     Miscellaneous 4,606 (348) 8,692 5,120 1,791

     Office supplies & expense 12,136 5,608 2,854 50,628 12,959

     Office administrative expenses 58,471 36,329 41,949 22,270 -

     Permits 34,279 33,335 32,048 24,268 36,680

     Repairs & maintenance - equipment 28,968 51,442 29,454 33,339 15,308

     Repairs & maintenance 185,927 208,520 218,527 207,187 175,738

     Salaries, wages, payroll taxes & benefits 1,459,349 1,611,504 1,474,270 1,242,362 1,062,691

     Supplies & materials 210,412 247,328 285,627 212,358 179,122

     Travel & training 5,031 5,518 18,018 6,677 13,373

     Utilities 163,335 164,986 156,731 126,604 122,260

     Waste disposal 37,158 50,363 45,034 55,388 36,545

     Water purchase cost 180,852 241,757 318,684 357,728 280,382

     Web design and maintenance 2,667 2,258 3,655 2,335 4,621

     Depreciation 805,179 763,072 684,859 585,935 490,799

          Total operating expense 3,618,675 3,954,838 3,809,230 3,286,848 2,890,346

Operating income (loss) 210,031 (390,716) (220,409) 92,259 335,420

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

     Facility charges 1,502,606 1,192,433 1,320,980 1,148,078 1,143,681

     Minimum monthly payments 4,570,950 465,323 - - -

     Interest income 36,503 31,413 51,417 37,349 42,018

     Other income 17,147 161,532 229,103 131,580 33,397

     Gain (loss) on disposal of asset (62,676) - - - -

     Interest expense (573,021) (392,130) (419,763) (445,946) (486,992)

     Franchise fees expense (108,710) (101,350) (99,059) (91,963) (84,424)

     Special projects expense (6,858) (42,960) (268,455) (174,712) (8,870)

     Bond issuance costs (628,526) - - - -

          Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 4,747,415 1,314,261 814,223 604,386 638,810

Income (loss) before capital contributions 4,957,446 923,545 593,814 696,645 974,230

Capital contributions - 983,153 393,327 818,535 157,705

Change in net position 4,957,446$      1,906,698$      987,141$     1,515,180$   1,131,935$        

Amounts

37



(Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited)

2021 2020 2019 2018 Restated 2017

100.00% 99.9% 97.8% 99.1% 94.6%

- - - - 3.8

- 0.1 2.2 0.9 1.6

100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0

0.6 0.6 0.7 1.1 1.1

2.7 3.1 2.5 2.4 3.2

0.1 0.1 0.2 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.1 0.2 0.1 0.1

5.3 7.0 5.9 4.9 6.1

0.2 0.2 0.2 ` 0.1 0.1

0.5 1.6 2.2 0.5 1.8

1.2 0.8 0.4 0.7 0.8

0.3 1.4 1.2 0.4 0.8

0.1 0.1 0.2 0.1 0.1

0.1 (0.0) 0.2 0.2 0.1

0.3 0.2 0.1 1.5 0.4

1.5 1.0 1.2 0.7 -

0.9 0.9 0.9 0.7 1.1

0.8 1.4 0.8 1.0 0.5

4.9 5.9 6.1 6.1 5.4

38.1 45.2 41.1 36.8 32.9

5.5 6.9 8.0 6.3 5.6

0.1 0.2 0.5 0.2 0.4

4.3 4.6 4.4 3.7 3.8

1.0 1.4 1.3 1.6 1.1

4.7 6.8 8.9 10.6 8.7

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

21.0 21.4 19.1 17.3 15.2

94.5 111.0 106.1 97.3 89.6

5.5 (11.0) (6.1) 2.7 10.4

39.2 33.5 36.8 34.0 35.5

119.4 13.1 - - -

1.0 0.9 1.4 1.1 1.3

0.4 4.5 6.4 3.9 1.0

(1.6) - -

(15.0) (11.0) (11.7) (13.2) (15.1)

(2.8) (2.8) (2.8) (2.7) (2.6)

(0.2) (1.2) (7.5) (5.2) (0.3)

(16.4) - - - -

124.0 36.9 22.7 17.9 19.8

129.5 25.9 16.5 21.6 30.2-

- 27.6 11.0 25.4 4.9

129.5% 53.5% 27.5% 44.8% 35.1%

38

Percent of Fund Total Revenues



 

39 

 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

LIST OF BOARD MEMBERS, KEY PERSONNEL, AND CONSULTANTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 

 

 

Complete district mailing address: 228 Texas Ave, Ste A, New Boston, Texas 75570

District business telephone number: (903) 831-0091

Submission date of the most recent district registration form (TWC Sections 36.054 and 49.054): 1/22/2020

Limit on fees of office that a director may receive during a fiscal year: $0  

Term of Office Expense

(Elected or Appointed) Fees of Office Paid* Reimbursements Title at

or Date Hired (FYE 09/30/2021) (FYE 9/30/2021) Year End

Names:

Board Members:

Sonja Yates Hubbard (Appointed) 01/2019-12/2022 $0 $700 ** President

Tina Veal-Gooch (Appointed) 01/2019-12/2022 $0 $0 Vice President

Marshall Wood (Appointed) 01/2019-12/2022 $0 $0 ** Secretary

Van Alexander (Appointed) 04/2019-12/2022 $0 $0 ** Treasurer

Fred Milton (Appointed) 01/2019-12/2022 $0 $693 ** Past President

Key Administrative Personnel:

Kyle Dooley 4/29/2019 $213,361 *** $0 ** Executive Director

Consultants:

CobbFendley 8/20/2020 $110,837 Engineer

Cross Oak Group 3/1/2013 $60,000 Consultant

Fancher Legal, PLLC 10/15/2020 $49,202 Attorney

Garver 9/28/2021 $5,370 Engineer

Hance Scarborough, LLP 
(1)

8/1/2015 $80,596 Consultant

Hayter Engineering, Inc. 12/10/2019 $271 Engineer

Hilltop Securities 10/15/2020 $142,992 Financial Advisor

KSA Engineering, Inc. 11/12/2020 $24,346 Engineer

LJA Engineering, Inc. 6/28/2019 $2,233 Engineer

McCall Parkhurst & Horton 10/8/2020 $138,484 Bond Counsel

Meyers & Associates, LLC 8/1/2015 $40,000 Consultant

Municipal H2O 3/9/2021 $18,300 Consultant

NewGen Strategies & Solutions 5/17/2017 $27,333 Consultant

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT_______________________ 
 

40 

  

 

LIST OF BOARD MEMBERS, KEY PERSONNEL, AND CONSULTANTS (Continued) 

 

Term of Office Expense

(Elected or Appointed) Fees of Office Paid* Reimbursements Title at

or Date Hired (FYE 09/30/2021) (FYE 9/30/2021) Year End

Pape-Dawson Engineers,Inc. 4/7/2021 1,458,218 663,121 Engineer

     CDM Smith, Inc. 312,736 1,170

     Cox/McLain Environmental Consulting 3,876

     ETTL Engineers & Consultants, Inc. 9,213

     KSA 1,542

     Plus Six Engineering, LLC 3,230

     The Rios Group, Inc. 1,425

     Stokes & Associates, Inc. 323,250

     WEST Consultants, Inc. 1,729

     Ross Molina Oliveros, P.C. 5/27/2021 2,820 Attorney

Smith Weber, LLP 2/1/2014 3,672 Attorney

Susan Roth Consulting, LLC 5/22/2019 23,125 Consultant

The Glass Firm, PLLC 5/7/2021 1,733 Attorney

Wilf & Henderson, P.C. 10/19/2018 21,975 Auditor  

 

 

 

 

 

* Fees of office are amounts actually paid to a director during the District’s fiscal year.   

**Travel and mileage reimbursements. 

*** Includes monthly car and cell phone allowances. 

(1) Formerly known as Meyers & Associates, LLC 

 



Statistical Section



 

41 

Statistical Section 

 
This part of Riverbend’s comprehensive annual financial report represents detailed information as a 

context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required 

supplementary information says about Riverbend’s overall financial health.  Unless otherwise noted, the 

information in these schedules is derived from the annual comprehensive financial reports for the relevant 

year. 

 

Financial Trends – Schedule 1 through Schedule 2 - These schedules contain trend information to help 

the reader understand how Riverbend’s financial performance and well-being have changed over time. 

 

Revenue Capacity – Schedule 3 through Schedule 5 - These schedules contain information to help the 

reader assess Riverbend’s most significant revenue sources. 

 

Debt Capacity – Schedule 6 through 7 - The schedules present information to help the reader assess the 

affordability of Riverbend’s current levels of outstanding debt and Riverbend’s ability to issue additional 

debt in the future. 

 

Demographic and Economic Information – Schedule 8 through 10 - These schedules offer 

demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the environment within which 

Riverbend’s financial activities take place. 

 

Operating Information – Schedule 11 through 13 - These schedules contain service and infrastructure 

data to help the reader understand how the information in Riverbend’s financial report relates to the 

services Riverbend provides and the activities it performs. 

 

 

 



Riverbend Water Resources District
Net Position 

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Schedule 1

(Accrual Basis of Accounting)

(Unaudited)

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

Primary Government

Net investment in capital assets 9,343,889 9,614,188 8,410,684 6,604,940 2,936,607

Restricted 7,737,376 3,189,363 2,602,736 3,654,226 6,294,453

Unrestricted 2,047,240 1,367,508 1,250,941 1,018,054 530,980

Total primary government
net position 19,128,505 14,171,059 12,264,361 11,277,220 9,762,040

 42



2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

340,840 1,294 - - -

8,092,084 - - - -

197,181 50,709 163,515 319,854 430,326

8,630,105 52,003 163,515 319,854 430,326

 43



Riverbend Water Resources District
Changes in Net Position 

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Schedule 2

(Accrual Basis of Accounting)

(Unaudited)

Fiscal Year

Operating

Revenues

Operating

Expenses

Operating

Income/ 

(Loss)

Total

Nonoperating

Revenues/

(Expenses)

2012 - 201,132 (201,132) -

2013 65,000 175,834 (110,834) 362

2014 230,430 387,166 (156,736) 397

2015 217,773 329,288 (111,515) 3

2016 1,571,668 1,304,463 267,205 (34,467)

2017 3,225,766 2,890,346 335,420 638,810

2018 3,379,107 3,286,848 92,259 604,386

2019 3,588,821 3,809,230 (220,409) 814,223

2020 3,564,122 3,954,838 (390,716) 1,314,261

2021 3,828,706 3,618,675 210,031 4,747,415

44



Income/(Loss)

Before 

Capital

Contributions

Extraordinary

Items/

Capital

Contributions

Change

In Net

Position

(201,132) - (201,132)

(110,472) - (110,472)

(156,339) - (156,339)

(111,512) - (111,512)

232,738 8,345,364 8,578,102

974,230 157,705 1,131,935

696,645 818,535 1,515,180

593,814 393,327 987,141

923,545 983,153 1,906,698

4,957,446 - 4,957,446

45



Riverbend Water Resources District
Operating Revenues by Source

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Schedule 3

(Accrual Basis of Accounting)

(Unaudited)

Fiscal Year

Member City

Fees

Water 

Sales

Wastewater

Treatment

Industrial

Wastewater

Treatment

2012 - - - -

2013 - - - -

2014 230,430 - - -

2015 202,773 - - -

2016 465,443 360,846 421,053 342,431

2017 354,002 924,099 1,023,161 855,104

2018 197,728 1,031,353 1,110,177 968,166

2019 197,608 1,005,286 1,274,830 1,031,728

2020 180,842 1,094,339 1,187,955 1,096,283

2021 204,635 1,205,520 1,268,263 1,149,886

46



Other Total

- -

65,000 65,000

25,000 255,430

15,000 217,773

251,305 1,841,078

33,397 3,189,763

29,250 3,336,674

79,369 3,588,821

4,703 3,564,122

402 3,828,706

47



Riverbend Water Resources District
Operating Expenses

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Schedule 4

(Accrual Basis of Accounting)

(Unaudited)

Fiscal Year Administrative

Operation

and

Maintenance Depreciation

Total

Operating

Expenses

2012 16,253 - - 16,253

2013 175,834 - - 175,834

2014 387,166 - - 387,166

2015 329,220 - 68 329,288

2016 287,886 817,895 198,682 1,304,463

2017 366,940 2,032,607 490,799 2,890,346

2018 314,163 2,386,750 585,935 3,286,848

2019 555,376 2,568,995 684,859 3,809,230

2020 490,846 2,700,920 763,072 3,954,838

2021 413,712 2,399,784 805,179 3,618,675

48



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT
FIVE LARGEST CUSTOMERS

Current Year and Five Years Ago

Schedule 5

(Unaudited)

CUSTOMER AMOUNT PERCENTAGE RANK AMOUNT PERCENTAGE RANK

Red River Army Depot 1,522,523 95.65% 1 3,850,706 96.33% 1

REG New Boston 42,195 2.65% 2 62,609 1.57% 2

Day & Zimmermann 9,503 0.60% 3 29,068 0.73% 3

Oak Grove Apartments 4,471 0.28% 4 12,350 0.31% 4

TAZKID 2,091 0.13% 5

Excel Utility Construction Inc 6,176 0.15% 5

Harrison Walker & Harper LP

SUBTOTAL

(5 LARGEST) 1,580,783 99.31% 3,960,909 99.09%

Balance from other

customers 10,984 0.69% 36,558 0.91%

1,591,767 100.00% 3,997,467 100.00%

CUSTOMER AMOUNT PERCENTAGE RANK AMOUNT PERCENTAGE RANK

Red River Army Depot 4,135,295 87.90% 1 4,214,777 91.58% 1

Day & Zimmermann 322,955 6.86% 2 273,212 5.94% 2

REG New Boston 142,711 3.03% 3

Oak Grove Apartments 17,827 0.38% 4 16,561 0.36% 4

Expal USA, Inc. 20,713 0.44% 5

City of Maud 22,069 0.48% 3

IsoNova Technologies 11,254 0.24% 5

SUBTOTAL

(5 LARGEST) 4,639,501 98.61% 4,537,873 98.60%

Balance from other

customers 65,280 1.39% 64,289 1.40%

4,704,781 100.00% 4,602,162 100.00%

Note:  Receipts from customers may include expense reimbursement and project admin fees

FISCAL YEAR 2020

WATER REVENUE

WATER REVENUE WATER REVENUE

WATER REVENUE

FISCAL YEAR 2016 FISCAL YEAR 2017

FISCAL YEAR 2019

49



AMOUNT PERCENTAGE RANK

3,987,717 92.89% 1

128,649 3.00% 2

51,912 1.21% 3

12,580 0.29% 5

16,544 0.39% 4

4,197,402 97.78%

95,408 2.22%

4,292,810 100.00%

AMOUNT PERCENTAGE RANK

4,797,201 92.47% 1

226,406 4.36% 2

15,711 0.30% 5

19,451 0.37% 4

44,314 0.85% 3

5,103,083 98.37%

84,507 1.63%

5,187,590 100.00%

WATER REVENUE

WATER REVENUE

FISCAL YEAR 2018

FISCAL YEAR 2021

50



Riverbend Water Resources District
Ratio of Outstanding Debt by Type

Last Six Fiscal Years

Schedule 6

(Unaudited)

Fiscal Year Revenue Bonds

Personal

Income

Percentage of

Personal Income Population

Debt  per

Capita

2016 11,610,000 1,506,238,302 0.77% 64,172 181

2017 11,375,000 1,533,407,018 0.74% 64,141 177

2018 10,725,000 1,590,795,022 0.67% 64,365 167

2019 10,045,000 1,727,772,490 0.58% 64,335 156

2020 9,335,000 N/A N/A N/A N/A

2021 26,595,000 N/A N/A N/A N/A

N/A-Not Available

51



Riverbend Water Resources District
Pledged Revenue Coverage

Last Five Fiscal Years

Schedule 7

(Unaudited)

Less:

Operating

Expenses * Minimum Net

Fiscal 

Year

Operating

Revenues *

(Excluding

Depreciation)

Facility

Charges *

Monthly

Payments**

Available

Funds

2017 2,853,652 2,032,607 1,143,681 1,964,726

2018 3,160,903 2,386,750 1,148,078 1,922,231

2019 3,318,372 2,568,992 1,320,980 2,070,360

2020 3,383,280 2,700,920 1,192,433 465,323 2,340,116

2021 3,624,071 2,813,496 1,502,606 4,570,950 6,884,131

* Wet Fund Revenue and Expenses

** Facility Fund Minimum Monthly Payments per Water Supply Contracts

52



Principal Interest Total

Coverage

Ratio

235,000 219,458 454,458 4.32

650,000 457,171 1,107,171 1.74

680,000 431,750 1,111,750 1.86

710,000 404,879 1,114,879 2.10

740,000 473,419 1,213,419 5.67

Debt Service

53



Riverbend Water Resources District
Demographic and Economic Statistics

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Schedule 8 (Continued)

(Unaudited)

Annona, TX - Red River County

Fiscal Per Capita Personal

Year Population 
1

Income 
2 Income City 

2
State 

3

2010 315 12,135 3,822,525 3.0% 8.1%

2011 310 13,865 4,298,150 2.2% 7.8%

2012 311 13,225 4,112,975 7.0% 6.7%

2013 305 12,968 3,955,240 9.3% 6.3%

2014 303 14,537 4,404,711 10.7% 5.1%

2015 298 12,201 3,635,898 15.1% 4.4%

2016 293 12,738 3,732,234 9.7% 4.3%

2017 295 12,378 3,651,510 17.1% 4.3%

2018 291 13,844 4,028,604 15.7% 3.9%

2019 293 16,170 4,737,810 N/A 3.4%

2020 295 N/A - N/A 6.9%

2021 317 N/A - N/A 5.4%

Atlanta, TX - Cass County

Fiscal Per Capita Personal

Year Population 
1

Income 
2 Income City 

2
State 

3

2010 5,655 19,129 108,174,495 8.1% 8.1%

2011 5,622 17,988 101,128,536 7.6% 7.8%

2012 5,563 17,692 98,420,596 14.5% 6.7%

2013 5,578 19,568 109,150,304 16.6% 6.3%

2014 5,543 19,747 109,457,621 14.6% 5.1%

2015 5,539 20,318 112,541,402 10.2% 4.4%

2016 5,525 22,287 123,135,675 9.3% 4.3%

2017 5,484 22,821 125,150,364 3.7% 4.3%

2018 5,515 22,217 122,526,755 8.1% 3.9%

2019 5,474 25,779 141,114,246 N/A 3.4%

2020 5,433 N/A - N/A 6.9%

2021 5,432 N/A - N/A 5.4%

1-http://worldpopulationreview.com/us-cities

2-https://factfinder.census.gov

Unemployment Rate

Unemployment Rate

2019 - https://www.city-data.com

3-https://www.statista.com/statistics/190726/unemployment-rate-in-texas-since-1992/

N/A-Not Available

54



Riverbend Water Resources District
Demographic and Economic Statistics

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Schedule 8 (Continued)

(Unaudited)

Avery, TX - Red River County

Fiscal Per Capita Personal

Year Population 
1

Income 
2 Income City 

2
State 

3

2012 470 14,658 6,889,260 2.2% 6.7%

2013 461 15,645 7,212,345 0.0% 6.3%

2014 460 16,920 7,783,200 0.0% 5.1%

2015 456 17,026 7,763,856 0.0% 4.4%

2016 451 17,777 8,017,427 7.5% 4.3%

2017 450 19,281 8,676,450 8.0% 4.3%

2018 450 17,580 7,911,000 7.1% 3.9%

2019 450 23,516 10,582,200 N/A 3.4%

2020 450 N/A N/A N/A 6.9%

2021 415 N/A N/A N/A 5.4%

DeKalb, TX - Bowie County

Fiscal Per Capita Personal

Year Population 
1

Income 
2 Income City 

2
State 

3

2012 1,657 17,404 28,838,428 14.7% 6.7%

2013 1,659 16,764 27,811,476 12.8% 6.3%

2014 1,658 21,362 35,418,196 9.8% 5.1%

2015 1,651 21,560 35,595,560 7.4% 4.4%

2016 1,639 26,101 42,779,539 8.0% 4.3%

2017 1,628 26,769 43,579,932 3.9% 4.3%

2018 1,622 26,798 43,466,356 7 3.9%

2019 1,611 25,465 41,024,115 N/A 3.4%

2020 1,600 N/A N/A N/A 6.9%

2021 1,687 N/A N/A N/A 5.4%

1-http://worldpopulationreview.com/us-cities

2-https://factfinder.census.gov

    2019 https://censusreporter.org and https://city-data.com

3-https://www.statista.com/statistics/190726/unemployment-rate-in-texas-since-1992/

N/A-Not Available

Unemployment Rate

Unemployment Rate

55



Riverbend Water Resources District
Demographic and Economic Statistics

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Schedule 8 (Continued)

(Unaudited)

Hooks, TX - Bowie County

Fiscal Per Capita Personal

Year Population 
1

Income 
2 Income City 

2
State 

3

2012 2,742 17,859 48,969,378 2.0% 6.7%

2013 2,764 18,021 49,810,044 2.5% 6.3%

2014 2,755 17,159 47,273,045 5.0% 5.1%

2015 2,750 15,238 41,904,500 6.0% 4.4%

2016 2,749 15,440 42,444,560 6.0% 4.3%

2017 2,747 18,381 50,492,607 4.7% 4.3%

2018 2,746 19,669 54,011,074 6.6% 3.9%

2019 2,744 21,541 59,108,504 N/A 3.4%

2020 2,742 N/A N/A N/A 6.9%

2021 2,749 N/A N/A N/A 5.4%

Leary, TX - Bowie County

Fiscal Per Capita Personal

Year Population 
1

Income 
2 Income City 

2
State 

3

2012 483 20,666 9,981,678 4.4% 6.7%

2013 486 23,372 11,358,792 5.1% 6.3%

2014 486 24,333 11,825,838 5.8% 5.1%

2015 488 23,812 11,620,256 8.5% 4.4%

2016 491 23,731 11,651,921 6.9% 4.3%

2017 492 22,339 10,990,788 6.8% 4.3%

2018 496 20,701 10,267,696 5.8% 3.9%

2019 497 22,620 11,242,140 N/A 3.4%

2020 498 N/A N/A N/A 6.9%

2021 692 N/A N/A N/A 5.4%

1-http://worldpopulationreview.com/us-cities

2-https://factfinder.census.gov

3-https://www.statista.com/statistics/190726/unemployment-rate-in-texas-since-1992/

N/A-Not Available

Unemployment Rate

Unemployment Rate

56



Riverbend Water Resources District
Demographic and Economic Statistics

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Schedule 8 (Continued)

(Unaudited)

Maud, TX - Bowie County

Fiscal Per Capita Personal

Year Population 
1

Income 
2 Income City 

2
State 

3

2012 1,060 18,863 19,994,780 7.4% 6.7%

2013 1,065 19,045 20,282,925 7.2% 6.3%

2014 1,065 15,745 16,768,425 10.2% 5.1%

2015 1,071 16,965 18,169,515 9.0% 4.4%

2016 1,069 17,132 18,314,108 5.2% 4.3%

2017 1,067 19,638 20,953,746 6.6% 4.3%

2018 1,068 22,246 23,758,728 6.3% 3.9%

2019 1,066 21,717 23,150,322 N/A 3.4%

2020 1,064 N/A - N/A 6.9%

2021 1,040 N/A - N/A 5.4%

Nash, TX - Bowie County

Fiscal Per Capita Personal

Year Population 
1

Income 
2 Income City 

2
State 

3

2012 3,054 26,317 80,372,118 6.9% 6.7%

2013 3,100 23,578 73,091,800 9.8% 6.3%

2014 3,158 23,414 73,941,412 8.5% 5.1%

2015 3,159 23,942 75,632,778 8.7% 4.4%

2016 3,348 26,031 87,151,788 6.6% 4.3%

2017 3,415 15,982 54,578,530 3.4% 4.3%

2018 3,681 17,499 64,413,819 N/A 3.9%

2019 3,748 18,584 69,652,832 N/A 3.4%

2020 3,815 N/A - N/A 6.9%

2021 3,156 N/A - N/A 5.4%

1-http://worldpopulationreview.com/us-cities

2-https://factfinder.census.gov

2019 - https://www.city-data.com

3-https://www.statista.com/statistics/190726/unemployment-rate-in-texas-since-1992/

N/A-Not Available

Unemployment Rate

Unemployment Rate

57



Riverbend Water Resources District
Demographic and Economic Statistics

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Schedule 8 (Continued)

(Unaudited)

New Boston, TX - Bowie County

Fiscal Per Capita Personal

Year Population 
1

Income 
2 Income City 

2
State 

3

2012 4,759 17,669 84,086,771 10.8% 6.7%

2013 4,763 18,230 86,829,490 11.4% 6.3%

2014 4,723 17,659 83,403,457 11.6% 5.1%

2015 4,689 17,493 82,024,677 9.0% 4.4%

2016 4,684 17,853 83,623,452 7.1% 4.3%

2017 4,688 19,614 91,950,432 9.7% 4.3%

2018 4,678 22,411 104,838,658 9.2% 3.9%

2019 4,682 23,828 111,562,696 N/A 3.4%

2020 4,686 N/A - N/A 6.9%

2021 4,720 N/A - N/A 5.4%

Redwater, TX - Bowie County

Fiscal Per Capita Personal

Year Population 
1

Income 
2 Income City 

2
State 

3

2010 1,057 19,391 20,496,287 8.5% 8.1%

2011 1,056 20,077 21,201,312 4.7% 7.8%

2012 1,056 21,241 22,430,496 5.7% 6.7%

2013 1,068 19,593 20,925,324 8.7% 6.3%

2014 1,069 21,410 22,887,290 5.2% 5.1%

2015 1,081 20,570 22,236,170 6.2% 4.4%

2016 1,087 20,586 22,376,982 5.9% 4.3%

2017 1,093 20,181 22,057,833 7.4% 4.3%

2018 1,098 23,959 26,306,982 3.9% 3.9%

2019 1,104 22,181 24,487,824 N/A 3.4%

2020 1,110 N/A - N/A 6.9%

2021 1,268 N/A - N/A 5.4%

1-2012-2020 http://worldpopulationreview.com/us-cities

   2021 https://www.areavibes.com

2-https://factfinder.census.gov

    2019 https://www.city-data.com

3-https://www.statista.com/statistics/190726/unemployment-rate-in-texas-since-1992/

N/A-Not Available

Unemployment Rate

Unemployment Rate

58



Riverbend Water Resources District
Demographic and Economic Statistics

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Scheduled 8 (Continued)

(Unaudited)

Texarkana, TX - Bowie County

Fiscal Per Capita Personal

Year Population 
1

Income 
2 Income City 

2
State 

3

2012 37,057 22,892 848,308,844 12.8% 6.7%

2013 37,209 23,569 876,978,921 11.8% 6.3%

2014 37,126 23,973 890,021,598 10.3% 5.1%

2015 37,182 23,505 873,962,910 10.4% 4.4%

2016 37,402 25,238 943,951,676 9.6% 4.3%

2017 37,350 26,019 971,809,650 8.9% 4.3%

2018 37,295 26,730 996,895,350 9.0% 3.9%

2019 37,243 28,872 1,075,279,896 N/A 3.4%

2020 37,191 N/A - N/A 6.9%

2021 37,389 N/A - N/A 5.4%

Wake Village, TX - Bowie County

Fiscal Per Capita Personal

Year Population 
1

Income 
2 Income City 

2
State 

3

2012 5,454 25,948 141,520,392 5.1% 6.7%

2013 5,467 26,149 142,956,583 4.3% 6.3%

2014 5,454 24,683 134,621,082 5.0% 5.1%

2015 5,449 21,884 119,245,916 5.5% 4.4%

2016 5,434 21,910 119,058,940 7.2% 4.3%

2017 5,432 23,843 129,515,176 5.3% 4.3%

2018 5,425 24,400 132,370,000 3.9% 3.9%

2019 5,423 28,735 155,829,905 N/A 3.4%

2020 5,421 N/A - N/A 6.9%

2021 5,481 N/A - N/A 5.4%

1-http://worldpopulationreview.com/us-cities

2-https://factfinder.census.gov

    2019 https://www.city-data.com

3-https://www.statista.com/statistics/190726/unemployment-rate-in-texas-since-1992/

N/A-Not Available

Unemployment Rate

Unemployment Rate

59



Riverbend Water Resources District
Demographic and Economic Statistics

 Last Ten Fiscal Years

Schedule 8 (Continued)

(Unaudited)

Total All Members

Fiscal Per Capita Personal

Year Population Income Income

2012 63,666 21,894 1,393,925,716

2013 63,925 22,376 1,430,363,244

2014 63,800 22,536 1,437,805,875

2015 63,813 22,007 1,404,333,438

2016 64,172 23,472 1,506,238,302

2017 64,141 23,907 1,533,407,018

2018 64,365 24,715 1,590,795,022

2019 64,335 26,856 1,727,772,490

2020 64,305 N/A N/A

2021 64,346 N/A N/A

60



Riverbend Water Resources District
Percentage of Member Counties in RWRD 

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Schedule 9

(Unaudited)

Member City

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Central Bowie Water Supply Corporation
 1

- - - - -

DeKalb, TX 1,657 1,659 1,658 1,651 1,639

Hooks, TX 2,742 2,764 2,755 2,750 2,749

Leary, TX 483 486 486 488 491

Maud, TX 1,060 1,065 1,065 1,071 1,069

Nash, TX 3,054 3,100 3,158 3,159 3,348

New Boston, TX 4,759 4,763 4,723 4,689 4,684

Oak Grove Water Supply Corporation
 1

- - - - -

Redwater, TX 1,056 1,068 1,069 1,081 1,087

Texarkana, TX 37,057 37,209 37,126 37,182 37,402

Wake Village, TX 5,454 5,467 5,454 5,449 5,434

57,322 57,581 57,494 57,520 57,903

Bowie County 
2

93,129 93,487 93,502 93,494 93,994

Percentage of Bowie County in RWRD 61.55% 61.59% 61.49% 61.52% 61.60%

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Atlanta, TX 5,563 5,578 5,543 5,539 5,525

Cass County 
2

30,029 30,236 30,121 30,141 30,073

Percentage of Cass County in RWRD 18.53% 18.45% 18.40% 18.38% 18.37%

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Annona, TX 311 305 303 298 293

Avery, TX 470 461 460 456 451

781 766 763 754 744

Red River County 
2

12,729 12,496 12,452 12,355 12,190

Percentage of Red River County in RWRD 6.14% 6.13% 6.13% 6.10% 6.10%

N/A-Not Available

1-https://tceq.texas.gov

2-https://txcip.org/tac/census/morecountyinfo.php

Population

61



2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

- - - 8,748 8,748

1,628 1,622 1,611 1,600 1,687

2,747 2,746 2,744 2,742 2,749

492 496 497 498 692

1,067 1,068 1,066 1,064 1,040

3,415 3,681 3,748 3,815 3,156

4,688 4,678 4,682 4,686 4,720

- - - 831 909

1,093 1,098 1,104 1,110 1,268

37,350 37,295 37,243 37,191 37,389

5,432 5,425 5,423 5,421 5,481

57,912 58,109 58,118 67,706 67,839

93,977 94,324 93,245 92,893 N/A

61.62% 61.61% 62.33% 72.89% N/A

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

5,484 5,515 5,474 5,433 5,433

29,980 30,119 30,026 28,454 N/A

18.29% 18.31% 18.23% 19.09% N/A

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

295 291 293 295 295

450 450 450 450 450

745 741 743 745 745

12,203 12,175 12,023 11,587 N/A

6.11% 6.09% 6.18% 6.43% N/A

62



Riverbend Water Resources District
Principal Employers

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

Schedule 10

(Unaudited)

2021 2012

Employer Employees Rank

Percentage

of Total

Employment Employees Rank

Percentage

of Total

Employment

Red River Army Depot & Tenants 3,887 1 7.82% 6,000 1 11.43%

CHRISTUS St. Michael Health System 2,450 2 4.93% 1,900 2 3.62%

Texarkana, TX Independent School District 1,200 3 2.41% 795 5 1.51%

Graphic Packaging (formerly International Paper) 840 4 1.69% 925 3 1.76%

Walmart Department Stores 655 5 1.32% 660 6 1.26%

DLA Distribution 623 6 1.25%

Wadley Regional Medical 620 7 1.25% 850 4 1.62%

10,275 20.66% 11,130 21.20%

Source:

Texarkana Chamber of Commerce, Texas Workforce Commission LMI

Notes:

(1) Employment for Bowie, Cass and Red River Counties for 2021 is 51,897

(2) Employment for Bowie, Cass and Red River Counties for 2012 is 52,556

63



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT
Operating Indicators by Function

Last Ten Years

Schedule 11

(Unaudited)

Water 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Avg. Gallons of Water Consumed (MGD) - - - - 0.726

Number of Water Meters - - - - 82

Wastewater

Average Gallons of Domestic Wastewater Treated (MGD) - - - - 0.499

Industrial Wastewater

Average Gallons of Industrial Wastewater Treated (MGD) - - - - 0.192

64



2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

0.958 0.711 0.737 0.810 0.763

78 78 80 97 99

0.456 0.514 0.536 0.589 0.490

0.184 0.172 0.198 0.210 0.174

65



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT
Operating Indicators by Function

Full Time Employees as of September 30

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Schedule 12

(Unaudited)

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Administration 1 1 1 1 4 4 4 4 4 4

Water - - - - 5 5 5 6 4 4

Wastewater - - - - 2 4 4 3 4 4

Industrial Wastewater - - - - 3 1 2 3 4 4

Totals 1 1 1 1 14 14 15 16 16 16

Note:  Some personnel perform more than one function 

and the manpower is split accordingly

66



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT
Capital Asset Statistics by Function

Last Ten Years

Schedule 13

(Unaudited)

Water 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

500,000 Gallon Elevated Storage Tank - - - - 1

500,000 Gallon Ground Water Storage Tank - - - - 0

Miles of Water Line - - - - 83

Fire Hydrants - - - - 313

Water Meters - - - - 82

Water Valves - - - - 883

Wastewater

1.5 MG SBR Plant - - - - 1

Miles of Wastewater Line - - - - 35

Manholes - - - - 477

Lift Stations - - - - 32

Air Relief Valves - - - - 30

Wastewater Meters - - - - 65

Industrial Wastewater

750,000 Gallon Industrial Wastewater Plant - - - - 1

Miles of Industrial Wastewater Line - - - - 5

67



2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

1 1 1 1 1

0 0 2 2 2

83 135 135 137 137

313 375 375 368 373

78 78 80 97 99

921 1151 1151 1141 1150

1 1 1 1 1

35 35 35 38 38

477 477 477 513 513

32 32 32 34 34

30 30 30 30 30

65 72 79 72 72

1 1 1 1 1

5 5 5 5 5

68



Single Audit Section



















REGULAR CALLED MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  
WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 26, 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM VI. E. 

RWRD RESO 20220126-05 

FY 2022 First Quarter Financials 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

155



 
 

RIVERBEND RESOLUTION NO. 20220126-05 

 

APPROVING THE FIRST QUARTER FY 2022 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS   

 

 

 WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District is a conservation and reclamation 

district created under and essential to accomplish the purposes of Section 59 Article XVI, Texas 

Constitution, existing pursuant to and having the powers set forth in Chapter 9601 of the Special 

District Local Laws Code of the State of Texas; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District staff prepares and presents quarterly 

financial statements, which provide for the fiduciary guidance of Riverbend Water Resources 

funds. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Riverbend Water Resources District 

Board of Directors accepts and approves the Fourth Quarter FY 2022 financials. 

 

 PASSED and APPROVED this 26th day of January 2022 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Tina Veal Gooch, President 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

Fred Milton, Secretary 

 

 

 

 

Attached: First Quarter FY 2022 Financials 

156



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

December 31, 2021

Regional Water System Regional Water System Wet Utilities

Administration Fund Facilities Fund Fund Total

ASSETS

Current assets: 

     Cash 190,941$               -$                           899,162$            1,090,103$        

     Accounts receivable 26,231 230,087 1,260,593 1,516,911

     Due from other fund 11,840 - 49,266 61,106

     Restricted assets:

          Cash restricted for bond debt reserves - 766,610 1,121,686 1,888,296

          Cash restricted for construction - bond proceeds - 10,058,276 37,212 10,095,488

          Cash restricted for operations - - 901,376 901,376

Prepaid expenses - - 94,139 94,139

Inventory - - 78,716 78,716

          Total current assets 229,012 11,054,973 4,442,150 15,726,135

Noncurrent assets:

     Cash and cash equivalents - restricted for bond debt reserves - 4,967,094 865,971 5,833,065

Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation):

     Equipment - - 396,569 396,569

     Utility system - - 15,883,541 15,883,541

     Intangible assets - - 283,174 283,174

     Construction in progress - 10,335,604 1,158,685 11,494,289

     Total capital assets - 15,302,698 18,587,940 33,890,638

          Total noncurrent assets - 15,302,698 18,587,940 33,890,638

TOTAL ASSETS 229,012 26,357,671 23,030,090 49,616,773

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:

     Accounts payable 4,185 3,012,578 80,141 3,096,904

     Retainage payable - - 19,000 19,000

     Payroll liabilities - - 46,770 46,770

     Due to other fund (49,266) 11,840 - (37,426)

     Due to Region D Planning 41,138 - - 41,138

     Accrued interest payable - 51,377 68,985 120,362

     Accrued compensated absences - current - - 19,186 19,186

     Revenue bonds payable - current - 520,000 775,000 1,295,000

          Total current liabilities (3,943) 3,595,795 1,009,082 4,600,934

Noncurrent liabilities:

     Accrued compensated absences - long term - - 55,209 55,209

     Revenue bonds payable - long term - 17,480,000 7,045,000 24,525,000

          Total noncurrent liabilities - 17,480,000 7,100,209 24,580,209

TOTAL LIABILITES (3,943) 21,075,795 8,109,291 29,181,143

NET POSITION

     Net investment in capital assets - (634,198) 10,800,463 10,166,265

     Restricted for bond reserves - 5,912,414 1,989,048 7,901,462

     Restricted for construction - 3,661 37,212 40,873

     Unrestricted 134,423 - 2,022,503 2,156,926

TOTAL NET POSITION 134,423$               5,281,877$            14,849,226$       20,265,526$      

157



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

For the Three Months Ended December 31, 2021
Regional Water System Regional Water System Wet Utilities

Administration Fund Facilities Fund Fund Total

OPERATING REVENUES

     Charges for services:

          Member fees 49,865$                 -$                          -$                 49,865$        

          Army volumetric charge - - 811,639 811,639

          Army water supply charge - - 60,619 60,619

          Commercial & residential charge - - 25,950 25,950

          Total operating revenues 49,865 - 898,208 948,073

OPERATING EXPENSES

     Accounting & audit - - - -

     Analyticals - - 26,556 26,556

     Capital replacement - - 109,623 109,623

     Community relations 1,149 - - 1,149

     Conferences & seminars 600 - - 600

     Consulting 46,531 - 22,872 69,403

     Dues & memberships 931 - - 931

     Engineering services 405 - - 405

     Equipment maintenance, repair & fuel - - 9,013 9,013

     Equipment rental - - 343 343

     Insurance - - 12,287 12,287

     Legal & professional fees 7,876 - - 7,876

     Materials - - 30,252 30,252

     Meetings expense 853 - - 853

     Military affairs 2,750 - - 2,750

     Miscellaneous 398 - - 398

     Office supplies and expense 36 - - 36

     Permits - - 20,036 20,036

     Repairs - - 38,551 38,551

     Salaries, wages, payroll taxes & benefits 48,898 - 263,218 312,116

     Supplies & materials - 10,249 10,249

     Travel & training 3,523 - 3,523

     Utilities - - 29,853 29,853

     Waste disposal - - 11,663 11,663

     Water purchase cost - - 77,174 77,174

     Web design & maintenance 830 - - 830

     Regional Water System capital outlay - 3,665,345 - 3,665,345

     Overhead allocation - water - - 51,581 51,581

     Overhead allocation - wastewater - - 56,062 56,062

     Overhead allocation - industrial wastewater - - 56,523 56,523

          Total operating expenses 114,780 3,665,345 825,856 4,605,981

Operating income (loss) before depreciation (64,915) (3,665,345) 72,352 (3,657,908)
     Depreciation - - 202,611 202,611
Operating income (loss) before bond proceeds (64,915) (3,665,345) (130,259) (3,860,519)
     Bond Proceeds - 3,665,345 - 3,665,345
Operating income (loss) (64,915) - (130,259) (195,174)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

     Facility charges revenue - - 355,060 355,060

     Minimum monthly payments - 1,107,954 - 1,107,954

     Interest revenue 32 14,281 4,690 19,003

     Project admin fees - - 22,854 22,854

     Interest expense - (61,652) (84,078) (145,730)

     Franchise fees expense - - (26,946) (26,946)

     Special projects expense - - - -

          Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 32 1,060,583 271,580 1,332,195

Income (loss) before capital contributions and transfers (64,883) 1,060,583 141,321 1,137,021

Transfers in (out) - - - -

Changes in net position (64,883) 1,060,583 141,321 1,137,021

Net position, beginning of year 199,306 4,221,294 14,707,905 19,128,505

Net position, end of year 134,423$               5,281,877$            14,849,226$ 20,265,526$ 

158



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

REGIONAL WATER SYSTEM ADMINISTRATION

For the Three Months Ended December 31, 2021

Variance with % of

Budget Actual Budget Budget

OPERATING REVENUES

     Charges for services 203,928$       49,865$         (154,063)$      24.45%

     Total operating revenues 203,928 49,865 (154,063) 24.45%

OPERATING EXPENSES

     Accounting & audit 4,500 - 4,500 0.00%

     Advertising 1,400 - 1,400 0.00%

     Community relations 8,000 1,149 6,851 14.36%

     Conferences & seminars 4,700 600 4,100 12.77%

     Consulting 200,000 46,531 153,469 23.27%

     Dues & memberships 7,883 931 6,952 11.81%

     Engineering services 130,000 405 129,595 0.31%

     Legal & professional fees 27,500 7,876 19,624 28.64%

     Meetings expense 6,000 853 5,147 14.22%

     Military affairs 11,000 2,750 8,250 25.00%

     Miscellaneous - - 0.00%

     Office supplies & expense 3,300 36 3,264 1.09%

     Salaries, wages & benefits 163,447 48,898 114,549 29.92%

     Subscriptions 400 398 2 99.50%

     Travel & training 18,000 3,523 14,477 19.57%

     Web design & maintenance 4,000 830 3,170 20.75%

          Total operating expenses 590,130 114,780 475,350 19.45%

Operating income (loss) (386,202) (64,915) (321,287) 16.81%

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

     Interest Revenue - 32 32

     Special projects expense (50,000) - 50,000 0.00%

     Use of prior year equity 200,529 - (200,529) 0.00%

          Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 150,529 32 (150,497) -0.02%

Income (loss) before transfers (235,673) (64,883) 170,790 27.53%

Transfer in 230,000 - (230,000) 0.00%

Change in net position (5,673) (64,883) (59,210)

Net position, beginning of year 199,306 199,306 - 100.00%

Net position, end of year 193,633$       134,423$       (59,210) 69.42%

159



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

REGIONAL WATER SYSTEM FACILITIES FUND

For the Three Months Ended December 31, 2021

Variance with % of

Budget Actual Budget Budget

OPERATING EXPENSES

      Expenses

Design 1,000,000$      -$               (1,000,000)$        0.00%

Planning 1,131,459 2,227,179 1,095,720 196.84%

Application 20,000 - (20,000) 0.00%

Construction 60,000,000 - (60,000,000) 0.00%

Construction Engineering 1,000,000 - (1,000,000) 0.00%

Environmental 12,881,366 129,303 (12,752,063) 1.00%

Geotechnical 487,031 323,556 (163,475) 66.43%

Project Mangement 864,567 948,692 84,125 109.73%

Surveying 582,395 28,876 (553,519) 4.96%

Water Distribution Modeling 40,000 - (40,000) 0.00%

Bond Counsel 250,750 - (250,750) 0.00%

Capitalized Interest 4,500,000 - (4,500,000) 0.00%

Financial Advisor 250,000 - (250,000) 0.00%

Fiscal/Legal 17,467 - (17,467) 0.00%

Issuance Costs 24,892 - (24,892) 0.00%

 Administration 70,000 - (70,000) 0.00%

Land/Easements Acquisition 925,000 7,739 (917,261) 0.84%

Project Legal Expenses 140,000 - (140,000) 0.00%

Contingency 19,706,278 - (19,706,278) 0.00%

Total operating expenses 103,891,205 3,665,345 (100,225,860) 3.53%

Operating income (loss) before bond proceeds (103,891,205) (3,665,345) 100,225,860 (0)

-

Bond Proceeds 103,891,205 3,665,345 (100,225,860) 3.53%

Operating income (loss) - - - -

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

     Minimum monthly payments 4,296,050 1,107,954 (3,188,096) 25.79%

     Interest Revenue 85,000 14,281 (70,719) 16.80%

     Interest Expense (743,455) (61,653) 681,802 8.29%

     Bond Issuance Costs (2,380,000) - 2,380,000 0.00%

         Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 1,257,595 1,060,582 (197,013) 84.33%

Change in net position 1,257,595 1,060,582 (197,013) 84.33%

Net position, beginning of year 4,221,294$      4,221,294 - 100.00%

Net position, end of year 5,478,889$      5,281,876$    (197,013)$           96.40%

160



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

WET UTILITIES FUND

For the Three Months Ended December 31, 2021

Variance with % of

Budget Actual Budget Budget

OPERATING REVENUES

     Charges for services 3,763,387$            898,208$          (2,865,179)$  23.87%

     Total operating revenues 3,763,387 898,208 (2,865,179) 23.87%

OPERATING EXPENSES

     Analytical 150,000 26,556 123,444 17.70%

     Capital replacement 286,350 109,623 176,727 38.28%

     Consulting 60,000 22,872 37,128 38.12%

     Equipment maintenance, repair & fuel 43,000 9,013 33,987 20.96%

     Equipment rental 11,000 343 10,657 3.12%

     Insurance 48,299 12,287 36,012 25.44%

     Materials 233,000 30,252 202,748 12.98%

     Permits 55,000 20,036 34,964 36.43%

     Repairs 319,000 38,551 280,449 12.08%

     Salaries, wages, payroll taxes & benefits 1,109,984 263,218 846,766 23.71%

     Supplies & materials 51,700 10,249 41,451 19.82%

     Utilities 188,000 29,853 158,147 15.88%

     Waste disposal 70,000 11,663 58,337 16.66%

     Water purchase cost 307,663 77,174 230,489 25.08%

     Overhead allocation - water 201,017 51,581 149,437 25.66%

     Overhead allocation - wastewater 218,350 56,062 162,288 25.68%

     Overhead allocation - industrial wastewater 220,206 56,523 163,683 25.67%

          Total operating expenses 3,572,569 825,856 2,746,713 23.12%

Operating income (loss) before depreciation 190,818 72,352 (118,466) 37.92%

Depreciation 799,500 202,611 596,889 25.34%

Operating income (loss) (608,682) (130,259) 478,423 -21.40%

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

     Facility charges revenues 1,489,957 355,060 (1,134,897) 23.83%

     Interest revenue 14,000 4,690 (9,310) 33.50%

     Project Admin Fees 34,600 22,854 (11,746) 66.05%

     Interest expense (512,157) (84,078) 428,079 16.42%

     Franchise fees expense (114,147) (26,946) 87,201 23.61%

         Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 912,253 271,580 (640,673) 29.77%

Income (loss) before capital contributions and transfers 303,571 141,321 (162,250) 46.55%

Transfers in (out) (230,000) - 230,000 0.00%

Change in net position 73,571 141,321 67,750 192.09%

Net position, beginning of year 14,707,905 14,707,905 - 100.00%

Net position, end of year 14,781,476$          14,849,226$     67,750$        100.46%

161



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGE IN NET POSITION

REGIONAL WATER SYSTEM ADMINISTRATION

For the Three Months Ended December 31, 2021

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020 $ Change % Change

OPERATING REVENUES
     Charges for services:

          Member fees 49,865$                       49,947$                        (82)$                       -0.16%

          Total operating revenues 49,865 49,947 (82) -0.16%

OPERATING EXPENSES

     Accounting & audit - - -

     Community relations 1,149 339 810 238.94%

     Conferences & seminars 600 - 600

     Consulting 46,531 45,000 1,531 3.40%

     Dues & memberships 931 1,324 (393) -29.68%

     Engineering services 405 - 405

     Legal & professional fees 7,876 3,564 4,312 120.99%

     Meetings expense 853 934 (81) -8.67%

     Military affairs 2,750 2,750 - 0.00%

     Office supplies and expense 36 152 (116) -76.32%

     Salaries, wages, payroll taxes & benefits 48,898 38,435 10,463 27.22%

     Travel & training 3,523 - 3,523

     Web design & maintenance 830 260 570 219.23%

     Miscellaneous 398 12 386 3216.67%

          Total operating expenses 114,780 92,770 22,010 23.73%

Operating income (loss) before depreciation (64,915) (42,823) (22,092) -51.59%

     Depreciation - - -

Operating income (loss) (64,915) (42,823) (22,092) 51.59%

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
     Interest Revenue 32 - 32

          Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 32 - 32

Income (loss) before transfers (64,883) (42,823) (22,060) -51.51%

Transfers in (out) - - -

Change in net position (64,883) (42,823) (22,060) -51.51%

Net position, beginning of year 199,306 185,239 14,067 7.59%

Net position, end of year 134,423$                     142,416$                      (7,993)$                  -5.61%

162



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGE IN NET POSITION

REGIONAL WATER SYSTEM FACILITIES FUND

For the Three Months Ended December 31, 2021

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020 $ Change % Change

OPERATING REVENUES

     Charges for services: -$                            -$                             -$                      

          Total operating revenues - - -
-

OPERATING EXPENSES

     Expenses - - -

          Total operating expenses - - --

Operating income (loss) - - --
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) -

     Minimum monthly payments 1,107,954 1,278,331 (170,377) -13.33%

     Interest Revenue 14,281 43 14,238 33111.63%

     Interest Expense (61,652) - (61,652)

     Bond Issuance Costs - - -

          Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 1,060,583 1,278,374 (217,791) -17.04%

Change in net position 1,060,583 1,278,374 (217,791) -17.04%

Net position, beginning of year 4,221,294 465,323 3,755,971 807.18%

Net position, end of year 5,281,877$                  1,743,697$                  3,538,180$            202.91%

163



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGE IN NET POSITION

WET UTILITIES FUND

For the Three Months Ended December 31, 2021

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020 $ Change % Change

OPERATING REVENUES

     Charges for services:

          Army volumetric charge 811,639$                    785,422$                      26,217$                 3.34%

          Army water supply charge 60,619 54,634 5,985 10.95%

          Commercial & residential charge 25,950 47,536 (21,586) -45.41%

          Total operating revenues 898,208 887,592 10,616 1.20%
-

OPERATING EXPENSES -

     Analyticals 26,556 24,491 2,065 8.43%

     Consulting 22,872 - 22,872

     Equipment maintenance, repair & fuel 9,013 3,587 5,426 151.27%

     Insurance 12,287 15,080 (2,793) -18.52%

     Materials 30,252 43,961 (13,709) -31.18%

     Permits 20,036 22,378 (2,342) -10.47%

     Repairs 38,551 44,788 (6,237) -13.93%

     Salaries, wages, payroll taxes & benefits 263,218 257,693 5,525 2.14%

     Supplies & materials 10,249 6,607 3,642 55.12%

     Utilities 29,853 35,460 (5,607) -15.81%

     Waste disposal 11,663 2,385 9,278 389.01%

     Water purchase cost 77,174 51,436 25,738 50.04%

     Overhead allocation - water 51,581 64,222 (12,641) -19.68%

     Overhead allocation - wastewater 56,062 69,760 (13,698) -19.64%

     Overhead allocation - industrial wastewater 56,523 70,352 (13,829) -19.66%

          Total operating expenses 715,890 712,200 3,690 0.52%-

Operating income (loss) before depreciation 182,318 175,392 6,926 3.95%

     Depreciation 202,611 200,202 2,409 1.20%

Operating income (loss) (20,293) (24,810) 4,517 -18.21%-
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) -

     Facility charges revenue 355,060 370,211 (15,151) -4.09%

     Interest revenue 4,690 3,073 1,617 52.62%

     Administrative fund salary revenue - 38,434 (38,434) -100.00%

     Project admin fees 22,854 4,124 18,730 -454.17%

     Interest expense (84,078) (91,782) 7,704 8.39%

     Franchise fees expense (26,946) (26,380) (566) -2.15%

          Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 271,580 297,680 (26,100) -8.77%

Income (loss) before transfers 251,287 272,870 (21,583) -7.91%

Transfers in (out) - - -

Change in net position 251,287 272,870 (21,583) -7.91%

Net position, beginning of year 14,707,905 13,520,497 1,187,408 8.78%

Net position, end of year 14,959,192$               13,793,367$                 1,165,825$            8.45%

164



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  
WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 26, 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM VI. F. 

RWRD RESO 20220126-06 

FY 2022 First Quarter  

Investment Report 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

165



 
 

RIVERBEND RESOLUTION NO. 20220126-06 

 

APPROVING THE FIRST QUARTER FY 2022 INVESTMENT REPORT   

 

 

 WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District is a conservation and reclamation 

district created under and essential to accomplish the purposes of Section 59 Article XVI, Texas 

Constitution, existing pursuant to and having the powers set forth in Chapter 9601 of the Special 

District Local Laws Code of the State of Texas; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District has adopted an Investment Policy as 

required by law to manage the funds of Riverbend Water Resources District; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Investment Policy Reporting Section XIII requires that the Investment 

Officer prepare and sign a quarterly investment report that includes activity on all interest-bearing 

accounts held by Riverbend Water Resources District. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Riverbend Water Resources District 

accepts and approves the First Quarter FY 2022 Investment Report. 

 

 PASSED and APPROVED this 26th day of January 2022 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Tina Veal Gooch, President 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

Fred Milton, Secretary 

 

 

 

 

Attached: First Quarter FY 2022 Investment Report 

166



167



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  
WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 26, 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM VI. G. 

RWRD RESO 20220126-07 

Series 2022A Taxable Bond 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

168



 

RIVERBEND RESOLUTION 20220126-07 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE, SALE, AND DELIVERY OF 

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT CONTRACT REVENUE 

BONDS (REGIONAL WATER SYSTEM PROJECT), TAXABLE SERIES 

2022A, AND APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING INSTRUMENTS AND 

PROCEDURES RELATING THERETO  

 

WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District (the “Issuer”) was created by the Texas 

Legislature in 2009 as a conservation and reclamation district created under and essential to 

accomplish the purpose of Section 59, Article XVI, Texas Constitution, as set forth in Title 6, 

Special District Local Laws Code, Subtitle L, Municipal Water Districts, Chapter 9601, effective 

June 19, 2009 as a water district with statutory powers including the authority to acquire any and 

all storage rights and storage capacity in a reservoir or other water sources inside or outside the 

boundaries of the Issuer, and to acquire the right to take water from that reservoir or source, subject 

to the rights or permits held by municipalities or other persons; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Issuer has previously issued its Contract Revenue Bonds (Regional Water 

System Project), Taxable Series 2020A and Contract Revenue Bonds (Regional Water System 

Project), Series 2020B (collectively, the Series 2020 Bonds) pursuant to Resolution Nos. 

20201028-003 and 20201028-004, respectively (collectively, the “Series 2020 Bond 

Resolutions”), in order finance improvements to certain “Company Facilities” as defined in said 

Series 2020 Bond Resolutions; and 

 

WHEREAS, the bonds hereinafter authorized are being issued and secured on a parity with 

the Outstanding Parity Obligations with respect to the pledge of the Pledged Revenues (as defined 

herein); and 

 

WHEREAS, the Issuer has previously identified regional water infrastructure projects 

under the Riverbend Regional Water Master Plan Study to be completed in order to improve and 

operate the Company Facilities; 

 

 WHEREAS, the Cities of Annona, Avery, Hooks, Leary, Maud, Nash, New Boston, 

Redwater, Texarkana, and Wake Village, Central Bowie Water Supply Corporation and Oak 

Grove Water Supply Corporation (each, a “Member Entity” and collectively, the “Member 

Entities”) desire to effectuate the improvement of the Company Facilities pursuant to the 

Riverbend Regional Water Master Plan Study (the “Planned Improvements”) and provide for 

regional water service, including that needed by the Member Entities; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Issuer has entered into a Water Distribution and Supply Contract (each, a 

“Contract” and collectively, the “Contracts”) with each Member Entity with respect to the funding 

and construction by the Issuer, for the benefit of the Member Entities, of the Planned 

Improvements and any additional regional improvements or enhancements; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Issuer is authorized to issue the bonds hereinafter 

authorized pursuant to the Issuer Act, the Contracts, and other applicable law; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Issuer has received Resolution Nos. 20-075 and 20-076 from the Texas 

Water Development Board (the “TWDB”) approving financial assistance to the Issuer in the 

169



 

aggregate amount of $199,700,000 in multi-year financing, including the purchase of the Issuer’s 

Series 2022A Bonds to be authorized hereby and the purchase of the Series 2022B Bonds (each as 

defined herein); and 

 

WHEREAS, the Issuer deems it necessary and advisable to authorize the adoption of this 

Resolution; and 

 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT THAT: 

 

Section 1.  AMOUNT AND PURPOSE OF THE BONDS.  The bond or bonds of 

Riverbend Water Resources District (the “Issuer”) are hereby authorized to be issued and delivered 

in the aggregate principal amount of $55,800,000, FOR THE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING 

FUNDS REQUIRED TO PROVIDE FOR THE DESIGN, ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION, 

AND EQUIPMENT OF IMPROVEMENTS TO THE COMPANY FACILITIES TO PROVIDE 

REGIONAL WATER SERVICE FOR USE BY THE MEMBER ENTITIES. 

 

Section 2.  DESIGNATION OF THE BONDS.  Each bond issued pursuant to this 

Resolution shall be designated: “RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT CONTRACT 

REVENUE BOND (REGIONAL WATER SYSTEM PROJECT), TAXABLE SERIES 2022A”, 

and initially there shall be issued, sold, and delivered hereunder a single fully registered bond, 

without interest coupons, payable in installments of principal (the “Initial Bond”), but the Initial 

Bond may be assigned and transferred and/or converted into and exchanged for a like aggregate 

principal amount of fully registered bonds, without interest coupons, having serial maturities, and 

in the denomination or denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple of $5,000, all in the 

manner hereinafter provided.  The term “Bonds” as used in this Resolution shall mean and include 

collectively the Initial Bond and all substitute bonds exchanged therefor, as well as all other 

substitute bonds and replacement bonds issued pursuant hereto, and the term “Bond” shall mean 

any of the Bonds. 

 

Section 3.  INITIAL DATE, DENOMINATION, NUMBER, MATURITIES, INITIAL 

REGISTERED OWNER, AND CHARACTERISTICS OF THE INITIAL BOND.  

 

(a) The Initial Bond is hereby authorized to be issued, sold, and delivered hereunder as 

a single fully registered Bond, without interest coupons, dated February 1, 2022, in the 

denomination and aggregate principal amount of $55,800,000 numbered TR-1, payable in annual 

installments of principal to the initial registered owner thereof, to-wit:  Texas Water Development 

Board, or to the registered assignee or assignees of said Bond or any portion or portions thereof 

(in each case, the “registered owner”), with the annual installments of principal of the Initial Bond 

to be payable on the dates, respectively, and in the principal amounts, respectively, stated in the 

FORM OF INITIAL BOND set forth in this Resolution. 

 

(b) The Initial Bond (i) may and shall be prepaid or redeemed prior to the respective 

scheduled due dates of installments of principal thereof, (ii) may be assigned and transferred, (iii) 

may be converted and exchanged for other Bonds, (iv) shall have the characteristics, and (v) shall 

be signed and sealed, and the principal of and interest on the Initial Bond shall be payable, all as 

provided, and in the manner required or indicated, in the FORM OF INITIAL BOND set forth in 

this Resolution. 

170



 

 

Section 4.  INTEREST.  The unpaid principal balance of the Initial Bond shall bear interest 

from the Issuance Date to the respective scheduled due dates, or to the respective dates of 

prepayment or redemption, of the installments of principal of the Initial Bond, and said interest 

shall be payable, all in the manner provided and at the rates and on the dates stated in the FORM 

OF INITIAL BOND set forth in this Resolution. 

 

Section 5.  FORM OF INITIAL BOND.  The form of the Initial Bond, including the form 

of Registration Certificate of the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas to be 

endorsed on the Initial Bond, shall be substantially as follows: 

 

 FORM OF INITIAL BOND 

 

NO. TR-1 $55,800,000 

 UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

 STATE OF TEXAS 

 RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT 

  CONTRACT REVENUE BOND 

 (REGIONAL WATER SYSTEM PROJECT) 

 TAXABLE SERIES 2022A 

 

Riverbend Water Resources District (the “Issuer”), being a political subdivision of the State 

of Texas, hereby promises to pay to the TEXAS WATER DEVELOPMENT BOARD, or to the 

registered assignee or assignees of this Bond or any portion or portions hereof (in each case, the 

“registered owner”) the aggregate principal amount of $55,800,000 (FIFTY FIVE MILLION 

EIGHT HUNDRED THOUSAND AND 00/100 DOLLARS) in annual installments of principal 

due and payable on October 15 in each of the years, and to pay interest, calculated on the basis of 

a 360-day year  composed of twelve 30-day months, from the date of delivery of the Bonds (which 

date appears in the Delivery Certificate endorsed on this Bond), on the balance of each such 

installment of principal, respectively, from time to time remaining unpaid, in the respective 

principal amounts and at the rates per annum, as set forth in the following schedule: 
 

Year of 

Maturity 

Principal 

Amount 

Interest 

Rate 

 Year of 

Maturity 

Principal 

Amount 

Interest 

Rate 

2024 $1,260,000       0.100%  2039 $1,825,000       2.280% 

2025 1,430,000 0.630  2040 1,865,000 2.300 

2026 1,440,000 1.010  2041 1,910,000 2.310 

2027 1,460,000 1.170  2042 1,955,000 2.340 

2028 1,475,000 1.370  2043 2,000,000 2.370 

2029 1,500,000 1.520  2044 2,050,000 2.380 

2030 1,520,000 1.550  2045 2,100,000 2.390 

2031 1,545,000 1.690  2046 2,150,000 2.400 

2032 1,575,000 1.770  2047 2,200,000 2.410 

2033 1,600,000 1.890  2048 2,255,000 2.420 

2034 1,635,000 2.020  2049 2,310,000 2.430 

2035 1,670,000 2.130  2050 2,370,000 2.440 

2036 1,705,000 2.200  2051 2,425,000 2.450 

2037 1,745,000 2.270  2052 2,490,000 2.460 

171



 

2038 1,785,000 2.300  2053 2,550,000 2.470 

 

with said interest being payable on October 15, 2022 and semiannually on each April 15 and 

October 15 thereafter while this Bond or any portion hereof is outstanding and unpaid. 

 

THE INSTALLMENTS OF PRINCIPAL OF AND THE INTEREST ON this Bond are 

payable in lawful money of the United States of America, without exchange or collection charges.  

The installments of principal and the interest on this Bond are payable to the registered owner 

hereof through the services of BOKF, NA in Dallas, Texas, as paying agent/registrar (the “Paying 

Agent/Registrar”) for this Bond.  Payment of all principal of and interest on this Bond shall be 

made by the Paying Agent/Registrar to the registered owner hereof on each principal and/or 

interest payment date by check dated as of such date, drawn by the Paying Agent/Registrar on, and 

payable solely from, funds of the Issuer required by the resolution authorizing the issuance of this 

Bond (the “Bond Resolution”) to be on deposit with the Paying Agent/Registrar for such purpose 

as hereinafter provided; and such check shall be sent by the Paying Agent/Registrar by United 

States mail, first-class postage prepaid, on each such principal and/or interest payment date, to the 

registered owner hereof, at the address of the registered owner, as it appeared at the close of 

business on the last business day of the month next preceding each such date (the “Record Date”) 

on the Registration Books kept by the Paying Agent/Registrar, as hereinafter described; provided 

that, if the Texas Water Development Board (the “TWDB”) is the registered owner of this Bond, 

at the option of the TWDB and at the expense of the Issuer, such payment shall be made by wire 

transfer pursuant to written directions of the TWDB.  The Issuer covenants with the registered 

owner of this Bond that on or before each principal and/or interest payment date for this Bond it 

will make available to the Paying Agent/Registrar, from the “Interest and Redemption Fund” 

created by the Bond Resolution, the amounts required to provide for the payment, in immediately 

available funds, of all principal of and interest on this Bond, when due. 

 

IF THE DATE for the payment of the principal of or interest on this Bond shall be a 

Saturday, Sunday, a legal holiday, or a day on which banking institutions in the City where the 

Paying Agent/Registrar is located are authorized by law or executive order to close, then the date 

for such payment shall be the next succeeding day which is not such a Saturday, Sunday, legal 

holiday, or day on which banking institutions are authorized to close; and payment on such date 

shall have the same force and effect as if made on the original date payment was due. 

 

THIS BOND has been authorized in accordance with the Constitution and laws of the State 

of Texas FOR THE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING FUNDS REQUIRED TO PROVIDE FOR THE 

DESIGN, ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION, AND EQUIPMENT OF IMPROVEMENTS TO 

THE COMPANY FACILITIES TO PROVIDE REGIONAL WATER SERVICE FOR USE BY 

THE MEMBER ENTITIES. 

 

ON APRIL 15, 2032, or any date thereafter, the Bonds having stated maturities on and after 

October 15, 2032 may be redeemed prior to their scheduled maturities, at the option of the Issuer, 

with funds derived from any available and lawful source, as a whole, or in part, and, if less than a 

whole maturity is to be redeemed, the Bonds or portions thereof to be redeemed shall be selected 

by the Paying Agent/Registrar by lot or other customary random method (provided that a portion 

of a Bond may be redeemed only in an integral multiple of $5,000), at a redemption price equal 

the principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption.  During any 

period in which ownership of the Bonds is determined by a book entry at a securities depository 

172



 

for the Bonds, if fewer than all of the Bonds of the same maturity and bearing the same interest 

rate are to be redeemed, the particular Bonds of such maturity and bearing such interest rate shall 

be selected in accordance with the arrangements between the Issuer and the securities depository. 

 

AT LEAST 30 days prior to the date fixed for any redemption of Bonds or portions thereof 

prior to maturity a written notice of such redemption shall be sent by the Paying Agent/Registrar 

by United States mail, first-class postage prepaid, to the Registered Owner of each Bond to be 

redeemed at its address as it appeared on the 45th day prior to such redemption date; provided,  

however, that the failure to send, mail, or receive such notice, or any defect therein or in the sending 

or mailing thereof, shall not affect the validity or effectiveness of the proceedings for the 

redemption of any Bond, and it is hereby specifically provided that the mailing of such notice as 

required above shall be the only notice actually required in connection with or as a prerequisite  to 

the redemption of any Bonds or portions thereof.  By the date fixed for any such redemption due 

provision shall be made with the Paying Agent/Registrar for the payment of the required 

redemption price for the Bonds or portions thereof which are to be so redeemed, plus accrued 

interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption.  If such written notice of redemption is mailed 

and if due provision for such payment is made, all as provided above, the Bonds or portions thereof 

which are to be so redeemed thereby automatically shall be treated as redeemed prior to their 

scheduled maturities, and they shall not bear interest after the date fixed for redemption, and they 

shall not be regarded as being outstanding except for the right of the Registered Owner to receive 

the redemption price plus accrued interest from the Paying Agent/Registrar out of the funds 

provided for such payment.  If a portion of any Bond shall be redeemed a substitute Bond or Bonds 

having the same maturity date, bearing interest at the same rate, in any denomination or 

denominations in any integral multiple of $5,000, at the written request of the Registered Owner, 

and in aggregate principal amount equal to the unredeemed portion thereof, will be issued to the 

Registered Owner upon the surrender thereof for cancellation, at the expense of the Issuer, all as 

provided in the Bond Resolution. 

 

THIS BOND, to the extent of the unpaid or unredeemed principal balance hereof, or any 

unpaid and unredeemed portion hereof in any integral multiple of $5,000, may be assigned by the 

initial registered owner hereof and shall be transferred only in the Registration Books of the Issuer 

kept by the Paying Agent/Registrar acting in the capacity of registrar for the Bonds, upon the terms 

and conditions set forth in the Bond Resolution.  Among other requirements for such transfer, this 

Bond must be presented and surrendered to the Paying Agent/Registrar for cancellation, together 

with proper instruments of assignment, in form and with guarantee of signatures satisfactory to the 

Paying Agent/Registrar, evidencing assignment by the initial registered owner of this Bond, or any 

portion or portions hereof in any integral multiple of $5,000, to the assignee or assignees in whose 

name or names this Bond or any such portion or portions hereof is or are to be transferred and 

registered.  Any instrument or instruments of assignment satisfactory to the Paying 

Agent/Registrar may be used to evidence the assignment of this Bond or any such portion or 

portions hereof by the initial registered owner hereof.  A new bond or bonds payable to such 

assignee or assignees (which then will be the new registered owner or owners of such new Bond 

or Bonds) or to the initial registered owner as to any portion of this Bond which is not being 

assigned and transferred by the initial registered owner, shall be delivered by the Paying 

Agent/Registrar in conversion of and exchange for this Bond or any portion or portions hereof, but 

solely in the form and manner as provided in the next paragraph hereof for the conversion and 

exchange of this Bond or any portion hereof.  The registered owner of this Bond shall be deemed 

and treated by the Issuer and the Paying Agent/Registrar as the absolute owner hereof for all 

173



 

purposes, including payment and discharge of liability upon this Bond to the extent of such 

payment, and the Issuer and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall not be affected by any notice to the 

contrary. 

 

AS PROVIDED above and in the Bond Resolution, this Bond, to the extent of the unpaid 

or unredeemed principal balance hereof, may be converted into and exchanged for a like aggregate 

principal amount of fully registered bonds, without interest coupons, payable to the assignee or 

assignees duly designated in writing by the initial registered owner hereof, or to the initial 

registered owner as to any portion of this Bond which is not being assigned and transferred by the 

initial registered owner, in any denomination or denominations in any integral multiple of $5,000 

(subject to the requirement hereinafter stated that each substitute bond issued in exchange for any 

portion of this Bond shall have a single stated principal maturity date), upon surrender of this Bond 

to the Paying Agent/Registrar for cancellation, all in accordance with the form and procedures set 

forth in the Bond Resolution.  If this Bond or any portion hereof is assigned and transferred or 

converted each bond issued in exchange for any portion hereof shall have a single stated principal 

maturity date corresponding to the due date of the installment of principal of this Bond or portion 

hereof for which the substitute bond is being exchanged, and shall bear interest at the rate 

applicable to and borne by such installment of principal or portion thereof.  Such bonds, 

respectively, shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity on the same dates and for the same 

prices as the corresponding installment of principal of this Bond or portion hereof for which they 

are being exchanged.  No such bond shall be payable in installments, but shall have only one stated 

principal maturity date.  AS PROVIDED IN THE BOND RESOLUTION, THIS BOND IN ITS 

PRESENT FORM MAY BE ASSIGNED AND TRANSFERRED OR CONVERTED ONCE 

ONLY, and to one or more assignees, but the bonds issued and delivered in exchange for this Bond 

or any portion hereof may be assigned and transferred, and converted, subsequently, as provided 

in the Bond Resolution.  The Issuer shall pay the Paying Agent/Registrar’s standard or customary 

fees and charges for transferring, converting, and exchanging this Bond or any portion thereof, but 

the one requesting such transfer, conversion, and exchange shall pay any taxes or governmental 

charges required to be paid with respect thereto.  The Paying Agent/Registrar shall not be required 

to make any such assignment, conversion, or exchange (i) during the period commencing with the 

close of business on any Record Date and ending with the opening of business on the next 

following principal or interest payment date, or, (ii) with respect to any Bond or portion thereof 

called for prepayment or redemption prior to maturity, within 45 days prior to its prepayment or 

redemption date. 

 

IN THE EVENT any Paying Agent/Registrar for this Bond is changed by the Issuer, 

resigns, or otherwise ceases to act as such, the Issuer has covenanted in the Bond Resolution that 

it promptly will appoint a competent and legally qualified substitute therefor, and promptly will 

cause written notice thereof to be mailed to the registered owner of this Bond. 

 

IT IS HEREBY certified, recited, and covenanted that this Bond has been duly and validly 

authorized, issued, sold, and delivered; that all acts, conditions, and things required or proper to 

be performed, exist, and be done precedent to or in the authorization, issuance, and delivery of this 

Bond have been performed, existed, and been done in accordance with law; that this Bond is a 

special revenue obligation of the Issuer which, together with the Series 2020 Bonds, Series 2022B 

Bonds and any Additional Parity Obligations which may be issued in the future, are secured by 

and payable from a first lien on and pledge of the “Pledged Revenues” as defined in the Bond 

Resolution, consisting primarily of payments to be received by the Issuer from the Member Entities 

174



 

under the Water Distribution and Supply Contracts (the “Contracts”), between the Issuer and each 

Member Entity with respect to the design, acquisition, construction, and equipment of 

improvements to the Company Facilities to provide regional water service for use by the Member 

Entities. 

 

THE ISSUER IS OBLIGATED TO PAY THE PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON 

THIS BOND SOLELY FROM AND TO THE EXTENT OF THE GROSS REVENUES 

DERIVED PRIMARILY FROM PAYMENTS TO BE RECEIVED BY THE ISSUER FROM 

THE MEMBER ENTITIES.  NO OTHER ENTITY, INCLUDING THE STATE OF TEXAS, 

ANY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION THEREOF (OTHER THAN THE ISSUER OR THE 

MEMBER ENTITIES), OR ANY OTHER PUBLIC OR PRIVATE BODY, IS OBLIGATED, 

DIRECTLY, INDIRECTLY, CONTINGENTLY, OR IN ANY OTHER MANNER, TO PAY 

SUCH PRINCIPAL OR INTEREST FROM ANY OTHER SOURCE WHATSOEVER.  THE 

OWNER OF THIS BOND SHALL NEVER HAVE THE RIGHT TO DEMAND PAYMENT OF 

THIS BOND OUT OF ANY FUNDS RAISED OR TO BE RAISED BY TAXATION 

(INCLUDING SPECIFICALLY TAXES RAISED OR TO BE RAISED BY THE ISSUER) OR 

FROM ANY OTHER FUNDS OF THE ISSUER EXCEPT THE GROSS REVENUES.  NO 

REPRESENTATION IS MADE HEREIN WITH RESPECT TO THE ANTICIPATED 

SUFFICIENCY OF THE GROSS REVENUES.  NO PART OF THE PHYSICAL PROPERTY 

OF THE ISSUER IS ENCUMBERED BY ANY LIEN OR SECURITY INTEREST FOR THE 

BENEFIT OF THE OWNERS OF THIS BOND. 

 

THE ISSUER has reserved the right, subject to the restrictions stated in the Bond 

Resolution, to issue Additional Parity Obligations payable from and secured by a first lien on and 

pledge of the “Pledged Revenues” on a parity with this Bond. 

 

THE ISSUER also has reserved the right to amend the Bond Resolution with the approval 

of the registered owners of 51% in principal amount of all outstanding bonds secured by and 

payable from a first lien on and pledge of the “Pledged Revenues”. 

 

THE REGISTERED OWNER hereof shall never have the right to demand payment of this 

Bond or the interest hereon out of any funds raised or to be raised by taxation or from any source 

whatsoever other than specified in the Bond Resolution.  The Issuer has no taxing power. 

 

BY BECOMING the registered owner of this Bond, the registered owner thereby 

acknowledges all of the terms and provisions of the Bond Resolution, agrees to be bound by such 

terms and provisions, acknowledges that the Bond Resolution is duly recorded and available for 

inspection in the official minutes and records of the governing body of the Issuer, and agrees that 

the terms and provisions of this Bond and the Bond Resolution constitute a contract between the 

registered owner hereof and the Issuer. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Issuer has caused this Bond to be signed with the manual 

or facsimile signature of the President of the Board of Directors of the Issuer and countersigned 

with the manual or facsimile signature of the Secretary of the Board of Directors of the Issuer, has 

caused the official seal of the Issuer to be duly impressed or placed in facsimile on this Bond, and 

has caused this Bond to be dated as of February 1, 2022. 

 

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT 

175



 

 

 

 

________________________________  ________________________________ 

Secretary, Board of Directors,   President, Board of Directors, 

 

(ISSUER SEAL) 

 

 FORM OF REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE OF THE 

 COMPTROLLER OF PUBLIC ACCOUNTS: 

 

 COMPTROLLER’S REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE:  REGISTER NO. 

 

I hereby certify that this Bond has been examined, certified as to validity, and approved by 

the Attorney General of the State of Texas, and that this Bond has been registered by the 

Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas. 

 

Witness my signature and seal this 

 

_______________________________ 

Comptroller of Public Accounts 

     of the State of Texas 

(COMPTROLLER’S SEAL) 

 

 FORM OF DELIVERY CERTIFICATE 

 

 DELIVERY CERTIFICATE 

 

This Bond was delivered to and paid for by the purchaser thereof on _______________. 

 

176



 

 FORM OF ASSIGNMENT 

 

 ASSIGNMENT 

 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned sells, assigns and transfers unto 

 

Please Insert Social Security or 

Other Identifying Number of Assignee 

/___________________________________/ 

 

____________________________________________________________ 

(Name and Address of Assignee) 

the within Bond and does hereby irrevocably constitute and appoint 

_________________________ to transfer said Bond on the books kept for registration thereof 

with full power of substitution in the premises. 

 

Date: _____________________ 

 

  ____________________________________ 

 

Signature Guaranteed:   ____________________________________ 

 

NOTICE: The signature to this assignment must correspond with the name as it appears upon 

the face of the within Bond in every particular, without alteration or enlargement 

or any change whatever; and 

 

NOTICE: Signature(s) must be guaranteed by an eligible guarantor institution participating in 

a Securities Transfer Association recognized signature guarantee program. 

 

177



 

Section 6.  ADDITIONAL CHARACTERISTICS OF THE BONDS. Registration and 

Transfer.  (a)  The Issuer shall keep or cause to be kept at the principal corporate trust office of 

BOKF, NA in Dallas, Texas (the “Paying Agent/Registrar”) books or records of the registration 

and transfer of the Bonds (the “Registration Books”), and the Issuer hereby appoints the Paying 

Agent/Registrar as its registrar and transfer agent to keep such books or records and make such 

transfers and registrations under such reasonable regulations as the Issuer and Paying 

Agent/Registrar may prescribe; and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall make such transfers and 

registrations as herein provided.  The Paying Agent/Registrar shall obtain and record in the 

Registration Books the address of the registered owner of each Bond to which payments with 

respect to the Bonds shall be mailed, as herein provided; but it shall be the duty of each registered 

owner to notify the Paying Agent/Registrar in writing of the address to which payments shall be 

mailed, and such interest payments shall not be mailed unless such notice has been given.  The 

Issuer shall have the right to inspect the Registration Books during regular business hours of the 

Paying Agent/Registrar, but otherwise the Paying Agent/Registrar shall keep the Registration 

Books confidential and, unless otherwise required by law, shall not permit their inspection by any 

other entity.  Registration of each Bond may be transferred in the Registration Books only upon 

presentation and surrender of such Bond to the Paying Agent/Registrar for transfer of registration 

and cancellation, together with proper written instruments of assignment, in form and with 

guarantee of signatures satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar, evidencing (i) the assignment 

of the Bond, or any portion thereof in any integral multiple of $5,000, to the assignee or assignees 

thereof, and (ii) the right of such assignee or assignees to have the Bond or any such portion thereof 

registered in the name of such  assignee or assignees.  Upon the assignment and transfer of any 

Bond or any portion thereof, a new substitute Bond or Bonds shall be issued in conversion and 

exchange therefor in the manner herein provided.  The Initial Bond, to the extent of the unpaid or 

unredeemed principal balance thereof, may be assigned and transferred by the initial registered 

owner thereof once only, and to one or more assignees designated in writing by the initial 

registered owner thereof.  All Bonds issued and delivered in conversion of and exchange for the 

Initial Bond shall be in any denomination or denominations of any integral multiple of $5,000 

(subject to the requirement hereinafter stated that each substitute Bond shall have a single stated 

principal maturity date), shall be in the form prescribed in the FORM OF SUBSTITUTE BOND 

set forth in this Resolution, and shall have the characteristics, and may be assigned, transferred, 

and converted as hereinafter provided.  If the Initial Bond or any portion thereof is assigned and 

transferred or converted the Initial Bond must be surrendered to the Paying Agent/Registrar for 

cancellation, and each Bond issued in exchange for any portion of the Initial Bond shall have a 

single stated principal maturity date, and shall not be payable in installments; and each such Bond 

shall have a principal maturity date corresponding to the due date of the installment of principal or 

portion thereof for which the substitute Bond is being exchanged; and each such Bond shall bear 

interest at the single rate applicable to and borne by such installment of principal or portion thereof 

for which it is being exchanged.  If only a portion of the Initial Bond is assigned and transferred, 

there shall be delivered to and registered in the name of the initial registered owner substitute 

Bonds in exchange for the unassigned balance of the Initial Bond in the same manner as if the 

initial registered owner were the assignee thereof.  If any Bond or portion thereof other than the 

Initial Bond is assigned and transferred or converted each Bond issued in exchange therefor shall 

have the same principal maturity date and bear interest at the same rate as the Bond for which it is 

exchanged.  A form of assignment shall be printed or endorsed on each Bond, excepting the Initial 

Bond, which shall be executed by the registered owner or its duly authorized attorney or 

representative to evidence an assignment thereof.  Upon surrender of any Bonds or any portion or 

portions thereof for transfer of registration, an authorized representative of the Paying 

178



 

Agent/Registrar shall make such transfer in the Registration Books, and shall deliver a new fully 

registered substitute Bond or Bonds, having the characteristics herein described, payable to such 

assignee or assignees (which then will be the registered owner or owners of such new Bond or 

Bonds), or to the previous registered owner in case only a portion of a Bond is being assigned and 

transferred, all in conversion of and exchange for said assigned Bond or Bonds or any portion or 

portions thereof, in the same form and manner, and with the same effect, as provided in Section 

6(d), below, for the conversion and exchange of Bonds by any registered owner of a Bond.  The 

Issuer shall pay the Paying Agent/Registrar’s standard or customary fees and charges for making 

such transfer and delivery of a substitute Bond or Bonds, but the one requesting such transfer shall 

pay any taxes or other governmental charges required to be paid with respect thereto.  The Paying 

Agent/Registrar shall not be required to make transfers of registration of any Bond or any portion 

thereof (i) during the period commencing with the close of business on any Record Date and ending 

with the opening of business on the next following principal or interest payment date, or, (ii) with 

respect to any Bond or any portion thereof called for redemption prior to maturity, within 45 days 

prior to its redemption date. 

 

(b) Ownership of Bonds.  The entity in whose name any Bond shall be registered in the 

Registration Books at any time shall be deemed and treated as the absolute owner thereof for all 

purposes of this Resolution, whether or not such Bond shall be overdue, and the Issuer and the 

Paying Agent/Registrar shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary; and payment of, or on 

account of, the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on any such Bond shall be made only to 

such registered owner.  All such payments shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge the 

liability upon such Bond to the extent of the sum or sums so paid. 

 

(c) Payment of Bonds and Interest.  The Issuer hereby further appoints the Paying 

Agent/Registrar to act as the paying agent for paying the principal of and interest on the Bonds, 

and to act as its agent to convert and exchange or replace Bonds, all as provided in this Resolution.  

The Paying Agent/Registrar shall keep proper records of all payments made by the Issuer and the 

Paying Agent/Registrar with respect to the Bonds, and of all conversions and exchanges of Bonds, 

and all replacements of Bonds, as provided in this Resolution. 

 

(d) Conversion and Exchange or Replacement; Authentication.  Each Bond issued and 

delivered pursuant to this Resolution, to the extent of the unpaid or unredeemed principal balance 

or principal amount thereof, may, upon surrender of such Bond at the principal corporate trust 

office of the Paying Agent/Registrar, together with a written request therefor duly executed by the 

registered owner or the assignee or assignees thereof, or its or their duly authorized attorneys or 

representatives, with guarantee of signatures satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar, may, at 

the option of the registered owner or such assignee or assignees, as appropriate, be converted into 

and exchanged for fully registered bonds, without interest coupons, in the form prescribed in the 

FORM OF SUBSTITUTE BOND set forth in this Resolution, in the denomination of $5,000, or 

any integral multiple of $5,000 (subject to the requirement hereinafter stated that each substitute 

Bond shall have a single stated maturity date), as requested in writing by such registered owner or 

such assignee or assignees, in an aggregate principal amount equal to the unpaid or unredeemed 

principal balance or principal amount of any Bond or Bonds so surrendered, and payable to the 

appropriate registered owner, assignee, or assignees, as the case may be.  If the Initial Bond is 

assigned and transferred or converted each substitute Bond issued in exchange for any portion of 

the Initial Bond shall have a single stated principal maturity date, and shall not be payable in 

installments; and each such Bond shall have a principal maturity date corresponding to the due 

179



 

date of the installment of principal or portion thereof for which the substitute Bond is being 

exchanged; and each such Bond shall bear interest at the single rate applicable to and borne by 

such installment of principal or portion thereof for which it is being exchanged.  If a portion of any 

Bond (other than the Initial Bond) shall be redeemed prior to its scheduled maturity as provided 

herein, a substitute Bond or Bonds having the same maturity date, bearing interest at the same rate, 

in the denomination or denominations of any integral multiple of $5,000 at the request of the 

registered owner, and in aggregate principal amount equal to the unredeemed portion thereof, will 

be issued to the registered owner upon surrender thereof for cancellation.  If any Bond or portion 

thereof (other than the Initial Bond) is assigned and transferred or converted, each Bond issued in 

exchange therefor shall have the same principal maturity date and bear interest at the same rate as 

the Bond for which it is being exchanged.  Each substitute Bond shall bear a letter and/or number 

to distinguish it from each other Bond.  The Paying Agent/Registrar shall convert and exchange 

or replace Bonds as provided herein, and each fully registered bond delivered in conversion of and 

exchange for or replacement of any Bond or portion thereof as permitted or required by any 

provision of this Resolution shall constitute one of the Bonds for all purposes of this Resolution, 

and may again be converted and exchanged or replaced.  It is specifically provided that any Bond 

authenticated in conversion of and exchange for or replacement of another Bond on or prior to the 

first scheduled Record Date for the Initial Bond shall bear interest from the date of the Initial Bond, 

but each substitute Bond so authenticated after such first scheduled Record Date shall bear interest 

from the interest payment date next preceding the date on which such substitute Bond was so 

authenticated, unless such Bond is authenticated after any Record Date but on or before the next 

following interest payment date, in which case it shall bear interest from such next following 

interest payment date; provided, however, that if at the time of delivery of any substitute Bond the 

interest on the Bond for which it is being exchanged is due but has not been paid, then such Bond 

shall bear interest from the date to which such interest has been paid in full.  THE INITIAL BOND 

issued and delivered pursuant to this Resolution is not required to be, and shall not be, 

authenticated by the Paying Agent/Registrar, but on each substitute Bond issued in conversion of 

and exchange for or replacement of any Bond or Bonds issued under this Resolution there shall be 

printed a certificate, in the form substantially as follows: 

 

 “PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR’S AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATE 

 

It is hereby certified that this Bond has been issued under the provisions of the Bond 

Resolution described in this Bond; and that this Bond has been issued in conversion of and 

exchange for or replacement of a bond, bonds, or a portion of a bond or bonds of an issue which 

originally was approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas and registered by the 

Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas. 

 

BOKF, NA, 

Dallas, Texas, 

                           Paying Agent/Registrar 

 

 

Dated:  __________     _____________________________ 

Authorized Representative” 

 

An authorized representative of the Paying Agent/Registrar shall, before the delivery of any such 

Bond, date and manually sign the above Certificate, and no such Bond shall be deemed to be issued 

180



 

or outstanding unless such Certificate is so executed.  The Paying Agent/Registrar promptly shall 

cancel all Bonds surrendered for conversion and exchange or replacement.  No additional 

ordinances, orders, or resolutions need be passed or adopted by the governing body of the Issuer 

or any other body or person so as to accomplish the foregoing conversion and exchange or 

replacement of any Bond or portion thereof, and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall provide for the 

printing, execution, and delivery of the substitute Bonds in the manner prescribed herein, and said 

Bonds shall be of type composition printed on paper with lithographed or steel engraved borders 

of customary weight and strength.  Pursuant to Section 1201.067, Texas Government Code, the 

duty of conversion and exchange or replacement of Bonds as aforesaid is hereby imposed upon 

the Paying Agent/Registrar, and, upon the execution of the above Paying Agent/Registrar’s 

Authentication Certificate, the converted and exchanged or replaced Bond shall be valid, 

incontestable, and enforceable in the same manner and with the same effect as the Initial Bond 

which originally was issued pursuant to this Resolution, approved by the Attorney General, and 

registered by the Comptroller of Public Accounts.  The Issuer shall pay the Paying 

Agent/Registrar’s standard or customary fees and charges for transferring, converting, and 

exchanging any Bond or any portion thereof, but the one requesting any such transfer, conversion, 

and exchange shall pay any taxes or governmental charges required to be paid with respect thereto 

as a condition precedent to the exercise of such privilege of conversion and exchange.  The Paying 

Agent/Registrar shall not be required to make any such conversion and exchange or replacement 

of Bonds or any portion thereof (i) during the period commencing with the close of business on 

any Record Date and ending with the opening of business on the next following principal or interest 

payment date, or, (ii) with respect to any Bond or portion thereof called for redemption prior to 

maturity, within 45 days prior to its redemption date. 

 

(e) In General.  All Bonds issued in conversion and exchange or replacement of any 

other Bond or portion thereof, (i) shall be issued in fully registered form, without interest coupons, 

with the principal of and interest on such Bonds to be payable only to the registered owners thereof, 

(ii) may and shall be redeemed prior to their scheduled maturities, (iii) may be transferred and 

assigned, (iv) may be converted and exchanged for other Bonds, (v) shall have the characteristics, 

(vi) shall be signed and sealed, and (vii) the principal of and interest on the Bonds shall be payable, 

all as provided, and in the manner required or indicated, in the FORM OF SUBSTITUTE BOND 

set forth in this Resolution. 

 

(f) Payment of Fees and Charges.  The Issuer hereby covenants with the registered 

owners of the Bonds that it will (i) pay the standard or customary fees and charges of the Paying 

Agent/Registrar for its services with respect to the payment of the principal of and interest on the 

Bonds, when due, and (ii) pay the fees and charges of the Paying Agent/Registrar for services with 

respect to the transfer of registration of Bonds, and with respect to the conversion and exchange 

of Bonds solely to the extent above provided in this Resolution. 

 

(g) Substitute Paying Agent/Registrar.  The Issuer covenants with the registered 

owners of the Bonds that at all times while the Bonds are outstanding the Issuer will provide a 

competent and legally qualified bank, trust company, financial institution, or other agency to act 

as and perform the services of Paying Agent/Registrar for the Bonds under this Resolution, and 

that the Paying Agent/Registrar will be one entity.  The Issuer reserves the right to, and may, at its 

option, change the Paying Agent/Registrar upon not less than 120 days written notice to the Paying 

Agent/Registrar, to be effective not later than 60 days prior to the next principal or interest payment 

date after such notice.  In the event that the entity at any time acting as Paying Agent/Registrar (or 

181



 

its successor by merger, acquisition, or other method) should resign or otherwise cease to act as 

such, the Issuer covenants that promptly it will appoint a competent and legally qualified bank, 

trust company, financial institution, or other agency to act as Paying Agent/Registrar under this 

Resolution.  Upon any change in the Paying Agent/Registrar, the previous Paying Agent/Registrar 

promptly shall transfer and deliver the Registration Books (or a copy thereof), along with all other 

pertinent books and records relating to the Bonds, to the new Paying Agent/Registrar designated 

and appointed by the Issuer.  Upon any change in the Paying Agent/Registrar, the Issuer promptly 

will cause a written notice thereof to be sent by the new Paying Agent/Registrar to each registered 

owner of the Bonds, by United States mail, first-class postage prepaid, which notice also shall give 

the address of the new Paying Agent/Registrar.  By accepting the position and performing as such, 

each Paying Agent/Registrar shall be deemed to have agreed to the provisions of this Resolution, 

and a certified copy of this Resolution shall be delivered to each Paying Agent/Registrar. 

 

Section 7.  FORM OF SUBSTITUTE BONDS.  The form of all Bonds issued in conversion 

and exchange or replacement of any other Bond or portion thereof, including the form of Paying 

Agent/Registrar’s Certificate to be printed on each of such Bonds, and the Form of Assignment to 

be printed on each of the Bonds, shall be, respectively, substantially as follows, with such 

appropriate variations, omissions, or insertions as are permitted or required by this Resolution. 

 

 FORM OF SUBSTITUTE BOND 

 

[Unless this Bond is presented by an authorized representative of The Depository Trust 

Company, a New York corporation (“DTC”) to the Issuer or its agent for registration of transfer, 

exchange, or payment, and any Bond issued is registered in the name of Cede & Co. or in such 

other name as is requested by an authorized representative of DTC (and any payment is made to 

Cede & Co. or to such other entity as is requested by an authorized representative of DTC), ANY 

TRANSFER, PLEDGE, OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO 

ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL inasmuch as the registered owner hereof, Cede & Co., has an 

interest herein. 

 

As provided in the Bond Resolution referred to herein, until the termination of the system 

of book-entry-only transfers through DTC, and notwithstanding any other provision of the Bond 

Resolution to the contrary, this Bond may be transferred, in whole but not in part, only to a nominee 

of DTC, or by a nominee of DTC to DTC or a nominee of DTC, or by DTC or a nominee of DTC 

to any successor securities depository or any nominee thereof.] 

 

NO. ____ UNITED STATES OF AMERICA PRINCIPAL 

 STATE OF TEXAS AMOUNT  

 RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT $___________ 

 CONTRACT REVENUE BOND 

 (REGIONAL WATER SYSTEM PROJECT) 

 TAXABLE SERIES 2022A 

 

MATURITY   

INTEREST RATE      DATE       ISSUANCE DATE CUSIP NO. 

 

_____%      October 15, 20__     ___________, 2022 ________  

 

182



 

ON THE MATURITY DATE specified above Riverbend Water Resources District (the 

“Issuer”), being a political subdivision of the State of Texas, hereby promises to pay to Cede & 

Co., or to the registered assignee hereof (either being hereinafter called the “registered owner”) 

the principal amount of ____________________________________________ and to pay interest 

thereon, calculated on the basis of a 360-day year composed of twelve 30-day months, from the 

Issuance Date specified above, to the maturity date specified above, or the date of redemption prior 

to maturity, at the interest rate per annum specified above; with interest being payable on October 

15, 2022, and semiannually on each April 15 and October 15 thereafter, except that if the date of 

authentication of this Bond is later than the first Record Date (hereinafter defined), such principal 

amount shall bear interest from the interest payment date next preceding the date of authentication, 

unless such date of authentication is after any Record Date (hereinafter defined) but on or before 

the next following interest payment date, in which case such principal amount shall bear interest 

from such next following interest payment date. 

 

THE PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON this Bond are payable in lawful money of the 

United States of America, without exchange or collection charges.  The principal of this Bond shall 

be paid to the registered owner hereof upon presentation and surrender of this Bond at maturity or 

upon the date fixed for its redemption prior to maturity, at the principal corporate trust office of 

BOKF, NA in Dallas, Texas, as paying agent/registrar (the “Paying Agent/Registrar”) for this 

Bond.  The payment of interest on this Bond shall be made by the Paying Agent/Registrar to the 

registered owner hereof on each interest payment date by check dated as of such interest payment 

date, drawn by the Paying Agent/Registrar on, and payable solely from, funds of the Issuer required 

by the resolution authorizing the issuance of the Bonds (the “Bond Resolution”) to be on deposit 

with the Paying Agent/Registrar for such purpose as hereinafter provided; and such check shall be 

sent by the Paying Agent/Registrar by United States mail, first-class postage prepaid, on each such 

interest payment date, to the registered owner hereof, at the address of the registered owner, as it 

appeared at the close of business on the last business day of the month next preceding each such 

date (the “Record Date”) on the Registration Books kept by the Paying Agent/Registrar, as 

hereinafter described.  However, notwithstanding the foregoing provisions, the payment of such 

interest may be made by any other method acceptable to the Paying Agent/Registrar and requested 

by, and at the risk and expense of, the registered owner hereof; provided, however, for Bonds, the 

registered owner of which is the Texas Water Development Board (the “TWDB”), at the option of 

the TWDB and at the expense of the Issuer, such payment shall be made by wire transfer pursuant 

to written directions of the TWDB.  Any accrued interest due upon the redemption of this Bond 

prior to maturity as provided herein shall be paid to the registered owner at the principal corporate 

trust office of the Paying Agent/Registrar upon presentation and surrender of this Bond for 

redemption and payment at the principal corporate trust office of the Paying Agent/Registrar.  The 

Issuer covenants with the registered owner of this Bond that on or before each principal payment 

date, interest payment date, and accrued interest payment date for this Bond it will make available 

to the Paying Agent/Registrar, from the “Interest and Redemption Fund” created by the Bond 

Resolution, the amounts required to provide for the payment, in immediately available funds, of 

all principal of and interest on the Bonds, when due. 

 

IF THE DATE for the payment of the principal of or interest on this Bond shall be a 

Saturday, Sunday, a legal holiday, or a day on which banking institutions in the City where the 

Paying Agent/Registrar is located are authorized by law or executive order to close, then the date 

for such payment shall be the next succeeding day which is not such a Saturday, Sunday, legal 

183



 

holiday, or day on which banking institutions are authorized to close; and payment on such date 

shall have the same force and effect as if made on the original date payment was due. 

 

THIS BOND is one of an issue of Bonds initially dated February 1, 2022, authorized in 

accordance with the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas in the principal amount of 

$55,800,000, FOR THE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING FUNDS REQUIRED TO PROVIDE FOR 

THE DESIGN, ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION, AND EQUIPMENT OF IMPROVEMENTS 

TO THE COMPANY FACILITIES TO PROVIDE REGIONAL WATER SERVICE FOR USE 

BY THE MEMBER ENTITIES. 

 

ON APRIL 15, 2032, or any date thereafter, the Bonds having stated maturities on and after 

October 15, 2032 may be redeemed prior to their scheduled maturities, at the option of the Issuer, 

with funds derived from any available and lawful source, as a whole, or in part, in inverse order of 

maturity, and, if less than a whole maturity is to be redeemed, the Bonds or portions thereof to be 

redeemed shall be selected by the Paying Agent/Registrar by lot or other customary random 

method (provided that a portion of a Bond may be redeemed only in an integral multiple of $5,000), 

at a redemption price equal the principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest to the date fixed for 

redemption.  During any period in which ownership of the Bonds is determined by a book entry at 

a securities depository for the Bonds, if fewer than all of the Bonds of the same maturity and 

bearing the same interest rate are to be redeemed, the particular Bonds of such maturity and bearing 

such interest rate shall be selected in accordance with the arrangements between the Issuer and the 

securities depository. 

 

AT LEAST 30 days prior to the date fixed for any redemption of Bonds or portions thereof 

prior to maturity a written notice of such redemption shall be sent by the Paying Agent/Registrar 

by United States mail, first-class postage prepaid, to the Registered Owner of each Bond to be 

redeemed at its address as it appeared on the 45th day prior to such redemption date; provided, 

however, that the failure to send, mail, or receive such notice, or any defect therein or in the sending 

or mailing thereof, shall not affect the validity or effectiveness of the proceedings for the 

redemption of any Bond, and it is hereby specifically provided that the mailing of such notice as 

required above shall be the only notice actually required in connection with or as a prerequisite  to 

the redemption of any Bonds or portions thereof.  By the date fixed for any such redemption due 

provision shall be made with the Paying Agent/Registrar for the payment of the required 

redemption price for the Bonds or portions thereof which are to be so redeemed, plus accrued 

interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption.  If such written notice of redemption is mailed 

and if due provision for such payment is made, all as provided above, the Bonds or portions thereof 

which are to be so redeemed thereby automatically shall be treated as redeemed prior to their 

scheduled maturities, and they shall not bear interest after the date fixed for redemption, and they 

shall not be regarded as being outstanding except for the right of the Registered Owner to receive 

the redemption price plus accrued interest from the Paying Agent/Registrar out of the funds 

provided for such payment.  If a portion of any Bond shall be redeemed a substitute Bond or Bonds 

having the same maturity date, bearing interest at the same rate, in any denomination or 

denominations in any integral multiple of $5,000, at the written request of the Registered Owner, 

and in aggregate principal amount equal to the unredeemed portion thereof, will be issued to the 

Registered Owner upon the surrender thereof for cancellation, at the expense of the Issuer, all as 

provided in the Bond Resolution. 

 

184



 

THIS BOND OR ANY PORTION OR PORTIONS HEREOF IN ANY INTEGRAL 

MULTIPLE OF $5,000 may be assigned and shall be transferred only in the Registration Books 

of the Issuer kept by the Paying Agent/Registrar acting in the capacity of registrar for the Bonds, 

upon the terms and conditions set forth in the Bond Resolution.  Among other requirements for 

such assignment and transfer, this Bond must be presented and surrendered to the Paying 

Agent/Registrar, together with proper instruments of assignment, in form and with guarantee of 

signatures satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar, evidencing assignment of this Bond or any 

portion or portions hereof in any integral multiple of $5,000 to the assignee or assignees in whose 

name or names this Bond or any such portion or portions hereof is or are to be transferred and 

registered.  The form of Assignment printed or endorsed on this Bond shall be executed by the 

registered owner or its duly authorized attorney or representative, to evidence the assignment 

hereof.  A new Bond or Bonds payable to such assignee or assignees (which then will be the new 

registered owner or owners of such new Bond or Bonds), or to the previous registered owner in 

the case of the assignment and transfer of only a portion of this Bond, may be delivered by the 

Paying Agent/Registrar in conversion of and exchange for this Bond, all in the form and manner 

as provided in the next paragraph hereof for the conversion and exchange of other Bonds.  The 

Issuer shall pay the Paying Agent/Registrar’s standard or customary fees and charges for making 

such transfer, but the one requesting such transfer shall pay any taxes or other governmental 

charges required to be paid with respect thereto.  The Paying Agent/Registrar shall not be required 

to make transfers of registration of this Bond or any portion hereof (i) during the period 

commencing with the close of business on any Record Date and ending with the opening of 

business on the next following principal or interest payment date, or, (ii) with respect to any Bond 

or any portion thereof called for redemption prior to maturity, within 45 days prior to its 

redemption date.  The registered owner of this Bond shall be deemed and treated by the Issuer and 

the Paying Agent/Registrar as the absolute owner hereof for all purposes, including payment and 

discharge of liability upon this Bond to the extent of such payment, and the Issuer and the Paying 

Agent/Registrar shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary. 

 

ALL BONDS OF THIS SERIES are issuable solely as fully registered bonds, without 

interest coupons, in the denomination of any integral multiple of $5,000.  As provided in the Bond 

Resolution, this Bond, or any unredeemed portion hereof, may, at the request of the registered 

owner or the assignee or assignees hereof, be converted into and exchanged for a like aggregate 

principal amount of fully registered bonds, without interest coupons, payable to the appropriate 

registered owner, assignee, or assignees, as the case may be, having the same maturity date, and 

bearing interest at the same rate, in any denomination or denominations in any integral multiple of 

$5,000 as requested in writing by the appropriate registered owner, assignee, or assignees, as the 

case may be, upon surrender of this Bond to the Paying Agent/Registrar for cancellation, all in 

accordance with the form and procedures set forth in the Bond Resolution.  The Issuer shall pay 

the Paying Agent/Registrar’s standard or customary fees and charges for transferring, converting, 

and exchanging any Bond or any portion thereof, but the one requesting such transfer, conversion, 

and exchange shall pay any taxes or governmental charges required to be paid with respect thereto 

as a condition precedent to the exercise of such privilege of conversion and exchange.  The Paying 

Agent/Registrar shall not be required to make any such conversion and exchange (i) during the 

period commencing with the close of business on any Record Date and ending with the opening 

of business on the next following principal or interest payment date, or, (ii) with respect to any 

Bond or any portion thereof called for redemption prior to maturity, within 45 days prior to its 

redemption date. 

 

185



 

IN THE EVENT any Paying Agent/Registrar for the Bonds is changed by the Issuer, 

resigns, or otherwise ceases to act as such, the Issuer has covenanted in the Bond Resolution that 

it promptly will appoint a competent and legally qualified substitute therefor, and promptly will 

cause written notice thereof to be mailed to the registered owners of the Bonds. 

 

IT IS HEREBY certified, recited, and covenanted that this Bond has been duly and validly 

authorized, issued, sold, and delivered; that all acts, conditions, and things required or proper to 

be performed, exist, and be done precedent to or in the authorization, issuance, and delivery of this 

Bond have been performed, existed, and been done in accordance with law; that this Bond is a 

special revenue obligation of the Issuer which, together with the Series 2020 Bonds, Series 2022B 

Bonds and any Additional Parity Obligations which may be issued in the future, are secured by 

and payable from a first lien on and pledge of the “Pledged Revenues” as defined in the Bond 

Resolution, consisting primarily of payments to be received by the Issuer from the Member Entities 

under the Water Distribution and Supply Contracts (the “Contracts”), between the Issuer and each 

Member Entity with respect to the design, acquisition, construction, and equipment of 

improvements to the Company Facilities to provide regional water service for use by the Member 

Entities. 

 

THE ISSUER IS OBLIGATED TO PAY THE PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON 

THIS BOND SOLELY FROM AND TO THE EXTENT OF THE GROSS REVENUES 

DERIVED PRIMARILY FROM PAYMENTS TO BE RECEIVED BY THE ISSUER FROM 

THE MEMBER ENTITIES.  NO OTHER ENTITY, INCLUDING THE STATE OF TEXAS, 

ANY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION THEREOF (OTHER THAN THE ISSUER OR THE 

MEMBER ENTITIES), OR ANY OTHER PUBLIC OR PRIVATE BODY, IS OBLIGATED, 

DIRECTLY, INDIRECTLY, CONTINGENTLY, OR IN ANY OTHER MANNER, TO PAY 

SUCH PRINCIPAL OR INTEREST FROM ANY OTHER SOURCE WHATSOEVER.  THE 

OWNER OF THIS BOND SHALL NEVER HAVE THE RIGHT TO DEMAND PAYMENT OF 

THIS BOND OUT OF ANY FUNDS RAISED OR TO BE RAISED BY TAXATION 

(INCLUDING SPECIFICALLY TAXES RAISED OR TO BE RAISED BY THE ISSUER) OR 

FROM ANY OTHER FUNDS OF THE ISSUER EXCEPT THE GROSS REVENUES.  NO 

REPRESENTATION IS MADE HEREIN WITH RESPECT TO THE ANTICIPATED 

SUFFICIENCY OF THE GROSS REVENUES.  NO PART OF THE PHYSICAL PROPERTY 

OF THE ISSUER IS ENCUMBERED BY ANY LIEN OR SECURITY INTEREST FOR THE 

BENEFIT OF THE OWNERS OF THIS BOND. 

 

THE ISSUER has reserved the right, subject to the restrictions stated in the Bond 

Resolution, to issue Additional Parity Obligations payable from and secured by a first lien on and 

pledge of the “Pledged Revenues” on a parity with this Bond and series of which it is a part. 

 

THE ISSUER also has reserved the right to amend the Bond Resolution with the approval 

of the registered owners of 51% in principal amount of all outstanding bonds secured by and 

payable from a first lien on and pledge of the “Pledged Revenues”. 

 

THE REGISTERED OWNER hereof shall never have the right to demand payment of this 

Bond or the interest hereon out of any funds raised or to be raised by taxation or from any source 

whatsoever other than specified in the Bond Resolution.  The Issuer has no taxing power. 

 

186



 

BY BECOMING the registered owner of this Bond, the registered owner thereby 

acknowledges all of the terms and provisions of the Bond Resolution, agrees to be bound by such 

terms and provisions, acknowledges that the Bond Resolution is duly recorded and available for 

inspection in the official minutes and records of the governing body of the Issuer, and agrees that 

the terms and provisions of this Bond and the Bond Resolution constitute a contract between each 

registered owner hereof and the Issuer. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Issuer has caused this Bond to be signed with the manual 

or facsimile signature of the President of the Board of Directors of the Issuer and attested and 

countersigned with the manual or facsimile signature of the Secretary of the Board of Directors of 

the Issuer, and has caused the official seal of the Issuer to be duly impressed, or placed in facsimile, 

on this Bond. 

 

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT 

 

 

 

                                                                                                                                 

Secretary, Board of Directors,   President, Board of Directors 

 

(ISSUER SEAL)  

 

 

 FORM OF PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR’S AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATE 

 

 PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR’S AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATE 

 

It is hereby certified that this Bond has been issued under the provisions of the Bond 

Resolution described in this Bond; and that this Bond has been issued in conversion of and 

exchange for or replacement of a bond, bonds, or a portion of a bond or bonds of an issue which 

originally was approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas and registered by the 

Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas. 

 

_____________________________, 

                          Paying Agent/Registrar 

 

 

 

Dated:  ___________     _____________________________ 

Authorized Representative 

 

 

187



 

 FORM OF ASSIGNMENT 

 

 ASSIGNMENT 

 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned sells, assigns and transfers unto 

 

Please Insert Social Security or 

Other Identifying Number of Assignee 

/___________________________________/ 

 

____________________________________________________________ 

(Name and Address of Assignee) 

the within Bond and does hereby irrevocably constitute and appoint 

_________________________ to transfer said Bond on the books kept for registration thereof 

with full power of substitution in the premises. 

 

Date: _____________________ 

  ____________________________________ 

 

Signature Guaranteed:  ____________________________________ 

 

NOTICE: The signature to this assignment must correspond with the name as it appears upon 

the face of the within Bond in every particular, without alteration or enlargement 

or any change whatever; and 

 

NOTICE: Signature(s) must be guaranteed by an eligible guarantor institution participating in 

a Securities Transfer Association recognized signature guarantee program. 

 

Section 8.  ADDITIONAL DEFINITIONS.  That as used in this Resolution the following 

terms shall have the meanings set forth below, unless the text hereof specifically indicates 

otherwise: 

 

“Additional Parity Obligations” shall mean the additional parity revenue bonds permitted 

to be authorized in the future by this Resolution and by the Series 2022B Resolution. 

 

“Board” shall mean the Board of Directors of the Issuer, being the governing body of the 

Issuer, and it is further resolved that the declarations and covenants of the Issuer contained in this 

Resolution are made by, and for and on behalf of the Board and the Issuer, and are binding upon 

the Board and the Issuer for all purposes. 

 

“Contract” or “Contracts” shall mean each Water Distribution and Supply Contract entered 

into by the Issuer and each of the Member Entities. 

 

“Gross Revenues” shall mean all payments and amounts received by the Issuer pursuant to 

Section 5.02 of the Contract, and all investments, interest, and income from any Fund created 

pursuant to this Resolution. 

 

“Fund” shall mean any fund created by this Resolution. 

188



 

 

“Issuer” shall mean Riverbend Water Resources District. 

 

“Issuance Date” shall mean the date of delivery of the Bonds to the initial purchaser thereof. 

 

“Outstanding” means, when used with respect to Parity Obligations, as of the date of 

determination, all Parity Obligations theretofore delivered under this Resolution and any resolution 

of the Issuer authorizing other Parity Obligations or Additional Parity Obligations, except: 

 

(1)  Parity Obligations theretofore cancelled and delivered to the Issuer or delivered 

to the Paying Agent/Registrar for cancellation; 

 

(2)  Parity Obligations deemed paid pursuant to the provisions of Section 20 of this 

Resolution or any comparable section of any resolution authorizing other Parity 

Obligations; 

 

(3)  Parity Obligations upon transfer of or in exchange for and in lieu of which other 

Parity Obligations have been authenticated and delivered pursuant to this Resolution and 

any resolution authorizing other Parity Obligations; and 

 

(4)  Parity Obligations under which the obligations of the Issuer have been released, 

discharged or extinguished in accordance with the terms thereof. 

 

“Parity Obligations” shall mean, collectively, the Series 2020 Bonds, the Bonds, the Series 

2022B Bonds, and any Additional Parity Obligations hereafter issued by the Issuer or obligations 

issued to refund any of the foregoing (as determined within the sole discretion of the Issuer’s Board 

of Directors in accordance with applicable law) if issued in a manner that provides that the 

refunding bonds are payable from and equally and ratably secured by a first lien on and pledge of 

the Pledged Revenues. 

 

“Pledged Revenues” shall mean: (a)  the payments to be made to the Issuer by the Member 

Entities pursuant to Section 3(a)(1) of the Contracts and (b) any additional revenues, income, 

receipts, or other resources, including, without limitation, any grants, donations, or income 

received or to be received from the United States Government, or any other public or private 

source, whether pursuant to an agreement or otherwise, which in the future may, at the option of 

the Issuer, be pledged to the payment of the Parity Obligations. 

 

“Project” shall mean the Planned Improvements as defined in the Contract, being the 

regional water system described in the Riverbend Regional Water Master Plan, dated July 25, 

2018, including without limitation a new surface water treatment plant with an initial treatment 

capacity of 25 million gallons per day, a new raw water intake at Wright Patman Lake, water 

transmission lines, storage facilities, pumps, and related infrastructure for the distribution and sale 

of treated water, raw water, and reuse water. 

 

“Series 2020 Bonds” shall have the meaning assigned thereto in the preambles hereof. 

 

“Series 2020 Bond Resolutions” shall have the meaning assigned thereto in the preambles 

hereof. 

189



 

 

“Series 2022A Bonds” or “Bonds” shall mean, collectively the Initial Bond as described 

and defined in Section 1 of this Resolution, and all substitute bonds exchanged therefor as well as 

all other substitute and replacement bonds issued pursuant to this Resolution. 

 

“Series 2022A Resolution” or “Resolution” shall mean this resolution authorizing the 

Bonds. 

 

“Series 2022B Bonds” shall mean the Issuer’s Contract Revenue Bonds (Regional Water 

System Project), Series 2022B being issued contemporaneously with the Bonds. 

 

“Series 2022B Resolution” shall mean the resolution adopted by the Issuer on the date 

hereof authorizing the issuance of the Series 2022B Bonds. 

 

“TWDB” shall mean the Texas Water Development Board. 

 

“year” shall mean the 12 month period beginning each September 1, or such other 12 month 

period hereafter established by the Issuer as a fiscal year for the purposes of this Resolution. 

 

Section 9.  PLEDGE.  (a)  The Bonds, and the interest thereon, are and shall be secured by 

and payable from a first lien on and pledge of the Pledged Revenues, and the Pledged Revenues 

are further pledged to the establishment and maintenance of the Interest and Redemption Fund as 

provided in this Resolution.  It is specifically recognized that the Member Cities are required to 

make payments, from the gross revenues of their respective waterworks and sewer systems, to the 

Issuer pursuant to the Contracts sufficient to enable the Issuer to make all deposits and payments 

provided for herein, and that the Bonds, and the interest thereon, are and shall be payable from and 

secured by a first lien on and pledge of all of the Pledged Revenues and the Pledged Revenues are 

further pledged irrevocably to the establishment and maintenance of the Funds hereinafter 

described. 

 

(b) The Bonds and the interest thereon constitute and shall be special obligations of the 

Issuer payable solely from the Pledged Revenues, and the owner or owners thereof shall never 

have the right to demand payment thereof out of funds raised or to be raised from taxation.  The 

Issuer has no taxing power. 

 

Section 10.  REVENUE FUND.  The Issuer previously created and established pursuant to 

the Series 2020 Bond Resolutions, and there shall be maintained at an official depository of the 

Issuer (which must be a member of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation) a separate fund to 

be entitled the “Riverbend Water Resources District Contract Revenue Bonds (Regional Water 

System Project) Revenue Fund” (hereafter called the “Revenue Fund”).  All Pledged Revenues 

shall be credited to the Revenue Fund immediately upon receipt and shall be deposited from the 

Revenue Fund in the manner and amounts hereinafter provided. 

 

Section 11.  INTEREST AND REDEMPTION FUND.  For the sole purpose of paying the 

principal of and interest on all outstanding Bonds and any Additional Parity Obligations, as the 

same come due, the Issuer previously created and established pursuant to the Series 2020 Bond 

Resolutions and shall be maintained with the Paying Agent/Registrar, a separate fund to be entitled 

the “Riverbend Water Resources District Contract Revenue Bonds (Regional Water System 

190



 

Project) Interest and Redemption Fund” (hereinafter called the “Interest and Redemption Fund”).  

The Pledged Revenues shall be deposited into the Interest and Redemption Fund from the Revenue 

Fund when and as required by this Resolution. 

 

Section 12. [RESERVED]. 

 

Section 13.  INVESTMENTS.  Money in every Fund required to be maintained by this 

Resolution may, at the option of the Issuer, be invested as provided in the Public Funds Investment 

Act, Chapter 2256, Texas Government Code, for the investment of funds of the entities described 

therein; provided that all such deposits and investments shall be made in such manner that the 

money required to be expended from any Fund will be available at the proper time or times when 

expected to be needed.  Interest and income derived from such deposits and investments shall be 

credited to the Fund from which the deposit or investment was made and shall be used only for the 

purpose or purposes for which such Fund is required or permitted to be used.  Such investments 

shall be sold promptly when necessary to prevent any default in connection with the Bonds. 

 

Section 14.  FUNDS SECURED.  All Funds required to be maintained by this Resolution 

shall be secured in the manner and to the fullest extent by law, including particularly, the Public 

Funds Collateral Act, Chapter 2257, Texas Government Code, and such Funds shall be used only 

for the purposes and in the manner permitted or required by this Resolution. 

 

Section 15.  DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS.  (a)  Immediately after the delivery of 

the Bonds the Issuer shall deposit to the credit of the Interest and Redemption Fund, from the 

proceeds received from the sale and delivery of the Bonds, all accrued interest, to be used to pay 

part of the interest coming due on the Bonds. 

 

(b) The Issuer shall transfer from the Pledged Revenues credited to the Revenue Fund 

and deposit to the credit of the Interest and Redemption Fund the amounts, at the times, as follows: 

 

(1) on or before the fifth day prior to each interest payment date for the Bonds, 

such amounts as will be sufficient, together with other amounts, if any, then on hand in the 

Interest and Redemption Fund and available for such purpose, to pay the interest scheduled 

to accrue and come due on the Bonds and any Additional Parity Obligations on such next 

succeeding interest payment date; 

 

(2) on or before the fifth day prior to each principal payment date for the Bonds, 

such amounts as will be sufficient, together with other amounts, if any, then on hand in the 

Interest and Redemption Fund and available for such purpose, to pay the principal 

scheduled to mature and come due, on the Bonds and any Additional Parity Obligations on 

such next succeeding principal payment date; 

 

(3) on or before the fifth day prior to any optional redemption date set by the 

Issuer for any Bonds, such amount as will be sufficient to pay the principal of, premium, if 

any, and interest on the Bonds scheduled to be redeemed on such optional redemption date; 

and 

 

(4) any amounts required to be deposited therein pursuant to Sections 30 and 

31 of this Resolution 

191



 

 

Section 16.  DEFICIENCIES.  If on any occasion there shall not be sufficient Pledged 

Revenues to make the required deposits into the Interest and Redemption Fund, then such 

deficiency shall be made up as soon as possible from the next available Pledged Revenues, or from 

any other sources available for such purpose. 

 

Section 17.  EXCESS PLEDGED REVENUES.  Subject to making the required deposits 

to the credit of the Interest and Redemption Fund, when and as required by this Resolution, or any 

Resolution authorizing the issuance of Additional Parity Obligations, the excess Pledged Revenues 

may be used by the Issuer for any other lawful purpose. 

 

Section 18.  CONSTRUCTION FUND.  There shall be established a separate fund to be 

known as the “Taxable Series 2022A Bond Construction Fund” (the “Construction Fund”) with 

the Issuer’s depository bank and upon the delivery of the Bonds, and subject to making the deposits 

required by Sections 12 and 15(a) hereof, the remaining proceeds of the Bonds shall be deposited 

into the Construction Fund.  Subject to any escrow or trust and agency fund requirements imposed 

by the TWDB pursuant to Section 31 hereof, money in the Construction Fund shall be subject to 

disbursements by the Issuer for payment of all costs incurred in carrying out the purpose for which 

the Bonds are issued. 

 

Section 19.  PAYMENT OF BONDS.  On or before the fourteenth calendar day of each 

April and of each October hereafter while any of the Bonds or Additional Parity Obligations are 

outstanding and unpaid, the Issuer shall make available to the paying agents therefor, out of the 

Interest and Redemption Fund, if necessary, money sufficient to pay such interest on and such 

principal of the Bonds and Additional Parity Obligations as will accrue or mature on the April 15 

or October 15 immediately following. 

 

Section 20.  FINAL DEPOSITS.  (a) At such times as the aggregate amount of money and 

investments in the Interest and Redemption Fund are at least equal in market value to (1) the 

aggregate principal amount of all unpaid (unmatured and matured) outstanding Bonds and 

Additional Parity Obligations, plus (2) the aggregate amount of all unpaid interest, including all 

unpaid (unmatured and matured) outstanding interest coupons, appertaining to such Bonds and 

Additional Parity Obligations, no further deposits need be made into the Interest and Redemption 

Fund.  In determining the amount of such Bonds and Additional Parity Obligations, and unpaid 

interest appertaining thereto, outstanding at any time, there shall be subtracted and excluded the 

amount of any such Bonds and Additional Parity Obligations, and unpaid interest appertaining 

thereto, which shall have been duly called for redemption and for which funds shall have been 

deposited with the paying agents therefor sufficient for such redemption. 

 

(b) Any money deposited with the Paying Agent/Registrar in trust for the payment of 

the principal of, redemption premium, if any, or interest on any Bond and remaining unclaimed 

for four years after such principal of, redemption premium, if any, or interest on such Bond has 

become due and payable shall, subject to the unclaimed property laws of the State of Texas, be 

paid to the Issuer; provided, however, that before the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be required to 

make any such repayment, the Paying Agent/Registrar may at the expense of the Issuer cause to 

be published at least once, in a financial newspaper, journal, or publication of general circulation 

in The City of New York, New York, or in the State of Texas, a notice that such money remains 

unclaimed and that, after a date specified therein, which shall not be less than 30 days from the 

192



 

date of such publication, any unclaimed balance of such money then remaining will be repaid to 

the Issuer.  After the payment of such unclaimed moneys to the Issuer, the owner of such Bond 

shall thereafter look only to the Issuer for the payment thereof, and all liability of the Paying 

Agent/Registrar with respect to such money shall thereupon cease. 

 

Section 21.  ADDITIONAL PARITY OBLIGATIONS.  (a)  The Issuer shall have the right 

and power at any time and from time to time, and in one or more Series or issues, to authorize, 

issue, and deliver additional parity revenue bonds or notes (herein called “Additional Parity 

Obligations”), in any amounts, for any lawful purpose of or relating to the Project and the Planned 

Improvements (as such term is defined in the Contracts), as permitted by the Contracts, including 

the refunding of any Parity Obligation.  Such Additional Parity Obligations, if and when 

authorized, issued, and delivered in accordance with this Resolution, shall be secured by and made 

payable equally and ratably on a parity with the Bonds and the Series 2022B Bonds, and all other 

Outstanding Parity Obligations, from a first lien on and pledge of the Pledged Revenues; provided, 

however, that for so long as the TWDB is the holder of Outstanding Parity Obligations, such 

Pledged Revenues may not be pledged to the payment of any Additional Parity Obligations secured 

by a pledge of the same Pledge Revenues unless the Issuer demonstrates to the TWDB Executive 

Administrator=s satisfaction that the Pledged Revenues will be sufficient for the repayment of all 

then Outstanding Parity Obligations and the proposed Additional Parity Obligations. 

 

(b) The Interest and Redemption Fund established by this Resolution shall secure and 

be used to pay all Additional Parity Obligations as well as the Bonds and the Series 2022B Bonds.  

However, each Resolution under which Additional Parity Obligations are issued shall provide and 

require that, in addition to the amounts required by the provisions of this Resolution and the 

provisions of any other Resolution or Resolutions authorizing Additional Parity Obligations to be 

deposited to the credit of the Interest and Redemption Fund, the Issuer shall deposit to the credit 

of the Interest and Redemption Fund at least such amounts as are required for the payment of all 

principal of and interest on said Additional Parity Obligations then being issued, as the same come 

due. 

 

(c) The principal of all Additional Parity Obligations must be scheduled to be paid or 

mature on October 15 of the years in which such principal is scheduled to be paid or mature; and 

all interest thereon must be payable on April 15 and October 15. 

 

(d) The Issuer further reserves the right to issue bonds, notes, or other obligations of 

inferior liens and bonds, notes, or other obligations payable from sources other than Pledged 

Revenues. 

 

Section 22.  FURTHER REQUIREMENTS FOR ADDITIONAL PARITY 

OBLIGATIONS.  Additional Parity Obligations shall be issued only in accordance with this 

Resolution, but notwithstanding any provisions of this Resolution to the contrary, without the 

consent of owners of at least 51% in aggregate principal amount of Bonds outstanding, no 

installment or series of Additional Parity Obligations shall be issued unless: 

 

(a) a certificate is executed by the President or the chief administrative officer 

of the Issuer to the effect that no default exists in connection with any of the covenants or 

requirements of the Resolution or resolutions authorizing the issuance of all then 

193



 

outstanding Parity Obligations and that the Interest and Redemption Fund contains the 

amount then required to be on deposit therein; 

 

(b) an opinion of Bond Counsel is rendered to the effect that (i) such Additional 

Parity Obligations are valid and binding obligations of the Issuer and enforceable in 

accordance with their terms subject to governmental immunity, bankruptcy, insolvency, 

reorganization, moratorium and other laws affecting creditors’ rights or remedies generally 

and to the extent that certain equitable remedies, including specific performance may not 

be available; (ii) such Additional Parity Obligations have been duly and validly authorized 

and issued in accordance with law; and 

 

(c) the Resolution authorizing the issuance of such Additional Parity 

Obligations shall provide for the payment of principal and interest on such Additional 

Parity Obligations. 

 

Section 23.  GENERAL COVENANTS.  The Issuer further covenants and agrees that: 

 

(a) PERFORMANCE.  It will faithfully perform at all times any and all covenants, 

undertakings, stipulations, and provisions contained in this Resolution and each resolution 

authorizing the issuance of Additional Parity Obligations, and in each and every Bond and 

Outstanding Parity Obligation; that it will promptly pay or cause to be paid the principal of and 

interest on every Bond and Outstanding Parity Obligation, on the dates and in the places and 

manner prescribed in such resolutions and Bonds or Outstanding Parity Obligations; and that it 

will, at the times and in the manner prescribed, deposit or cause to be deposited the amounts 

required to be deposited into the Interest and Redemption Fund; and any holder of the Bonds or 

Outstanding Parity Obligations may require the Issuer, its Board, and its officials and employees, 

to carry out, respect, or enforce the covenants and obligations of this Resolution or any resolution 

authorizing the issuance of other Parity Obligations, by all legal and equitable means, including 

specifically, but without limitation, the use and filing of mandamus proceedings, in any court of 

competent jurisdiction, against the Issuer, its Board, and its officials and employees. 

 

(b) ISSUER’S LEGAL AUTHORITY.  The Issuer is a duly created and existing 

conservation and reclamation district of the State of Texas pursuant to Article 16, Section 59 of 

the Texas Constitution and the Issuer Act, and is duly authorized under the laws of the State of 

Texas to create and issue the Bonds; that all action on its part for the creation and issuance of the 

Bonds has been duly and effectively taken, and that the Bonds in the hands of the holders and 

owners thereof are and will be valid and enforceable special obligations of the Issuer in accordance 

with their terms. 

 

(c) OPERATION OF PROJECT.  While the Bonds or any Parity Obligations are 

outstanding and unpaid it will cause the Project to be continuously and efficiently operated and 

maintained in good condition, repair, and working order in accordance with the Contracts. 

 

(d) FURTHER ENCUMBRANCE.  While the Bonds or any Parity Obligations are 

outstanding and unpaid, the Issuer shall not additionally encumber the Pledged Revenues in any 

manner, except as permitted in this Resolution in connection with Additional Parity Obligations, 

unless said encumbrance is made junior and subordinate in all respects to the liens, pledges, 

covenants, and agreements of this Resolution and any resolution authorizing the issuance of 

194



 

Outstanding Parity Obligations; but the right of the Issuer and the Board to issue revenue bonds 

payable from a subordinate lien on the Pledged Revenues is specifically recognized and retained. 

 

(e) RECORDS.  Proper books of record and account will be kept in which full, true, 

and correct entries will be made of all dealings, activities, and transactions relating to the Project, 

the Pledged Revenues, and all Funds described in this Resolution; and all books, documents, and 

vouchers relating thereto shall at all reasonable times be made available for inspection upon request 

of any bondholder. 

 

(f) AUDITS.  The Issuer covenants that within 120 days after the close of each Fiscal 

Year, it shall have had made, and will file with the TWDB, so long as its owns any Bonds, and the 

rating agencies which have issued a rating on the Bonds, in such quantity as each may require, an 

audited financial statement for itself prepared in accordance with the requirements of Section 

49.192, Texas Water Code, as amended. 

 

Copies of such audit shall be filed in the office of the Issuer and shall be open for inspection 

by any interested person during normal office hours.  The Issuer shall furnish a copy of such audit 

reports any owner of Bonds upon request. 

 

(g) GOVERNMENTAL AGENCIES.  It will comply with all of the terms and 

conditions of any and all agreements applicable to the Project and the Bonds or Outstanding Parity 

Obligations entered into between the Issuer and any governmental agency, and the Issuer will take 

all action necessary to enforce said terms and conditions; and the Issuer will obtain and keep in 

full force and effect all franchises, permits, and other requirements necessary with respect to the 

acquisition, construction, operation, and maintenance of the Project. 

 

(h) CONTRACTS WITH MEMBER ENTITIES.  It will comply with the terms and 

conditions of the Contracts and will cause the Member Entities to comply with all of its obligations 

thereunder, particularly the obligation to fix and collect rates for services sufficient to pay the 

Bonds and any other Outstanding Parity Obligations, by all lawful means. 

 

(i) INSPECTION.  Any registered owner of any Bonds shall have the right at all 

reasonable times to inspect all financial records, accounts, audits, and data of the Issuer relating to 

the Project.  In addition, so long as the TWDB or other state agency holds any of the Bonds, the 

Issuer shall give any duly authorized agent of such agency access to and right to copy any records, 

reports and files of the Issuer pertaining to the Project, and shall prepare and furnish to such agency 

such reports on the physical condition and finances of the Project as such agency shall request. 

 

(j) BUDGET.  It will prepare, adopt, and place into effect an annual budget (the 

“Annual Budget”) for operation and maintenance of the Planned Improvements (as defined in the 

Contracts) for each fiscal year, including in each Annual Budget such items as are customarily and 

reasonably contained in a regional water system budget under generally accepted accounting 

procedures.  The Issuer shall, at least thirty days subsequent to adopting and placing into effect 

each Annual Budget, furnish, without cost, a copy of same to the TWDB, so long as it owns any 

Bonds, and to any owner of 25% or more in aggregate principal amount of all then Outstanding 

Parity Obligations who may so request. 

 

195



 

(k) PERMITS.  It will comply with all of the terms and conditions of any and all 

franchises, permits, and authorizations applicable to or necessary with respect to the Project and 

which have been obtained from any governmental agency; and the Issuer has or will obtain and 

keep in full force and effect all franchises, permits, authorizations, and other requirements 

applicable to or necessary with respect to the acquisition, construction, equipment, operation, and 

maintenance of the Project. 

 

Section 24.  AMENDMENT OF RESOLUTION.  (a)  The holders or owners of Parity 

Obligations aggregating 51% in principal amount of the aggregate principal amount of all then 

Outstanding Parity Obligations shall have the right from time to time to approve any amendment 

to this Resolution or any other resolution authorizing the issuance of Parity Obligations, which 

may be deemed necessary or desirable by the Issuer, provided, however, that nothing herein 

contained shall permit or be construed to permit the amendment of the terms and conditions in said 

resolutions or in the Parity Obligations so as to: 

 

(1) Make any change in the maturity of the Outstanding Parity Obligations; 

 

(2) Reduce the rate of interest borne by any of the Outstanding Parity Obligations; 

 

(3) Reduce the amount of the principal payable on the Outstanding Bonds or Additional 

Parity Obligations; 

 

(4) Modify the terms of payment of principal of or interest on the Outstanding Parity 

Obligations, or impose any conditions with respect to such payment; 

 

(5) Affect the rights of the holders of less than all of the Parity Obligations then 

Outstanding; 

 

(6) Change the minimum percentage of the principal amount of Parity Obligations 

necessary for consent to such amendment. 

 

(b) If at any time the Issuer shall desire to amend a resolution under this Section, the 

Issuer shall cause notice of the proposed amendment to be published in a financial newspaper or 

journal published in the City of Texarkana, Texas, or in the City of Austin, Texas, once during 

each calendar week for at least two successive calendar weeks.  Such notice shall briefly set forth 

the nature of the proposed amendment and shall state that a copy thereof is on file at the principal 

office of each Paying Agent for each Series of Parity Obligations for inspection by all holders of 

Parity Obligations.  Such publication is not required, however, if notice in writing is given to each 

holder of Parity Obligations. 

 

(c) Whenever at any time not less than thirty days, and within one year, from the date 

of the first publication of notice or other service of written notice the Issuer shall receive an 

instrument or instruments executed by the holders or owners of at least 51% in aggregate principal 

amount of all Parity Obligations then outstanding, which instrument or instruments shall refer to 

the proposed amendment described in said notice and which specifically consent to and approve 

such amendment in substantially the form of the copy thereof on file as aforesaid, the Issuer may 

adopt the amendatory resolution in substantially the same form. 

 

196



 

(d) Upon the adoption of any amendatory resolution pursuant to the provisions of this 

Section, the resolution being amended shall be deemed to be amended in accordance with the 

amendatory resolution, and the respective rights, duties, and obligations of the Issuer and all the 

holders or owners of then Outstanding Parity Obligations and all future Additional Parity 

Obligations shall thereafter be determined, exercised, and enforced hereunder, subject in all 

respects to such amendment. 

 

(e) Any consent given by the holder or owner of any Parity Obligation pursuant to the 

provisions of this Section shall be irrevocable for a period of six months from the date of the first 

publication of the notice provided for in this Section, and shall be conclusive and binding upon all 

future holders or owners of the same Parity Obligation during such period.  Such consent may be 

revoked at any time after six months from the date of the first publication of such notice by the 

holder or owner who gave such consent, or by a successor in title, by filing notice thereof with 

each Paying Agent for each Series of Parity Obligations and the Issuer, but such revocation shall 

not be effective if the holders of 51% in aggregate principal amount of the then Outstanding Parity 

Obligations as in this Section defined have, prior to the attempted revocation, consented to and 

approved the amendment. 

 

(f) The ownership of all registered Parity Obligations shall be ascertained by the 

registration books pertaining thereto kept by the Paying Agent/Registrar.  The Issuer may 

conclusively assume that such holding or ownership continues until written notice to the contrary 

is served upon the Paying Agent/Registrar. 

 

Section 25.  DEFEASANCE OF BONDS.  (a) Any Bond and the interest thereon shall be 

deemed to be paid, retired, and no longer outstanding (a “Defeased Bond”) within the meaning of 

this Resolution, except to the extent provided in subsection (d) of this Section 25, when payment 

of the principal of such Bond, plus interest thereon to the due date (whether such due date be by 

reason of maturity, upon redemption, or otherwise) either (i) shall have been made or caused to be 

made in accordance with the terms thereof (including the giving of any required notice of 

redemption), or (ii) shall have been provided for on or before such due date by irrevocably 

depositing with or making available to the Paying Agent/Registrar for such payment (1) lawful 

money of the United States of America sufficient to make such payment or (2) Defeasance 

Securities which mature as to principal and interest in such amounts and at such times as will 

insure the availability, without reinvestment, of sufficient money to provide for such payment, and 

when proper arrangements have been made by the Issuer with the Paying Agent/Registrar for the 

payment of its services until all Defeased Bonds shall have become due and payable.  At such time 

as a Bond shall be deemed to be a Defeased Bond hereunder, as aforesaid, such Bond and the 

interest thereon shall no longer be secured by, payable from, or entitled to the benefits of the 

Pledged Revenues pledged as provided in this Resolution, and such principal and interest shall be 

payable solely from such money or Defeasance Securities. 

 

(b) Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection (a), the Issuer expressly reserves the 

right, pursuant to Section 1207.033(c), Texas Government Code, to later call a Defeased Bond for 

redemption in accordance with the provisions of this Resolution. 

 

(c) Any moneys so deposited with the Paying Agent/Registrar may at the written 

direction of the Issuer also be invested in Defeasance Securities, maturing in the amounts and times 

as hereinbefore set forth, and all income from such Defeasance Securities received by the Paying 

197



 

Agent/Registrar which is not required for the payment of the Bonds and interest thereon with 

respect to which such money has been so deposited, shall be turned over to the Issuer, or deposited 

as directed in writing by the Issuer. 

 

(d) The term “Defeasance Securities” as used in this Section, means any securities and 

obligations now or hereafter authorized by State of Texas law that are eligible to refund, retire or 

otherwise discharge obligations such as the Bonds. 

 

(e) Until all Defeased Bonds shall have become due and payable, the Paying 

Agent/Registrar shall perform the services of Paying Agent/Registrar for such Defeased Bonds the 

same as if they had not been defeased, and the Issuer shall make proper arrangements to provide 

and pay for such services as required by this Resolution. 

 

(f) In the event that the Issuer elects to defease less than all of the principal amount of 

Bonds of a maturity, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall select such amount of Bonds by such random 

method as it deems fair and appropriate. 

 

(g) So long as the TWDB is the registered owner of any of the Bonds, the Issuer shall 

provide written notice to the TWDB of a defeasance of the Bonds pursuant to subsection (a) of 

this Section. 

 

Section 26.  DAMAGED, MUTILATED, LOST, STOLEN, OR DESTROYED BONDS.  

(a)  Replacement Bonds.  In the event any outstanding Bonds or Bond authorized by this 

Resolution is damaged, mutilated, lost, stolen, or destroyed, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall cause 

to be printed, executed, and delivered, a new bond of the same principal amount, maturity, and 

interest rate, as the damaged, mutilated, lost, stolen, or destroyed Bond, in replacement for such 

Bond in the manner hereinafter provided. 

 

(b) Application for Replacement Bonds.  Application for replacement of damaged, 

mutilated, lost, stolen, or destroyed Bonds shall be made by the registered owner thereof to the 

Paying Agent/Registrar.  In every case of loss, theft, or destruction of a Bond, the registered owner 

applying for a replacement bond shall furnish to the Issuer and to the Paying Agent/Registrar such 

security or indemnity as may be required by them to save each of them harmless from any loss or 

damage with respect thereto.  Also, in every case of loss, theft, or destruction of a Bond, the 

registered owner shall furnish to the Issuer and to the Paying Agent/Registrar evidence to their 

satisfaction of the loss, theft, or destruction of such Bond, as the case may be.  In every case of 

damage or mutilation of a Bond, the registered owner shall surrender to the Paying Agent/Registrar 

for cancellation the Bond so damaged or mutilated. 

 

(c) No Default Occurred.  Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section, in 

the event any such Bond shall have matured, and no default has occurred which is then continuing 

in the payment of the principal of, redemption premium, if any, or interest on the Bond, the Issuer 

may authorize the payment of the same (without surrender thereof except in the case of a damaged 

or mutilated Bond) instead of issuing a replacement Bond, provided security or indemnity is 

furnished as above provided in this Section. 

 

(d) Charge for Issuing Replacement Bonds.  Prior to the issuance of any replacement 

bond, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall charge the registered owner of such Bond with all legal, 

198



 

printing, and other expenses in connection therewith.  Every replacement bond issued pursuant to 

the provisions of this Section by virtue of the fact that any Bond is lost, stolen, or destroyed shall 

constitute a contractual obligation of the Issuer whether or not the lost, stolen, or destroyed Bond 

shall be found at any time, or be enforceable by anyone, and shall be entitled to all the benefits of 

this Resolution equally and proportionately with any and all other Bonds duly issued under this 

Resolution. 

 

(e) Authority for Issuing Replacement Bonds.  In accordance with Section 1201.067, 

Texas Government Code, this Section of this Resolution shall constitute authority for the issuance 

of any such replacement bond without necessity of further action by the governing body of the 

Issuer or any other body or person, and the duty of the replacement of such bonds is hereby 

authorized and imposed upon the Paying Agent/Registrar, and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall 

authenticate and deliver such Bonds in the form and manner and with the effect, as provided in 

Section 6(d) of this Resolution for Bonds issued in conversion and exchange for other Bonds. 

 

Section 27.  CUSTODY, APPROVAL, AND REGISTRATION OF INITIAL BOND; 

BOND COUNSEL’S OPINION, CUSIP NUMBERS, INSURANCE, AND PREAMBLE.  The 

General Manager of the Issuer is hereby authorized to have control of the Initial Bond issued 

hereunder and all necessary records and proceedings pertaining to the Initial Bond pending its 

delivery and its investigation, examination, and approval by the Attorney General of the State of 

Texas, and its registration by the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas.  Upon 

registration of the Initial Bond said Comptroller of Public Accounts (or a deputy designated in 

writing to act for said Comptroller) shall manually sign the Comptroller’s Registration Certificate 

on the Initial Bond, and the seal of said Comptroller shall be impressed, or placed in facsimile, on 

the Initial Bond.  The approving legal opinion of the Issuer’s Bond Counsel and the assigned 

CUSIP numbers may, at the option of the Issuer, be printed on the Initial Bond or on any Bonds 

issued and delivered in conversion of and exchange or replacement of any Bond, but neither shall 

have any legal effect, and shall be solely for the convenience and information of the registered 

owners of the Bonds.  If insurance is obtained on any of the Bonds, the Initial Bond and all the 

Bonds shall bear an appropriate legend concerning insurance as provided by the insurer.  The 

preamble to this Resolution is hereby adopted and made a part hereof for all purposes. 

 

Section 28.  INTEREST EARNINGS ON BOND PROCEEDS.  Interest earnings derived 

from the investment of proceeds from the sale of the Initial Bond shall be used along with other 

bond proceeds for the acquisition, by purchase and construction, of the Project in accordance with 

the Contracts; provided that after completion of the Project, if any of such interest earnings remain 

on hand, such interest earnings along with any surplus bond proceeds shall be deposited in the 

Interest and Sinking Fund. 

 

Section 29. ESCROW AGREEMENT AND ESCROW ACCOUNT.  (a)  The Escrow 

Agreement relating to the Bonds between the Issuer and the escrow agent named therein (the 

“Escrow Agent”) substantially in the form and content attached hereto as Exhibit A, specifying 

the duties and responsibilities of the Issuer and the Escrow Agent, is hereby approved and the 

President of the Board is hereby authorized and directed to execute the Escrow Agreement on 

behalf of the Issuer.  The Escrow Agent named in the Escrow Agreement is hereby appointed as 

the Escrow Agent pursuant to such Escrow Agreement. 

 

199



 

(b) On the closing date, the Issuer shall cause the proceeds from the sale of the Bonds 

to be deposited into the Escrow Account or, if agreed to by the TWDB, all or a portion of the 

proceeds of the Bonds may be deposited into the Construction Fund or as otherwise directed by 

the Issuer. 

 

(c) Except as provided in Section 36 moneys disbursed from the Escrow Account 

established pursuant to the Escrow Agreement shall be applied only for the projects for which the 

Bonds are issued. 

 

(d) The security for, and the investment of, funds on deposit in the Escrow Account 

shall be governed by the provisions of the Escrow Agreement. 

 

Section 30.  SALE OF INITIAL BOND.  The Bonds hereby sold and shall be delivered to 

the Texas Water Development Board for cash for the principal amount thereof.  In accordance with 

its Resolution No. 20-075, the Texas Water Development Board will purchase the Bonds, with an 

amount approved by the Texas Water Development Board to be deposited to the Construction 

Fund authorized by Section 18 hereof (the “Construction Fund”) upon initial delivery of the Bonds, 

and the balance of the proceeds to be deposited to the Escrow Account authorized by Section 29 

hereof until authorized for transfer to the Construction Fund by the Texas Water Development 

Board.  The officers of the Issuer are authorized to do any and all things necessary in connection 

with the issuance of the Bonds, and are authorized to execute and deliver such certificates as are 

necessary or appropriate in connection with the issuance of the Bonds.  It is hereby officially found, 

determined, and declared that the terms of this sale are the most advantageous reasonably 

obtainable.  The Bonds shall initially be registered in the name of the TWDB or its designee. 

 

Section 31.  DTC REGISTRATION.  The Bonds initially shall be issued and delivered in 

such manner that no physical distribution of the Bonds will be made to the public, and the 

Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), New York, New York, initially will act as depository for the 

Bonds.  DTC has represented that it is a limited purpose trust company incorporated under the 

laws of the State of New York, a member of the Federal Reserve System, a “clearing corporation” 

within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and a “clearing agency” 

registered under Section 17A of the federal Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the 

Issuer accepts, but in no way verifies, such representations.  The Initial Bond authorized by this 

Resolution shall be delivered to and registered in the name of the TWDB.  However, it is a 

condition of delivery and sale that the TWDB, immediately after such delivery, shall cause the 

Paying Agent/Registrar, as provided for in this Resolution, to cancel said Initial Bond and deliver 

in exchange therefor a substitute Bond for each maturity of such Initial Bond, with each such 

substitute Bond to be registered in the name of CEDE & CO., the nominee of DTC, and it shall be 

the duty of the Paying Agent/Registrar to take such action.  It is expected that DTC will hold the 

Bonds on behalf of the TWDB and/or the DTC Participants, as defined and described in the 

Official Statement referred to and approved in Section 29 hereof (the “DTC Participants”).  So 

long as each Bond is registered in the name of CEDE & CO., the Paying Agent/Registrar shall 

treat and deal with DTC in all respects the same as if it were the actual and beneficial owner 

thereof.  It is expected that DTC will maintain a book entry system which will identify beneficial 

ownership of the Bonds by DTC Participants in integral amounts of $5,000, with transfers of 

ownership being effected on the records of DTC and the DTC Participants pursuant to rules and 

regulations established by them, and that the substitute Bonds initially deposited with DTC shall 

be immobilized and not be further exchanged for substitute Bonds except as hereinafter provided.  

200



 

The Issuer is not responsible or liable for any functions of DTC, will not be responsible for paying 

any fees or charges with respect to its services, will not be responsible or liable for maintaining, 

supervising, or reviewing the records of DTC or the DTC Participants, or protecting any interests 

or rights of the beneficial owners of the Bonds.  It shall be the duty of the TWDB and the DTC 

Participants to make all arrangements with DTC to establish this book-entry system, the beneficial 

ownership of the Bonds, and the method of paying the fees and charges of DTC.  The Issuer does 

not represent, nor does it in any way covenant that the initial book-entry system established with 

DTC will be maintained in the future.  The Issuer reserves the right and option at any time in the 

future, in its sole discretion, to terminate the DTC (CEDE & CO.) book-entry only registration 

requirement described above, and to permit the Bonds to be registered in the name of any owner.  

If the Issuer exercises its right and option to terminate such requirement, it shall give written notice 

of such termination to the Paying Agent/ Registrar and to DTC, and thereafter the Paying 

Agent/Registrar shall, upon presentation and proper request, register any Bond in any name as 

provided for in this Resolution.  Notwithstanding the initial establishment of the foregoing book-

entry system with DTC, if for any reason any of the originally delivered substitute Bonds is duly 

filed with the Paying Agent/Registrar with proper request for transfer and substitution, as provided 

for in this Resolution, substitute Bonds will be duly delivered as provided in this Resolution, and 

there will be no assurance or representation that any book-entry system will be maintained for such 

Bonds. 

 

Section 32.   CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING.  (a).Definitions.  As used 

in this Section, the following terms have the meanings ascribed to such terms below: 

 

 “Financial Obligation” means a (a) debt obligation; (b) derivative instrument 

entered into in connection with, or pledged as security or a source of payment for, an existing or 

planned debt obligation; or (c) guarantee of a debt obligation or any such derivative instrument; 

provided that “financial obligation” shall not include municipal securities (as defined in the 

Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) as to which a final official statement (as defined in 

the Rule) has been provided to the MSRB consistent with the Rule. 

 

 “MSRB” means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board or any successor to its 

functions under the Rule. 

 

 “Rule” means SEC Rule 15c2-12, as amended from time to time. 

 

 “SEC” means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission. 

 

 (b) Annual Reports.  The Issuer shall provide annually to the MSRB, within 

twelve months after the end of each fiscal year ending in or after 2022, financial information and 

operating data with respect to the Issuer to the extent that such information is customarily prepared 

by the Issuer and is publicly available.  Any financial statements so to be provided shall be (1) 

prepared in accordance with the accounting principles described in the notes to the financial 

statements filed with the Texas Water Development Board as part of the Issuer’s application to the 

Texas Water Development Board, or such other accounting principles as the Issuer may be 

required to employ from time to time pursuant to state law or regulation, and (2) audited, if the 

Issuer commissions an audit of such statements and the audit is completed within the period during 

which they must be provided.  If the audit of such financial statements is not complete within such 

period, then the Issuer shall provide unaudited financial information that is available to the Issuer 

201



 

by the required time and will provide audited financial statements for the applicable fiscal year to 

the MSRB, when and if the audit report on such statements become available.  Such information 

shall be transmitted electronically to the MSRB, in such format and accompanied by such 

identifying information as prescribed by the MSRB. 

 

If the Issuer changes its fiscal year, it will notify the MSRB of the change (and of the date 

of the new fiscal year end) prior to the next date by which the Issuer otherwise would be required 

to provide financial information and operating data pursuant to this Section.  The financial 

information and operating data to be provided pursuant to this Section may be set forth in full in 

one or more documents or may be included by specific reference to any document (including an 

official statement or other offering document, if it is available from the MSRB) that theretofore 

has been provided to the MSRB or filed with the SEC. 

 

(c) Notice of Certain Events.  (i) The Issuer shall file notice of any of the following 

events with respect to the Bonds with the MSRB in a timely manner and not more than 10 business 

days after occurrence of the event: 

 

(1) Principal and interest payment delinquencies; 

(2) Non-payment related defaults if material; 

(3) Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties; 

(4) Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; 

(5) Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform; 

(6) Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or 

final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-

TEB), or other material notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of 

the Bonds, or other material events affecting the tax status of the Bonds; 

(7) Modifications to rights of holders of the Bonds if material; 

(8) Bond calls, if material, and tender offers; 

(9) Defeasances; 

(10) Release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds if 

material; 

(11) Rating changes; 

(12) Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership, or similar event of the Issuer; 

(13) The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the Issuer 

or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Issuer, other than in the 

ordinary course of business, the entry into of a definitive agreement to undertake 

such an action or the termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such 

actions, other than pursuant to its terms, if material; 

(14) Appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of a trustee, 

if material; 

(15) Incurrence of a Financial Obligation of the Issuer, if material, or agreement to 

covenants, events of default, remedies, priority rights, or other similar terms of a 

Financial Obligation of the Issuer, any of which affect security holders, if material; 

and 

(16) Default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or other 

similar events under the terms of a Financial Obligation of the Issuer, any of which 

reflect financial difficulties. 

 

202



 

For these purposes, (i) any event described in the immediately preceding paragraph (12) is 

considered to occur when any of the following occur: the appointment of a receiver, fiscal agent, 

or similar officer for the Issuer in a proceeding under the United States Bankruptcy Code or in any 

other proceeding under state or federal law in which a court or governmental authority has assumed 

jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the Issuer, or if such jurisdiction has 

been assumed by leaving the existing governing body and officials or officers of the Issuer in 

possession but subject to the supervision and orders of a court or governmental authority, or the 

entry of an order confirming a plan of reorganization, arrangement, or liquidation by a court or 

governmental authority having supervision or jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or 

business of the Issuer., and (ii) the Issuer intends the words used in the immediately preceding 

paragraphs (15) and (16) and the definition of Financial Obligation in this Section to have the same 

meanings as when they are used in the Rule, as evidenced by SEC Release No. 34-83885, dated 

August 20, 2018. 

 

The Issuer shall file notice with the MSRB, in a timely manner, of any failure by the Issuer 

to provide financial information or operating data in accordance with Subsection (b) of this Section 

by the time required by such Subsection. 

 

(d)  Limitations, Disclaimers, and Amendments.  (i)  The Issuer shall be obligated to 

observe and perform the covenants specified in this Section for so long as, but only for so long as, 

the Issuer remains an “obligated person” with respect to the Bonds within the meaning of the Rule, 

except that the Issuer in any event will give the notice required by Subsection (a) hereof of any 

Bond calls and defeasance that cause the Issuer to no longer be such an “obligated person”. 

 

(ii)  The provisions of this Section are for the sole benefit of the registered owners 

and beneficial owners of the Bonds, and nothing in this Section, express or implied, shall 

give any benefit or any legal or equitable right, remedy, or claim hereunder to any other 

person.  The Issuer undertakes to provide only the financial information, operating data, 

financial statements, and notices which it has expressly agreed to provide pursuant to this 

Section and does not hereby undertake to provide any other information that may be 

relevant or material to a complete presentation of the Issuer’s financial results, condition, 

or prospects or hereby undertake to update any information provided in accordance with 

this Section or otherwise, except as expressly provided herein.  The Issuer does not make 

any representation or warranty concerning such information or its usefulness to a decision 

to invest in or sell Bonds at any future date. 

 

(iii)  UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL THE ISSUER BE LIABLE TO 

THE REGISTERED OWNER OR BENEFICIAL OWNER OF ANY BOND OR ANY 

OTHER PERSON, IN CONTRACT OR TORT, FOR DAMAGES RESULTING IN 

WHOLE OR IN PART FROM ANY BREACH BY THE ISSUER, WHETHER 

NEGLIGENT OR WITHOUT FAULT ON ITS PART, OF ANY COVENANT 

SPECIFIED IN THIS SECTION, BUT EVERY RIGHT AND REMEDY OF ANY SUCH 

PERSON, IN CONTRACT OR TORT, FOR OR ON ACCOUNT OF ANY SUCH 

BREACH SHALL BE LIMITED TO AN ACTION FOR MANDAMUS OR SPECIFIC 

PERFORMANCE. 

 

(iv)  No default by the Issuer in observing or performing its obligations under this 

Section shall comprise a breach of or default under the Ordinance for purposes of any other 

203



 

provision of this Ordinance.  Nothing in this Section is intended or shall act to disclaim, 

waive, or otherwise limit the duties of the Issuer under federal and state securities laws. 

 

(v)  The provisions of this Section may be amended by the Issuer from time to time 

to adapt to changed circumstances that arise from a change in legal requirements, a change 

in law, or a change in the identity, nature, status, or type of operations of the Issuer, but 

only if (1) the provisions of this Section, as so amended, would have permitted an 

underwriter to purchase or sell Bonds in the primary offering of the Bonds in compliance 

with the Rule, taking into account any amendments or interpretations of the Rule since 

such offering as well as such changed circumstances and (2) either (a) the registered 

owners of a majority in aggregate principal amount (or any greater amount required by any 

other provision of this Ordinance that authorizes such an amendment) of the outstanding 

Bonds consent to such amendment or (b) a person that is unaffiliated with the Issuer (such 

as nationally recognized bond counsel) determined that such amendment will not 

materially impair the interest of the registered owners and beneficial owners of the Bonds.  

If the Issuer so amends the provisions of this Section, it shall include with any amended 

financial information or operating data next provided in accordance with subsection (a) of 

this Section an explanation, in narrative form, of the reason for the amendment and of the 

impact of any change in the type of financial information or operating data so provided.  

The Issuer may also amend or repeal the provisions of this continuing disclosure agreement 

if the SEC amends or repeals the applicable provision of the Rule or a court of final 

jurisdiction enters judgment that such provisions of the Rule are invalid, but only if and to 

the extent that the provisions of this sentence would not prevent an underwriter from 

lawfully purchasing or selling Bonds in the primary offering of the Bonds. 

 

Section 33.  ATTORNEY GENERAL FEES.  The Issuer hereby authorizes and directs 

payment from legally available funds of the Issuer, of the nonrefundable examination fee of the 

Attorney General of the State of Texas required by Section 1202.004, Texas Government Code, 

as amended. 

 

Section 34.  REPEAL OF CONFLICTING RESOLUTIONS.  All resolutions and all parts 

of any resolutions which are in conflict or inconsistent with this Resolution are hereby repealed 

and shall be of no further force or effect to the extent of such conflict or inconsistency. 

 

Section 35.  SECURITY INTEREST.  Article 1208, Government Code, applies to the 

issuance of the Bonds and the pledge of the Pledged Revenues granted by the Issuer under this 

Section, and is therefore valid, effective, and perfected.  Should Texas law be amended at any time 

while the Bonds are outstanding and unpaid, the result of such amendment being that the pledge 

of the Pledged Revenues granted by the Issuer under this Section is to be subject to the filing 

requirements of Chapter 9, Business & Commerce Code, in order to preserve to the registered 

owners of the Bonds a security interest in said pledge, the Issuer agrees to take such measures as 

it determines are reasonable and necessary under Texas law to comply with the applicable 

provisions of Chapter 9, Business & Commerce Code and enable a filing of a security interest in 

said pledge to occur. 

 

Section 36.  TEXAS WATER DEVELOPMENT BOARD.  The provisions of this Section 

shall apply so long as the Bonds, or any of them, are owned by the TWDB.  The Issuer hereby 

204



 

agrees to comply with all conditions set forth in TWDB Resolution No. 20-075, which conditions 

are incorporated herein. 

 

 (a)  Annual Audit Reporting.  The Issuer shall provide the Texas Water Development Board 

with an annual report prepared in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by a 

certified public accountant or licensed public accountant, to be submitted without charge within 

120 days of the close of each fiscal year. 

 

 (b)  Covenant to Abide with Rules.  The Issuer will abide with all applicable laws of the 

State of Texas and Rules of the Texas Water Development Board relating to the loan of funds 

evidenced by the Bonds and the Project for which the Bonds are issued, sold and delivered. 

 

 (c)  Water Conservation Program.  The Issuer agrees and covenants that it will implement 

an approved water conservation program in accordance with 31 TAC § 371.71. 

 

 (d)  Records and Accounts.  The Issuer agrees and covenants that it will maintain current, 

accurate and complete records and accounts regarding the System in accordance with 31 TAC § 

371.71. 

 

 (e)  Environmental Determinations.  The Issuer agrees and covenants that it will comply 

with any special conditions of the environmental determination of the Executive Administrator in 

accordance with 31 TAC § 371.71. 

 

 (f)  Prohibition on Use of Proceeds.  The Issuer covenants and agrees that none of the 

proceeds of the Bonds will be expended on costs incurred or to be incurred relating to the sampling, 

testing, removing or disposing of potentially contaminated soils and/or media at the project site. 

 

 (g)  Indemnification.  The Issuer further agrees, to the extent permitted by law, to 

indemnify, hold harmless and protect the Texas Water Development Board from any and all claims 

or causes of action or damages to the person or property of third parties arising from the sampling, 

analysis, transport, storage, treatment, removal and off site disposition of any contaminated sewage 

sludge, contaminated sediments and/or contaminated media that may be generated by the Issuer, 

its contractors, consultants, agents, officials and employees as a result of activities relating to the 

Project. 

 

 (h)  Conveyance of Obligations.  Prior to any action by the Issuer to convey its obligations 

under the Bonds to another entity, if permitted by law, the conveyance and the assumption of such 

obligations must be approved by the Texas Water Development Board.  The Issuer shall notify the 

Executive Administrator prior to taking any actions to alter its legal status in any manner, such a 

sale-transfer-merger with another retail public utility. 

 

 (i)  Davis-Bacon Act Compliance.  All laborers and mechanics employed by contractors 

and subcontractors for the Project who are paid from proceeds of the Bonds on deposit in the 

Construction Fund shall be paid wages at rates not less than those prevailing on projects of a similar 

character in the locality of the Issuer in accordance with the federal Davis-Bacon Act and the U.S. 

Department of Labor's implementing regulations pertaining thereto. 

 

205



 

 (j)  Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act.  The Issuer shall provide the 

Texas Water Development Board with all information required by the Federal Funding 

Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006, Pub. L. 109-282. 

 

 (k)  DUNS Number and CAGE Code.  The Issuer shall obtain a Data Information 

Numbering System (DUNS) Number and shall register with the System for Award Management 

to obtain a Commercial and Government Entity (CAGE) Code, and maintain current registration 

at all times during which the Bonds are outstanding. 

 

 (l)  Timely Expenditures.  All proceeds of the Bonds will be timely and expeditiously used, 

as required by applicable federal statutes and U.S. Environmental Protection Agency regulations, 

and the Issuer shall adhere to a project construction schedule acceptable to the Executive 

Administrator that facilitates timely use of funds and project completion. 

 

 (m)  As-Built Plans.  The Issuer shall provide to the Texas Water Development Board a 

full and complete set of "as-built" plans relating to the Project, promptly upon completion of the 

Project. 

 

 (n)  Final Accounting.  The Issuer shall render a final accounting of the cost of the Project 

to the Texas Water Development Board within 60 days of the completion of the Project.  If the 

total cost of the Project, as finally completed, is less than originally estimated, so that the proper 

share of the participation by the Texas Water Development Board in the Project is reduced, such 

surplus proceeds shall be used in accordance with subsection (o) below. 

 

 (o)  Surplus Proceeds.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Resolution or the Bonds 

restricting early redemption of the Bonds, the Issuer shall use any surplus proceeds from the Bonds 

that are determined to be surplus funds remaining after completion of the project and completion 

of a final accounting in a manner as approved by the Texas Water Development Board’s 

(“TWDB”) Executive Administrator (the “Executive Administrator”), including without limitation 

to redeem, on any date, the Bonds owned by the TWDB, at a price of par plus accrued interest to 

the date fixed for redemption. 

 

 (p)  Insurance.  Insurance coverage be obtained and maintained by the Issuer in an amount 

sufficient to protect the interest of the Texas Water Development Board in the Project. 

 

 (q)  Remedies.  The TWDB may exercise all remedies available to it in law or equity, and 

any provision of the Bonds or this Resolution that restricts or limits the TWDB's full exercise of 

such remedies shall be of no force and effect. 

 

 (r)  American Iron and Steel Requirements.  The Issuer will abide by all applicable 

construction contract requirements related to the use of iron and steel products in the United States, 

as required by the 2014 Federal Appropriations Act and related State Revolving Fund Policy 

Guidelines. 

 

 (s)  Covenant Regarding Taxes and System Rates.  The Issuer hereby agrees that, for so 

long as the Bonds are outstanding, to maintain and collect sufficient rates and charges to produce 

System revenues in an amount necessary to meet the debt service requirements of all Bonds and 

to maintain the funds established and required by the Bonds. 

206



 

 

 (t)  Outlay Reports.  The Issuer shall submit outlay reports with sufficient documentation 

on costs on a quarterly or monthly basis in accordance with TWDB outlay report guidelines. 

 

Section 37.  FURTHER PROCEDURES.  (a) The President and Secretary, respectively, of 

the Board of Directors of the Issuer, the General Manager, Operations Manager, and Chief 

Financial Officer of the Issuer, and all other officers, employees, and agents of the Issuer, and each 

of them, shall be and they are hereby expressly authorized, empowered, and directed from time to 

time and at any time to do and perform all such acts and things and to execute, acknowledge, and 

deliver in the name and under the corporate seal and on behalf of the Issuer all such instruments, 

whether or not herein mentioned, as may be necessary or desirable in order to carry out the terms 

and provisions of this Resolution, the Bonds, and the sale of the Bonds, including without 

limitation the Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations to DTC.  The expenses of issuing the Bonds 

shall be paid from the proceeds from the sale of the Initial Bond.  In case any officer whose 

signature shall appear on any Bond shall cease to be such officer before the delivery of such Bond, 

such signature shall nevertheless be valid and sufficient for all purposes the same as if such officer 

had remained in office until such delivery. 

 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank] 

 

207



 

EXHIBIT A 

 

 

 ESCROW AGREEMENT 

 

(Attached) 

 

208



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  
WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 26, 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM VI. H. 

RWRD RESO 20220126-08 

Series 2022B Tax Exempt Bond 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

209



 

RIVERBEND RESOLUTION 20220126-08 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE, SALE, AND DELIVERY OF 

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT CONTRACT REVENUE 

BONDS (REGIONAL WATER SYSTEM PROJECT), SERIES 2022B, AND 

APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING INSTRUMENTS AND PROCEDURES 

RELATING THERETO  

 

WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District (the “Issuer”) was created by the Texas 

Legislature in 2009 as a conservation and reclamation district created under and essential to 

accomplish the purpose of Section 59, Article XVI, Texas Constitution, as set forth in Title 6, 

Special District Local Laws Code, Subtitle L, Municipal Water Districts, Chapter 9601, effective 

June 19, 2009 as a water district with statutory powers including the authority to acquire any and 

all storage rights and storage capacity in a reservoir or other water sources inside or outside the 

boundaries of the Issuer, and to acquire the right to take water from that reservoir or source, subject 

to the rights or permits held by municipalities or other persons; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Issuer has previously issued its Contract Revenue Bonds (Regional Water 

System Project), Taxable Series 2022A and Contract Revenue Bonds (Regional Water System 

Project), Series 2022B (collectively, the Series 2022 Bonds) pursuant to Resolution Nos. 

20221028-003 and 20221028-004, respectively (collectively, the “Series 2022 Bond 

Resolutions”), in order finance improvements to certain “Company Facilities” as defined in said 

Series 2022 Bond Resolutions; and 

 

WHEREAS, the bonds hereinafter authorized are being issued and secured on a parity with 

the Outstanding Parity Obligations with respect to the pledge of the Pledged Revenues (as defined 

herein); and 

 

WHEREAS, the Issuer has previously identified regional water infrastructure projects 

under the Riverbend Regional Water Master Plan Study to be completed in order to improve and 

operate the Company Facilities; 

 

 WHEREAS, the Cities of Annona, Avery, Hooks, Leary, Maud, Nash, New Boston, 

Redwater, Texarkana, and Wake Village, Central Bowie Water Supply Corporation and Oak 

Grove Water Supply Corporation (each, a “Member Entity” and collectively, the “Member 

Entities”) desire to effectuate the improvement of the Company Facilities pursuant to the 

Riverbend Regional Water Master Plan Study (the “Planned Improvements”) and provide for 

regional water service, including that needed by the Member Entities; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Issuer has entered into a Water Distribution and Supply Contract (each, a 

“Contract” and collectively, the “Contracts”) with each Member Entity with respect to the funding 

and construction by the Issuer, for the benefit of the Member Entities, of the Planned 

Improvements and any additional regional improvements or enhancements; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Issuer is authorized to issue the bonds hereinafter 

authorized pursuant to the Issuer Act, the Contracts, and other applicable law; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Issuer has received Resolution Nos. 20-075 and 20-076 from the Texas 

Water Development Board (the “TWDB”) approving financial assistance to the Issuer in the 

210



 

aggregate amount of $199,700,000 in multi-year financing, including the purchase of the Issuer’s 

Series 2022A Bonds to be authorized hereby and the purchase of the Taxable Series 2022A Bonds 

(each as defined herein); and 

 

WHEREAS, the Issuer deems it necessary and advisable to authorize the adoption of this 

Resolution; and 

 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT THAT: 

 

Section 1.  AMOUNT AND PURPOSE OF THE BONDS.  The bond or bonds of 

Riverbend Water Resources District (the “Issuer”) are hereby authorized to be issued and delivered 

in the aggregate principal amount of $37,200,000, FOR THE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING 

FUNDS REQUIRED TO PROVIDE FOR THE DESIGN, ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION, 

AND EQUIPMENT OF IMPROVEMENTS TO THE COMPANY FACILITIES TO PROVIDE 

REGIONAL WATER SERVICE FOR USE BY THE MEMBER ENTITIES. 

 

Section 2.  DESIGNATION OF THE BONDS.  Each bond issued pursuant to this 

Resolution shall be designated: “RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT CONTRACT 

REVENUE BOND (REGIONAL WATER SYSTEM PROJECT), SERIES 2022B”, and initially 

there shall be issued, sold, and delivered hereunder a single fully registered bond, without interest 

coupons, payable in installments of principal (the “Initial Bond”), but the Initial Bond may be 

assigned and transferred and/or converted into and exchanged for a like aggregate principal amount 

of fully registered bonds, without interest coupons, having serial maturities, and in the 

denomination or denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple of $5,000, all in the manner 

hereinafter provided.  The term “Bonds” as used in this Resolution shall mean and include 

collectively the Initial Bond and all substitute bonds exchanged therefor, as well as all other 

substitute bonds and replacement bonds issued pursuant hereto, and the term “Bond” shall mean 

any of the Bonds. 

 

Section 3.  INITIAL DATE, DENOMINATION, NUMBER, MATURITIES, INITIAL 

REGISTERED OWNER, AND CHARACTERISTICS OF THE INITIAL BOND.  

 

(a) The Initial Bond is hereby authorized to be issued, sold, and delivered hereunder as 

a single fully registered Bond, without interest coupons, dated February 1, 2022, in the 

denomination and aggregate principal amount of $37,200,000 numbered TR-1, payable in annual 

installments of principal to the initial registered owner thereof, to-wit:  Texas Water Development 

Board, or to the registered assignee or assignees of said Bond or any portion or portions thereof 

(in each case, the “registered owner”), with the annual installments of principal of the Initial Bond 

to be payable on the dates, respectively, and in the principal amounts, respectively, stated in the 

FORM OF INITIAL BOND set forth in this Resolution. 

 

(b) The Initial Bond (i) may and shall be prepaid or redeemed prior to the respective 

scheduled due dates of installments of principal thereof, (ii) may be assigned and transferred, (iii) 

may be converted and exchanged for other Bonds, (iv) shall have the characteristics, and (v) shall 

be signed and sealed, and the principal of and interest on the Initial Bond shall be payable, all as 

provided, and in the manner required or indicated, in the FORM OF INITIAL BOND set forth in 

this Resolution. 

211



 

 

Section 4.  INTEREST.  The unpaid principal balance of the Initial Bond shall bear interest 

from the Issuance Date to the respective scheduled due dates, or to the respective dates of 

prepayment or redemption, of the installments of principal of the Initial Bond, and said interest 

shall be payable, all in the manner provided and at the rates and on the dates stated in the FORM 

OF INITIAL BOND set forth in this Resolution. 

 

Section 5.  FORM OF INITIAL BOND.  The form of the Initial Bond, including the form 

of Registration Certificate of the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas to be 

endorsed on the Initial Bond, shall be substantially as follows: 

 

 FORM OF INITIAL BOND 

 

NO. TR-1 $37,200,000 

 UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

 STATE OF TEXAS 

 RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT 

  CONTRACT REVENUE BOND 

 (REGIONAL WATER SYSTEM PROJECT) 

 SERIES 2022B 

 

Riverbend Water Resources District (the “Issuer”), being a political subdivision of the State 

of Texas, hereby promises to pay to the TEXAS WATER DEVELOPMENT BOARD, or to the 

registered assignee or assignees of this Bond or any portion or portions hereof (in each case, the 

“registered owner”) the aggregate principal amount of $37,200,000 (THIRTY SEVEN MILLION 

TWO HUNDRED THOUSAND AND 00/100 DOLLARS) in annual installments of principal due 

and payable on October 15 in each of the years, and to pay interest, calculated on the basis of a 

360-day year  composed of twelve 30-day months, from the date of delivery of the Bonds (which 

date appears in the Delivery Certificate endorsed on this Bond), on the balance of each such 

installment of principal, respectively, from time to time remaining unpaid, in the respective 

principal amounts and at the rates per annum, as set forth in the following schedule: 
 

Year of 

Maturity 

Principal 

Amount 

Interest 

Rate 

 Year of 

Maturity 

Principal 

Amount 

Interest 

Rate 

2022 1,175,000    0.000%  2037 1,225,000     0.420% 

2023 1,200,000 0.000  2038 1,230,000 0.450 

2024 1,200,000 0.000  2039 1,240,000 0.480 

2025 1,200,000 0.000  2040 1,245,000 0.530 

2026 1,195,000 0.000  2041 1,250,000 0.580 

2027 1,195,000 0.000  2042 1,260,000 0.610 

2028 1,200,000 0.030  2043 1,265,000 0.640 

2029 1,200,000 0.120  2044 1,275,000 0.670 

2030 1,200,000 0.180  2045 1,285,000 0.690 

2031 1,205,000 0.230  2046 1,290,000 0.700 

2032 1,205,000 0.260  2047 1,300,000 0.710 

2033 1,210,000 0.290  2048 1,310,000 0.720 

2034 1,215,000 0.330  2049 1,320,000 0.730 

2035 1,215,000 0.360  2050 1,330,000 0.740 

212



 

2036 1,220,000 0.390  2051 1,340,000 0.750 

 

with said interest being payable on October 15, 2022 and semiannually on each April 15 and 

October 15 thereafter while this Bond or any portion hereof is outstanding and unpaid. 

 

THE INSTALLMENTS OF PRINCIPAL OF AND THE INTEREST ON this Bond are 

payable in lawful money of the United States of America, without exchange or collection charges.  

The installments of principal and the interest on this Bond are payable to the registered owner 

hereof through the services of BOKF, NA in Dallas, Texas, as paying agent/registrar (the “Paying 

Agent/Registrar”) for this Bond.  Payment of all principal of and interest on this Bond shall be 

made by the Paying Agent/Registrar to the registered owner hereof on each principal and/or 

interest payment date by check dated as of such date, drawn by the Paying Agent/Registrar on, and 

payable solely from, funds of the Issuer required by the resolution authorizing the issuance of this 

Bond (the “Bond Resolution”) to be on deposit with the Paying Agent/Registrar for such purpose 

as hereinafter provided; and such check shall be sent by the Paying Agent/Registrar by United 

States mail, first-class postage prepaid, on each such principal and/or interest payment date, to the 

registered owner hereof, at the address of the registered owner, as it appeared at the close of 

business on the last business day of the month next preceding each such date (the “Record Date”) 

on the Registration Books kept by the Paying Agent/Registrar, as hereinafter described; provided 

that, if the Texas Water Development Board (the “TWDB”) is the registered owner of this Bond, 

at the option of the TWDB and at the expense of the Issuer, such payment shall be made by wire 

transfer pursuant to written directions of the TWDB.  The Issuer covenants with the registered 

owner of this Bond that on or before each principal and/or interest payment date for this Bond it 

will make available to the Paying Agent/Registrar, from the “Interest and Redemption Fund” 

created by the Bond Resolution, the amounts required to provide for the payment, in immediately 

available funds, of all principal of and interest on this Bond, when due. 

 

IF THE DATE for the payment of the principal of or interest on this Bond shall be a 

Saturday, Sunday, a legal holiday, or a day on which banking institutions in the City where the 

Paying Agent/Registrar is located are authorized by law or executive order to close, then the date 

for such payment shall be the next succeeding day which is not such a Saturday, Sunday, legal 

holiday, or day on which banking institutions are authorized to close; and payment on such date 

shall have the same force and effect as if made on the original date payment was due. 

 

THIS BOND has been authorized in accordance with the Constitution and laws of the State 

of Texas FOR THE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING FUNDS REQUIRED TO PROVIDE FOR THE 

DESIGN, ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION, AND EQUIPMENT OF IMPROVEMENTS TO 

THE COMPANY FACILITIES TO PROVIDE REGIONAL WATER SERVICE FOR USE BY 

THE MEMBER ENTITIES. 

 

ON APRIL 15, 2032, or any date thereafter, the Bonds having stated maturities on and after 

October 15, 2032 may be redeemed prior to their scheduled maturities, at the option of the Issuer, 

with funds derived from any available and lawful source, as a whole, or in part, and, if less than a 

whole maturity is to be redeemed, the Bonds or portions thereof to be redeemed shall be selected 

by the Paying Agent/Registrar by lot or other customary random method (provided that a portion 

of a Bond may be redeemed only in an integral multiple of $5,000), at a redemption price equal 

the principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption.  During any 

period in which ownership of the Bonds is determined by a book entry at a securities depository 

213



 

for the Bonds, if fewer than all of the Bonds of the same maturity and bearing the same interest 

rate are to be redeemed, the particular Bonds of such maturity and bearing such interest rate shall 

be selected in accordance with the arrangements between the Issuer and the securities depository. 

 

AT LEAST 30 days prior to the date fixed for any redemption of Bonds or portions thereof 

prior to maturity a written notice of such redemption shall be sent by the Paying Agent/Registrar 

by United States mail, first-class postage prepaid, to the Registered Owner of each Bond to be 

redeemed at its address as it appeared on the 45th day prior to such redemption date; provided, 

however, that the failure to send, mail, or receive such notice, or any defect therein or in the sending 

or mailing thereof, shall not affect the validity or effectiveness of the proceedings for the 

redemption of any Bond, and it is hereby specifically provided that the mailing of such notice as 

required above shall be the only notice actually required in connection with or as a prerequisite  to 

the redemption of any Bonds or portions thereof.  By the date fixed for any such redemption due 

provision shall be made with the Paying Agent/Registrar for the payment of the required 

redemption price for the Bonds or portions thereof which are to be so redeemed, plus accrued 

interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption.  If such written notice of redemption is mailed 

and if due provision for such payment is made, all as provided above, the Bonds or portions thereof 

which are to be so redeemed thereby automatically shall be treated as redeemed prior to their 

scheduled maturities, and they shall not bear interest after the date fixed for redemption, and they 

shall not be regarded as being outstanding except for the right of the Registered Owner to receive 

the redemption price plus accrued interest from the Paying Agent/Registrar out of the funds 

provided for such payment.  If a portion of any Bond shall be redeemed a substitute Bond or Bonds 

having the same maturity date, bearing interest at the same rate, in any denomination or 

denominations in any integral multiple of $5,000, at the written request of the Registered Owner, 

and in aggregate principal amount equal to the unredeemed portion thereof, will be issued to the 

Registered Owner upon the surrender thereof for cancellation, at the expense of the Issuer, all as 

provided in the Bond Resolution. 

 

THIS BOND, to the extent of the unpaid or unredeemed principal balance hereof, or any 

unpaid and unredeemed portion hereof in any integral multiple of $5,000, may be assigned by the 

initial registered owner hereof and shall be transferred only in the Registration Books of the Issuer 

kept by the Paying Agent/Registrar acting in the capacity of registrar for the Bonds, upon the terms 

and conditions set forth in the Bond Resolution.  Among other requirements for such transfer, this 

Bond must be presented and surrendered to the Paying Agent/Registrar for cancellation, together 

with proper instruments of assignment, in form and with guarantee of signatures satisfactory to the 

Paying Agent/Registrar, evidencing assignment by the initial registered owner of this Bond, or any 

portion or portions hereof in any integral multiple of $5,000, to the assignee or assignees in whose 

name or names this Bond or any such portion or portions hereof is or are to be transferred and 

registered.  Any instrument or instruments of assignment satisfactory to the Paying 

Agent/Registrar may be used to evidence the assignment of this Bond or any such portion or 

portions hereof by the initial registered owner hereof.  A new bond or bonds payable to such 

assignee or assignees (which then will be the new registered owner or owners of such new Bond 

or Bonds) or to the initial registered owner as to any portion of this Bond which is not being 

assigned and transferred by the initial registered owner, shall be delivered by the Paying 

Agent/Registrar in conversion of and exchange for this Bond or any portion or portions hereof, but 

solely in the form and manner as provided in the next paragraph hereof for the conversion and 

exchange of this Bond or any portion hereof.  The registered owner of this Bond shall be deemed 

and treated by the Issuer and the Paying Agent/Registrar as the absolute owner hereof for all 

214



 

purposes, including payment and discharge of liability upon this Bond to the extent of such 

payment, and the Issuer and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall not be affected by any notice to the 

contrary. 

 

AS PROVIDED above and in the Bond Resolution, this Bond, to the extent of the unpaid 

or unredeemed principal balance hereof, may be converted into and exchanged for a like aggregate 

principal amount of fully registered bonds, without interest coupons, payable to the assignee or 

assignees duly designated in writing by the initial registered owner hereof, or to the initial 

registered owner as to any portion of this Bond which is not being assigned and transferred by the 

initial registered owner, in any denomination or denominations in any integral multiple of $5,000 

(subject to the requirement hereinafter stated that each substitute bond issued in exchange for any 

portion of this Bond shall have a single stated principal maturity date), upon surrender of this Bond 

to the Paying Agent/Registrar for cancellation, all in accordance with the form and procedures set 

forth in the Bond Resolution.  If this Bond or any portion hereof is assigned and transferred or 

converted each bond issued in exchange for any portion hereof shall have a single stated principal 

maturity date corresponding to the due date of the installment of principal of this Bond or portion 

hereof for which the substitute bond is being exchanged, and shall bear interest at the rate 

applicable to and borne by such installment of principal or portion thereof.  Such bonds, 

respectively, shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity on the same dates and for the same 

prices as the corresponding installment of principal of this Bond or portion hereof for which they 

are being exchanged.  No such bond shall be payable in installments, but shall have only one stated 

principal maturity date.  AS PROVIDED IN THE BOND RESOLUTION, THIS BOND IN ITS 

PRESENT FORM MAY BE ASSIGNED AND TRANSFERRED OR CONVERTED ONCE 

ONLY, and to one or more assignees, but the bonds issued and delivered in exchange for this Bond 

or any portion hereof may be assigned and transferred, and converted, subsequently, as provided 

in the Bond Resolution.  The Issuer shall pay the Paying Agent/Registrar’s standard or customary 

fees and charges for transferring, converting, and exchanging this Bond or any portion thereof, but 

the one requesting such transfer, conversion, and exchange shall pay any taxes or governmental 

charges required to be paid with respect thereto.  The Paying Agent/Registrar shall not be required 

to make any such assignment, conversion, or exchange (i) during the period commencing with the 

close of business on any Record Date and ending with the opening of business on the next 

following principal or interest payment date, or, (ii) with respect to any Bond or portion thereof 

called for prepayment or redemption prior to maturity, within 45 days prior to its prepayment or 

redemption date. 

 

IN THE EVENT any Paying Agent/Registrar for this Bond is changed by the Issuer, 

resigns, or otherwise ceases to act as such, the Issuer has covenanted in the Bond Resolution that 

it promptly will appoint a competent and legally qualified substitute therefor, and promptly will 

cause written notice thereof to be mailed to the registered owner of this Bond. 

 

IT IS HEREBY certified, recited, and covenanted that this Bond has been duly and validly 

authorized, issued, sold, and delivered; that all acts, conditions, and things required or proper to 

be performed, exist, and be done precedent to or in the authorization, issuance, and delivery of this 

Bond have been performed, existed, and been done in accordance with law; that this Bond is a 

special revenue obligation of the Issuer which, together with the Series 2020 Bonds, Taxable Series 

2022A Bonds and any Additional Parity Obligations which may be issued in the future, are secured 

by and payable from a first lien on and pledge of the “Pledged Revenues” as defined in the Bond 

Resolution, consisting primarily of payments to be received by the Issuer from the Member Entities 

215



 

under the Water Distribution and Supply Contracts (the “Contracts”), between the Issuer and each 

Member Entity with respect to the design, acquisition, construction, and equipment of 

improvements to the Company Facilities to provide regional water service for use by the Member 

Entities. 

 

THE ISSUER IS OBLIGATED TO PAY THE PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON 

THIS BOND SOLELY FROM AND TO THE EXTENT OF THE GROSS REVENUES 

DERIVED PRIMARILY FROM PAYMENTS TO BE RECEIVED BY THE ISSUER FROM 

THE MEMBER ENTITIES.  NO OTHER ENTITY, INCLUDING THE STATE OF TEXAS, 

ANY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION THEREOF (OTHER THAN THE ISSUER OR THE 

MEMBER ENTITIES), OR ANY OTHER PUBLIC OR PRIVATE BODY, IS OBLIGATED, 

DIRECTLY, INDIRECTLY, CONTINGENTLY, OR IN ANY OTHER MANNER, TO PAY 

SUCH PRINCIPAL OR INTEREST FROM ANY OTHER SOURCE WHATSOEVER.  THE 

OWNER OF THIS BOND SHALL NEVER HAVE THE RIGHT TO DEMAND PAYMENT OF 

THIS BOND OUT OF ANY FUNDS RAISED OR TO BE RAISED BY TAXATION 

(INCLUDING SPECIFICALLY TAXES RAISED OR TO BE RAISED BY THE ISSUER) OR 

FROM ANY OTHER FUNDS OF THE ISSUER EXCEPT THE GROSS REVENUES.  NO 

REPRESENTATION IS MADE HEREIN WITH RESPECT TO THE ANTICIPATED 

SUFFICIENCY OF THE GROSS REVENUES.  NO PART OF THE PHYSICAL PROPERTY 

OF THE ISSUER IS ENCUMBERED BY ANY LIEN OR SECURITY INTEREST FOR THE 

BENEFIT OF THE OWNERS OF THIS BOND. 

 

THE ISSUER has reserved the right, subject to the restrictions stated in the Bond 

Resolution, to issue Additional Parity Obligations payable from and secured by a first lien on and 

pledge of the “Pledged Revenues” on a parity with this Bond. 

 

THE ISSUER also has reserved the right to amend the Bond Resolution with the approval 

of the registered owners of 51% in principal amount of all outstanding bonds secured by and 

payable from a first lien on and pledge of the “Pledged Revenues”. 

 

THE REGISTERED OWNER hereof shall never have the right to demand payment of this 

Bond or the interest hereon out of any funds raised or to be raised by taxation or from any source 

whatsoever other than specified in the Bond Resolution.  The Issuer has no taxing power. 

 

BY BECOMING the registered owner of this Bond, the registered owner thereby 

acknowledges all of the terms and provisions of the Bond Resolution, agrees to be bound by such 

terms and provisions, acknowledges that the Bond Resolution is duly recorded and available for 

inspection in the official minutes and records of the governing body of the Issuer, and agrees that 

the terms and provisions of this Bond and the Bond Resolution constitute a contract between the 

registered owner hereof and the Issuer. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Issuer has caused this Bond to be signed with the manual 

or facsimile signature of the President of the Board of Directors of the Issuer and countersigned 

with the manual or facsimile signature of the Secretary of the Board of Directors of the Issuer, has 

caused the official seal of the Issuer to be duly impressed or placed in facsimile on this Bond, and 

has caused this Bond to be dated as of February 1, 2022. 

 

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT 

216



 

 

 

 

________________________________  ________________________________ 

Secretary, Board of Directors,   President, Board of Directors, 

 

(ISSUER SEAL) 

 

 FORM OF REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE OF THE 

 COMPTROLLER OF PUBLIC ACCOUNTS: 

 

 COMPTROLLER’S REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE:  REGISTER NO. 

 

I hereby certify that this Bond has been examined, certified as to validity, and approved by 

the Attorney General of the State of Texas, and that this Bond has been registered by the 

Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas. 

 

Witness my signature and seal this 

 

_______________________________ 

Comptroller of Public Accounts 

     of the State of Texas 

(COMPTROLLER’S SEAL) 

 

 FORM OF DELIVERY CERTIFICATE 

 

 DELIVERY CERTIFICATE 

 

This Bond was delivered to and paid for by the purchaser thereof on _______________. 

 

217



 

 FORM OF ASSIGNMENT 

 

 ASSIGNMENT 

 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned sells, assigns and transfers unto 

 

Please Insert Social Security or 

Other Identifying Number of Assignee 

/___________________________________/ 

 

____________________________________________________________ 

(Name and Address of Assignee) 

the within Bond and does hereby irrevocably constitute and appoint 

_________________________ to transfer said Bond on the books kept for registration thereof 

with full power of substitution in the premises. 

 

Date: _____________________ 

 

  ____________________________________ 

 

Signature Guaranteed:   ____________________________________ 

 

NOTICE: The signature to this assignment must correspond with the name as it appears upon 

the face of the within Bond in every particular, without alteration or enlargement 

or any change whatever; and 

 

NOTICE: Signature(s) must be guaranteed by an eligible guarantor institution participating in 

a Securities Transfer Association recognized signature guarantee program. 

 

218



 

Section 6.  ADDITIONAL CHARACTERISTICS OF THE BONDS. Registration and 

Transfer.  (a)  The Issuer shall keep or cause to be kept at the principal corporate trust office of 

BOKF, NA in Dallas, Texas (the “Paying Agent/Registrar”) books or records of the registration 

and transfer of the Bonds (the “Registration Books”), and the Issuer hereby appoints the Paying 

Agent/Registrar as its registrar and transfer agent to keep such books or records and make such 

transfers and registrations under such reasonable regulations as the Issuer and Paying 

Agent/Registrar may prescribe; and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall make such transfers and 

registrations as herein provided.  The Paying Agent/Registrar shall obtain and record in the 

Registration Books the address of the registered owner of each Bond to which payments with 

respect to the Bonds shall be mailed, as herein provided; but it shall be the duty of each registered 

owner to notify the Paying Agent/Registrar in writing of the address to which payments shall be 

mailed, and such interest payments shall not be mailed unless such notice has been given.  The 

Issuer shall have the right to inspect the Registration Books during regular business hours of the 

Paying Agent/Registrar, but otherwise the Paying Agent/Registrar shall keep the Registration 

Books confidential and, unless otherwise required by law, shall not permit their inspection by any 

other entity.  Registration of each Bond may be transferred in the Registration Books only upon 

presentation and surrender of such Bond to the Paying Agent/Registrar for transfer of registration 

and cancellation, together with proper written instruments of assignment, in form and with 

guarantee of signatures satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar, evidencing (i) the assignment 

of the Bond, or any portion thereof in any integral multiple of $5,000, to the assignee or assignees 

thereof, and (ii) the right of such assignee or assignees to have the Bond or any such portion thereof 

registered in the name of such  assignee or assignees.  Upon the assignment and transfer of any 

Bond or any portion thereof, a new substitute Bond or Bonds shall be issued in conversion and 

exchange therefor in the manner herein provided.  The Initial Bond, to the extent of the unpaid or 

unredeemed principal balance thereof, may be assigned and transferred by the initial registered 

owner thereof once only, and to one or more assignees designated in writing by the initial 

registered owner thereof.  All Bonds issued and delivered in conversion of and exchange for the 

Initial Bond shall be in any denomination or denominations of any integral multiple of $5,000 

(subject to the requirement hereinafter stated that each substitute Bond shall have a single stated 

principal maturity date), shall be in the form prescribed in the FORM OF SUBSTITUTE BOND 

set forth in this Resolution, and shall have the characteristics, and may be assigned, transferred, 

and converted as hereinafter provided.  If the Initial Bond or any portion thereof is assigned and 

transferred or converted the Initial Bond must be surrendered to the Paying Agent/Registrar for 

cancellation, and each Bond issued in exchange for any portion of the Initial Bond shall have a 

single stated principal maturity date, and shall not be payable in installments; and each such Bond 

shall have a principal maturity date corresponding to the due date of the installment of principal or 

portion thereof for which the substitute Bond is being exchanged; and each such Bond shall bear 

interest at the single rate applicable to and borne by such installment of principal or portion thereof 

for which it is being exchanged.  If only a portion of the Initial Bond is assigned and transferred, 

there shall be delivered to and registered in the name of the initial registered owner substitute 

Bonds in exchange for the unassigned balance of the Initial Bond in the same manner as if the 

initial registered owner were the assignee thereof.  If any Bond or portion thereof other than the 

Initial Bond is assigned and transferred or converted each Bond issued in exchange therefor shall 

have the same principal maturity date and bear interest at the same rate as the Bond for which it is 

exchanged.  A form of assignment shall be printed or endorsed on each Bond, excepting the Initial 

Bond, which shall be executed by the registered owner or its duly authorized attorney or 

representative to evidence an assignment thereof.  Upon surrender of any Bonds or any portion or 

portions thereof for transfer of registration, an authorized representative of the Paying 

219



 

Agent/Registrar shall make such transfer in the Registration Books, and shall deliver a new fully 

registered substitute Bond or Bonds, having the characteristics herein described, payable to such 

assignee or assignees (which then will be the registered owner or owners of such new Bond or 

Bonds), or to the previous registered owner in case only a portion of a Bond is being assigned and 

transferred, all in conversion of and exchange for said assigned Bond or Bonds or any portion or 

portions thereof, in the same form and manner, and with the same effect, as provided in Section 

6(d), below, for the conversion and exchange of Bonds by any registered owner of a Bond.  The 

Issuer shall pay the Paying Agent/Registrar’s standard or customary fees and charges for making 

such transfer and delivery of a substitute Bond or Bonds, but the one requesting such transfer shall 

pay any taxes or other governmental charges required to be paid with respect thereto.  The Paying 

Agent/Registrar shall not be required to make transfers of registration of any Bond or any portion 

thereof (i) during the period commencing with the close of business on any Record Date and ending 

with the opening of business on the next following principal or interest payment date, or, (ii) with 

respect to any Bond or any portion thereof called for redemption prior to maturity, within 45 days 

prior to its redemption date. 

 

(b) Ownership of Bonds.  The entity in whose name any Bond shall be registered in the 

Registration Books at any time shall be deemed and treated as the absolute owner thereof for all 

purposes of this Resolution, whether or not such Bond shall be overdue, and the Issuer and the 

Paying Agent/Registrar shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary; and payment of, or on 

account of, the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on any such Bond shall be made only to 

such registered owner.  All such payments shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge the 

liability upon such Bond to the extent of the sum or sums so paid. 

 

(c) Payment of Bonds and Interest.  The Issuer hereby further appoints the Paying 

Agent/Registrar to act as the paying agent for paying the principal of and interest on the Bonds, 

and to act as its agent to convert and exchange or replace Bonds, all as provided in this Resolution.  

The Paying Agent/Registrar shall keep proper records of all payments made by the Issuer and the 

Paying Agent/Registrar with respect to the Bonds, and of all conversions and exchanges of Bonds, 

and all replacements of Bonds, as provided in this Resolution. 

 

(d) Conversion and Exchange or Replacement; Authentication.  Each Bond issued and 

delivered pursuant to this Resolution, to the extent of the unpaid or unredeemed principal balance 

or principal amount thereof, may, upon surrender of such Bond at the principal corporate trust 

office of the Paying Agent/Registrar, together with a written request therefor duly executed by the 

registered owner or the assignee or assignees thereof, or its or their duly authorized attorneys or 

representatives, with guarantee of signatures satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar, may, at 

the option of the registered owner or such assignee or assignees, as appropriate, be converted into 

and exchanged for fully registered bonds, without interest coupons, in the form prescribed in the 

FORM OF SUBSTITUTE BOND set forth in this Resolution, in the denomination of $5,000, or 

any integral multiple of $5,000 (subject to the requirement hereinafter stated that each substitute 

Bond shall have a single stated maturity date), as requested in writing by such registered owner or 

such assignee or assignees, in an aggregate principal amount equal to the unpaid or unredeemed 

principal balance or principal amount of any Bond or Bonds so surrendered, and payable to the 

appropriate registered owner, assignee, or assignees, as the case may be.  If the Initial Bond is 

assigned and transferred or converted each substitute Bond issued in exchange for any portion of 

the Initial Bond shall have a single stated principal maturity date, and shall not be payable in 

installments; and each such Bond shall have a principal maturity date corresponding to the due 

220



 

date of the installment of principal or portion thereof for which the substitute Bond is being 

exchanged; and each such Bond shall bear interest at the single rate applicable to and borne by 

such installment of principal or portion thereof for which it is being exchanged.  If a portion of any 

Bond (other than the Initial Bond) shall be redeemed prior to its scheduled maturity as provided 

herein, a substitute Bond or Bonds having the same maturity date, bearing interest at the same rate, 

in the denomination or denominations of any integral multiple of $5,000 at the request of the 

registered owner, and in aggregate principal amount equal to the unredeemed portion thereof, will 

be issued to the registered owner upon surrender thereof for cancellation.  If any Bond or portion 

thereof (other than the Initial Bond) is assigned and transferred or converted, each Bond issued in 

exchange therefor shall have the same principal maturity date and bear interest at the same rate as 

the Bond for which it is being exchanged.  Each substitute Bond shall bear a letter and/or number 

to distinguish it from each other Bond.  The Paying Agent/Registrar shall convert and exchange 

or replace Bonds as provided herein, and each fully registered bond delivered in conversion of and 

exchange for or replacement of any Bond or portion thereof as permitted or required by any 

provision of this Resolution shall constitute one of the Bonds for all purposes of this Resolution, 

and may again be converted and exchanged or replaced.  It is specifically provided that any Bond 

authenticated in conversion of and exchange for or replacement of another Bond on or prior to the 

first scheduled Record Date for the Initial Bond shall bear interest from the date of the Initial Bond, 

but each substitute Bond so authenticated after such first scheduled Record Date shall bear interest 

from the interest payment date next preceding the date on which such substitute Bond was so 

authenticated, unless such Bond is authenticated after any Record Date but on or before the next 

following interest payment date, in which case it shall bear interest from such next following 

interest payment date; provided, however, that if at the time of delivery of any substitute Bond the 

interest on the Bond for which it is being exchanged is due but has not been paid, then such Bond 

shall bear interest from the date to which such interest has been paid in full.  THE INITIAL BOND 

issued and delivered pursuant to this Resolution is not required to be, and shall not be, 

authenticated by the Paying Agent/Registrar, but on each substitute Bond issued in conversion of 

and exchange for or replacement of any Bond or Bonds issued under this Resolution there shall be 

printed a certificate, in the form substantially as follows: 

 

 “PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR’S AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATE 

 

It is hereby certified that this Bond has been issued under the provisions of the Bond 

Resolution described in this Bond; and that this Bond has been issued in conversion of and 

exchange for or replacement of a bond, bonds, or a portion of a bond or bonds of an issue which 

originally was approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas and registered by the 

Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas. 

 

BOKF, NA, 

Dallas, Texas, 

                           Paying Agent/Registrar 

 

 

Dated:  __________     _____________________________ 

Authorized Representative” 

 

An authorized representative of the Paying Agent/Registrar shall, before the delivery of any such 

Bond, date and manually sign the above Certificate, and no such Bond shall be deemed to be issued 

221



 

or outstanding unless such Certificate is so executed.  The Paying Agent/Registrar promptly shall 

cancel all Bonds surrendered for conversion and exchange or replacement.  No additional 

ordinances, orders, or resolutions need be passed or adopted by the governing body of the Issuer 

or any other body or person so as to accomplish the foregoing conversion and exchange or 

replacement of any Bond or portion thereof, and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall provide for the 

printing, execution, and delivery of the substitute Bonds in the manner prescribed herein, and said 

Bonds shall be of type composition printed on paper with lithographed or steel engraved borders 

of customary weight and strength.  Pursuant to Section 1201.067, Texas Government Code, the 

duty of conversion and exchange or replacement of Bonds as aforesaid is hereby imposed upon 

the Paying Agent/Registrar, and, upon the execution of the above Paying Agent/Registrar’s 

Authentication Certificate, the converted and exchanged or replaced Bond shall be valid, 

incontestable, and enforceable in the same manner and with the same effect as the Initial Bond 

which originally was issued pursuant to this Resolution, approved by the Attorney General, and 

registered by the Comptroller of Public Accounts.  The Issuer shall pay the Paying 

Agent/Registrar’s standard or customary fees and charges for transferring, converting, and 

exchanging any Bond or any portion thereof, but the one requesting any such transfer, conversion, 

and exchange shall pay any taxes or governmental charges required to be paid with respect thereto 

as a condition precedent to the exercise of such privilege of conversion and exchange.  The Paying 

Agent/Registrar shall not be required to make any such conversion and exchange or replacement 

of Bonds or any portion thereof (i) during the period commencing with the close of business on 

any Record Date and ending with the opening of business on the next following principal or interest 

payment date, or, (ii) with respect to any Bond or portion thereof called for redemption prior to 

maturity, within 45 days prior to its redemption date. 

 

(e) In General.  All Bonds issued in conversion and exchange or replacement of any 

other Bond or portion thereof, (i) shall be issued in fully registered form, without interest coupons, 

with the principal of and interest on such Bonds to be payable only to the registered owners thereof, 

(ii) may and shall be redeemed prior to their scheduled maturities, (iii) may be transferred and 

assigned, (iv) may be converted and exchanged for other Bonds, (v) shall have the characteristics, 

(vi) shall be signed and sealed, and (vii) the principal of and interest on the Bonds shall be payable, 

all as provided, and in the manner required or indicated, in the FORM OF SUBSTITUTE BOND 

set forth in this Resolution. 

 

(f) Payment of Fees and Charges.  The Issuer hereby covenants with the registered 

owners of the Bonds that it will (i) pay the standard or customary fees and charges of the Paying 

Agent/Registrar for its services with respect to the payment of the principal of and interest on the 

Bonds, when due, and (ii) pay the fees and charges of the Paying Agent/Registrar for services with 

respect to the transfer of registration of Bonds, and with respect to the conversion and exchange 

of Bonds solely to the extent above provided in this Resolution. 

 

(g) Substitute Paying Agent/Registrar.  The Issuer covenants with the registered 

owners of the Bonds that at all times while the Bonds are outstanding the Issuer will provide a 

competent and legally qualified bank, trust company, financial institution, or other agency to act 

as and perform the services of Paying Agent/Registrar for the Bonds under this Resolution, and 

that the Paying Agent/Registrar will be one entity.  The Issuer reserves the right to, and may, at its 

option, change the Paying Agent/Registrar upon not less than 120 days written notice to the Paying 

Agent/Registrar, to be effective not later than 60 days prior to the next principal or interest payment 

date after such notice.  In the event that the entity at any time acting as Paying Agent/Registrar (or 

222



 

its successor by merger, acquisition, or other method) should resign or otherwise cease to act as 

such, the Issuer covenants that promptly it will appoint a competent and legally qualified bank, 

trust company, financial institution, or other agency to act as Paying Agent/Registrar under this 

Resolution.  Upon any change in the Paying Agent/Registrar, the previous Paying Agent/Registrar 

promptly shall transfer and deliver the Registration Books (or a copy thereof), along with all other 

pertinent books and records relating to the Bonds, to the new Paying Agent/Registrar designated 

and appointed by the Issuer.  Upon any change in the Paying Agent/Registrar, the Issuer promptly 

will cause a written notice thereof to be sent by the new Paying Agent/Registrar to each registered 

owner of the Bonds, by United States mail, first-class postage prepaid, which notice also shall give 

the address of the new Paying Agent/Registrar.  By accepting the position and performing as such, 

each Paying Agent/Registrar shall be deemed to have agreed to the provisions of this Resolution, 

and a certified copy of this Resolution shall be delivered to each Paying Agent/Registrar. 

 

Section 7.  FORM OF SUBSTITUTE BONDS.  The form of all Bonds issued in conversion 

and exchange or replacement of any other Bond or portion thereof, including the form of Paying 

Agent/Registrar’s Certificate to be printed on each of such Bonds, and the Form of Assignment to 

be printed on each of the Bonds, shall be, respectively, substantially as follows, with such 

appropriate variations, omissions, or insertions as are permitted or required by this Resolution. 

 

 FORM OF SUBSTITUTE BOND 

 

[Unless this Bond is presented by an authorized representative of The Depository Trust 

Company, a New York corporation (“DTC”) to the Issuer or its agent for registration of transfer, 

exchange, or payment, and any Bond issued is registered in the name of Cede & Co. or in such 

other name as is requested by an authorized representative of DTC (and any payment is made to 

Cede & Co. or to such other entity as is requested by an authorized representative of DTC), ANY 

TRANSFER, PLEDGE, OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO 

ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL inasmuch as the registered owner hereof, Cede & Co., has an 

interest herein. 

 

As provided in the Bond Resolution referred to herein, until the termination of the system 

of book-entry-only transfers through DTC, and notwithstanding any other provision of the Bond 

Resolution to the contrary, this Bond may be transferred, in whole but not in part, only to a nominee 

of DTC, or by a nominee of DTC to DTC or a nominee of DTC, or by DTC or a nominee of DTC 

to any successor securities depository or any nominee thereof.] 

 

NO. ____ UNITED STATES OF AMERICA PRINCIPAL 

 STATE OF TEXAS AMOUNT  

 RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT $___________ 

 CONTRACT REVENUE BOND 

 (REGIONAL WATER SYSTEM PROJECT) 

 SERIES 2022B 

 

MATURITY   

INTEREST RATE      DATE       ISSUANCE DATE CUSIP NO. 

 

_____%      October 15, 20__     ___________, 2022 ________  

 

223



 

ON THE MATURITY DATE specified above Riverbend Water Resources District (the 

“Issuer”), being a political subdivision of the State of Texas, hereby promises to pay to Cede & 

Co., or to the registered assignee hereof (either being hereinafter called the “registered owner”) 

the principal amount of ____________________________________________ and to pay interest 

thereon, calculated on the basis of a 360-day year composed of twelve 30-day months, from the 

Issuance Date specified above, to the maturity date specified above, or the date of redemption prior 

to maturity, at the interest rate per annum specified above; with interest being payable on October 

15, 2022, and semiannually on each April 15 and October 15 thereafter, except that if the date of 

authentication of this Bond is later than the first Record Date (hereinafter defined), such principal 

amount shall bear interest from the interest payment date next preceding the date of authentication, 

unless such date of authentication is after any Record Date (hereinafter defined) but on or before 

the next following interest payment date, in which case such principal amount shall bear interest 

from such next following interest payment date. 

 

THE PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON this Bond are payable in lawful money of the 

United States of America, without exchange or collection charges.  The principal of this Bond shall 

be paid to the registered owner hereof upon presentation and surrender of this Bond at maturity or 

upon the date fixed for its redemption prior to maturity, at the principal corporate trust office of 

BOKF, NA in Dallas, Texas, as paying agent/registrar (the “Paying Agent/Registrar”) for this 

Bond.  The payment of interest on this Bond shall be made by the Paying Agent/Registrar to the 

registered owner hereof on each interest payment date by check dated as of such interest payment 

date, drawn by the Paying Agent/Registrar on, and payable solely from, funds of the Issuer required 

by the resolution authorizing the issuance of the Bonds (the “Bond Resolution”) to be on deposit 

with the Paying Agent/Registrar for such purpose as hereinafter provided; and such check shall be 

sent by the Paying Agent/Registrar by United States mail, first-class postage prepaid, on each such 

interest payment date, to the registered owner hereof, at the address of the registered owner, as it 

appeared at the close of business on the last business day of the month next preceding each such 

date (the “Record Date”) on the Registration Books kept by the Paying Agent/Registrar, as 

hereinafter described.  However, notwithstanding the foregoing provisions, the payment of such 

interest may be made by any other method acceptable to the Paying Agent/Registrar and requested 

by, and at the risk and expense of, the registered owner hereof; provided, however, for Bonds, the 

registered owner of which is the Texas Water Development Board (the “TWDB”), at the option of 

the TWDB and at the expense of the Issuer, such payment shall be made by wire transfer pursuant 

to written directions of the TWDB.  Any accrued interest due upon the redemption of this Bond 

prior to maturity as provided herein shall be paid to the registered owner at the principal corporate 

trust office of the Paying Agent/Registrar upon presentation and surrender of this Bond for 

redemption and payment at the principal corporate trust office of the Paying Agent/Registrar.  The 

Issuer covenants with the registered owner of this Bond that on or before each principal payment 

date, interest payment date, and accrued interest payment date for this Bond it will make available 

to the Paying Agent/Registrar, from the “Interest and Redemption Fund” created by the Bond 

Resolution, the amounts required to provide for the payment, in immediately available funds, of 

all principal of and interest on the Bonds, when due. 

 

IF THE DATE for the payment of the principal of or interest on this Bond shall be a 

Saturday, Sunday, a legal holiday, or a day on which banking institutions in the City where the 

Paying Agent/Registrar is located are authorized by law or executive order to close, then the date 

for such payment shall be the next succeeding day which is not such a Saturday, Sunday, legal 

224



 

holiday, or day on which banking institutions are authorized to close; and payment on such date 

shall have the same force and effect as if made on the original date payment was due. 

 

THIS BOND is one of an issue of Bonds initially dated February 1, 2022, authorized in 

accordance with the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas in the principal amount of 

$37,200,000, FOR THE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING FUNDS REQUIRED TO PROVIDE FOR 

THE DESIGN, ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION, AND EQUIPMENT OF IMPROVEMENTS 

TO THE COMPANY FACILITIES TO PROVIDE REGIONAL WATER SERVICE FOR USE 

BY THE MEMBER ENTITIES. 

 

ON APRIL 15, 2032, or any date thereafter, the Bonds having stated maturities on and after 

October 15, 2032 may be redeemed prior to their scheduled maturities, at the option of the Issuer, 

with funds derived from any available and lawful source, as a whole, or in part, in inverse order of 

maturity, and, if less than a whole maturity is to be redeemed, the Bonds or portions thereof to be 

redeemed shall be selected by the Paying Agent/Registrar by lot or other customary random 

method (provided that a portion of a Bond may be redeemed only in an integral multiple of $5,000), 

at a redemption price equal the principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest to the date fixed for 

redemption.  During any period in which ownership of the Bonds is determined by a book entry at 

a securities depository for the Bonds, if fewer than all of the Bonds of the same maturity and 

bearing the same interest rate are to be redeemed, the particular Bonds of such maturity and bearing 

such interest rate shall be selected in accordance with the arrangements between the Issuer and the 

securities depository. 

 

AT LEAST 30 days prior to the date fixed for any redemption of Bonds or portions thereof 

prior to maturity a written notice of such redemption shall be sent by the Paying Agent/Registrar 

by United States mail, first-class postage prepaid, to the Registered Owner of each Bond to be 

redeemed at its address as it appeared on the 45th day prior to such redemption date; provided, 

however, that the failure to send, mail, or receive such notice, or any defect therein or in the sending 

or mailing thereof, shall not affect the validity or effectiveness of the proceedings for the 

redemption of any Bond, and it is hereby specifically provided that the mailing of such notice as 

required above shall be the only notice actually required in connection with or as a prerequisite  to 

the redemption of any Bonds or portions thereof.  By the date fixed for any such redemption due 

provision shall be made with the Paying Agent/Registrar for the payment of the required 

redemption price for the Bonds or portions thereof which are to be so redeemed, plus accrued 

interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption.  If such written notice of redemption is mailed 

and if due provision for such payment is made, all as provided above, the Bonds or portions thereof 

which are to be so redeemed thereby automatically shall be treated as redeemed prior to their 

scheduled maturities, and they shall not bear interest after the date fixed for redemption, and they 

shall not be regarded as being outstanding except for the right of the Registered Owner to receive 

the redemption price plus accrued interest from the Paying Agent/Registrar out of the funds 

provided for such payment.  If a portion of any Bond shall be redeemed a substitute Bond or Bonds 

having the same maturity date, bearing interest at the same rate, in any denomination or 

denominations in any integral multiple of $5,000, at the written request of the Registered Owner, 

and in aggregate principal amount equal to the unredeemed portion thereof, will be issued to the 

Registered Owner upon the surrender thereof for cancellation, at the expense of the Issuer, all as 

provided in the Bond Resolution. 

 

225



 

THIS BOND OR ANY PORTION OR PORTIONS HEREOF IN ANY INTEGRAL 

MULTIPLE OF $5,000 may be assigned and shall be transferred only in the Registration Books 

of the Issuer kept by the Paying Agent/Registrar acting in the capacity of registrar for the Bonds, 

upon the terms and conditions set forth in the Bond Resolution.  Among other requirements for 

such assignment and transfer, this Bond must be presented and surrendered to the Paying 

Agent/Registrar, together with proper instruments of assignment, in form and with guarantee of 

signatures satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar, evidencing assignment of this Bond or any 

portion or portions hereof in any integral multiple of $5,000 to the assignee or assignees in whose 

name or names this Bond or any such portion or portions hereof is or are to be transferred and 

registered.  The form of Assignment printed or endorsed on this Bond shall be executed by the 

registered owner or its duly authorized attorney or representative, to evidence the assignment 

hereof.  A new Bond or Bonds payable to such assignee or assignees (which then will be the new 

registered owner or owners of such new Bond or Bonds), or to the previous registered owner in 

the case of the assignment and transfer of only a portion of this Bond, may be delivered by the 

Paying Agent/Registrar in conversion of and exchange for this Bond, all in the form and manner 

as provided in the next paragraph hereof for the conversion and exchange of other Bonds.  The 

Issuer shall pay the Paying Agent/Registrar’s standard or customary fees and charges for making 

such transfer, but the one requesting such transfer shall pay any taxes or other governmental 

charges required to be paid with respect thereto.  The Paying Agent/Registrar shall not be required 

to make transfers of registration of this Bond or any portion hereof (i) during the period 

commencing with the close of business on any Record Date and ending with the opening of 

business on the next following principal or interest payment date, or, (ii) with respect to any Bond 

or any portion thereof called for redemption prior to maturity, within 45 days prior to its 

redemption date.  The registered owner of this Bond shall be deemed and treated by the Issuer and 

the Paying Agent/Registrar as the absolute owner hereof for all purposes, including payment and 

discharge of liability upon this Bond to the extent of such payment, and the Issuer and the Paying 

Agent/Registrar shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary. 

 

ALL BONDS OF THIS SERIES are issuable solely as fully registered bonds, without 

interest coupons, in the denomination of any integral multiple of $5,000.  As provided in the Bond 

Resolution, this Bond, or any unredeemed portion hereof, may, at the request of the registered 

owner or the assignee or assignees hereof, be converted into and exchanged for a like aggregate 

principal amount of fully registered bonds, without interest coupons, payable to the appropriate 

registered owner, assignee, or assignees, as the case may be, having the same maturity date, and 

bearing interest at the same rate, in any denomination or denominations in any integral multiple of 

$5,000 as requested in writing by the appropriate registered owner, assignee, or assignees, as the 

case may be, upon surrender of this Bond to the Paying Agent/Registrar for cancellation, all in 

accordance with the form and procedures set forth in the Bond Resolution.  The Issuer shall pay 

the Paying Agent/Registrar’s standard or customary fees and charges for transferring, converting, 

and exchanging any Bond or any portion thereof, but the one requesting such transfer, conversion, 

and exchange shall pay any taxes or governmental charges required to be paid with respect thereto 

as a condition precedent to the exercise of such privilege of conversion and exchange.  The Paying 

Agent/Registrar shall not be required to make any such conversion and exchange (i) during the 

period commencing with the close of business on any Record Date and ending with the opening 

of business on the next following principal or interest payment date, or, (ii) with respect to any 

Bond or any portion thereof called for redemption prior to maturity, within 45 days prior to its 

redemption date. 

 

226



 

IN THE EVENT any Paying Agent/Registrar for the Bonds is changed by the Issuer, 

resigns, or otherwise ceases to act as such, the Issuer has covenanted in the Bond Resolution that 

it promptly will appoint a competent and legally qualified substitute therefor, and promptly will 

cause written notice thereof to be mailed to the registered owners of the Bonds. 

 

IT IS HEREBY certified, recited, and covenanted that this Bond has been duly and validly 

authorized, issued, sold, and delivered; that all acts, conditions, and things required or proper to 

be performed, exist, and be done precedent to or in the authorization, issuance, and delivery of this 

Bond have been performed, existed, and been done in accordance with law; that this Bond is a 

special revenue obligation of the Issuer which, together with the Series 2020 Bonds, Taxable Series 

2022A Bonds and any Additional Parity Obligations which may be issued in the future, are secured 

by and payable from a first lien on and pledge of the “Pledged Revenues” as defined in the Bond 

Resolution, consisting primarily of payments to be received by the Issuer from the Member Entities 

under the Water Distribution and Supply Contracts (the “Contracts”), between the Issuer and each 

Member Entity with respect to the design, acquisition, construction, and equipment of 

improvements to the Company Facilities to provide regional water service for use by the Member 

Entities. 

 

THE ISSUER IS OBLIGATED TO PAY THE PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON 

THIS BOND SOLELY FROM AND TO THE EXTENT OF THE GROSS REVENUES 

DERIVED PRIMARILY FROM PAYMENTS TO BE RECEIVED BY THE ISSUER FROM 

THE MEMBER ENTITIES.  NO OTHER ENTITY, INCLUDING THE STATE OF TEXAS, 

ANY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION THEREOF (OTHER THAN THE ISSUER OR THE 

MEMBER ENTITIES), OR ANY OTHER PUBLIC OR PRIVATE BODY, IS OBLIGATED, 

DIRECTLY, INDIRECTLY, CONTINGENTLY, OR IN ANY OTHER MANNER, TO PAY 

SUCH PRINCIPAL OR INTEREST FROM ANY OTHER SOURCE WHATSOEVER.  THE 

OWNER OF THIS BOND SHALL NEVER HAVE THE RIGHT TO DEMAND PAYMENT OF 

THIS BOND OUT OF ANY FUNDS RAISED OR TO BE RAISED BY TAXATION 

(INCLUDING SPECIFICALLY TAXES RAISED OR TO BE RAISED BY THE ISSUER) OR 

FROM ANY OTHER FUNDS OF THE ISSUER EXCEPT THE GROSS REVENUES.  NO 

REPRESENTATION IS MADE HEREIN WITH RESPECT TO THE ANTICIPATED 

SUFFICIENCY OF THE GROSS REVENUES.  NO PART OF THE PHYSICAL PROPERTY 

OF THE ISSUER IS ENCUMBERED BY ANY LIEN OR SECURITY INTEREST FOR THE 

BENEFIT OF THE OWNERS OF THIS BOND. 

 

THE ISSUER has reserved the right, subject to the restrictions stated in the Bond 

Resolution, to issue Additional Parity Obligations payable from and secured by a first lien on and 

pledge of the “Pledged Revenues” on a parity with this Bond and series of which it is a part. 

 

THE ISSUER also has reserved the right to amend the Bond Resolution with the approval 

of the registered owners of 51% in principal amount of all outstanding bonds secured by and 

payable from a first lien on and pledge of the “Pledged Revenues”. 

 

THE REGISTERED OWNER hereof shall never have the right to demand payment of this 

Bond or the interest hereon out of any funds raised or to be raised by taxation or from any source 

whatsoever other than specified in the Bond Resolution.  The Issuer has no taxing power. 

 

227



 

BY BECOMING the registered owner of this Bond, the registered owner thereby 

acknowledges all of the terms and provisions of the Bond Resolution, agrees to be bound by such 

terms and provisions, acknowledges that the Bond Resolution is duly recorded and available for 

inspection in the official minutes and records of the governing body of the Issuer, and agrees that 

the terms and provisions of this Bond and the Bond Resolution constitute a contract between each 

registered owner hereof and the Issuer. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Issuer has caused this Bond to be signed with the manual 

or facsimile signature of the President of the Board of Directors of the Issuer and attested and 

countersigned with the manual or facsimile signature of the Secretary of the Board of Directors of 

the Issuer, and has caused the official seal of the Issuer to be duly impressed, or placed in facsimile, 

on this Bond. 

 

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT 

 

 

 

                                                                                                                                 

Secretary, Board of Directors,   President, Board of Directors 

 

(ISSUER SEAL)  

 

 

 FORM OF PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR’S AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATE 

 

 PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR’S AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATE 

 

It is hereby certified that this Bond has been issued under the provisions of the Bond 

Resolution described in this Bond; and that this Bond has been issued in conversion of and 

exchange for or replacement of a bond, bonds, or a portion of a bond or bonds of an issue which 

originally was approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas and registered by the 

Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas. 

 

_____________________________, 

                          Paying Agent/Registrar 

 

 

 

Dated:  ___________     _____________________________ 

Authorized Representative 

 

 

228



 

 FORM OF ASSIGNMENT 

 

 ASSIGNMENT 

 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned sells, assigns and transfers unto 

 

Please Insert Social Security or 

Other Identifying Number of Assignee 

/___________________________________/ 

 

____________________________________________________________ 

(Name and Address of Assignee) 

the within Bond and does hereby irrevocably constitute and appoint 

_________________________ to transfer said Bond on the books kept for registration thereof 

with full power of substitution in the premises. 

 

Date: _____________________ 

  ____________________________________ 

 

Signature Guaranteed:  ____________________________________ 

 

NOTICE: The signature to this assignment must correspond with the name as it appears upon 

the face of the within Bond in every particular, without alteration or enlargement 

or any change whatever; and 

 

NOTICE: Signature(s) must be guaranteed by an eligible guarantor institution participating in 

a Securities Transfer Association recognized signature guarantee program. 

 

Section 8.  ADDITIONAL DEFINITIONS.  That as used in this Resolution the following 

terms shall have the meanings set forth below, unless the text hereof specifically indicates 

otherwise: 

 

“Additional Parity Obligations” shall mean the additional parity revenue bonds permitted 

to be authorized in the future by this Resolution and by the Taxable Series 2022A Resolution. 

 

“Board” shall mean the Board of Directors of the Issuer, being the governing body of the 

Issuer, and it is further resolved that the declarations and covenants of the Issuer contained in this 

Resolution are made by, and for and on behalf of the Board and the Issuer, and are binding upon 

the Board and the Issuer for all purposes. 

 

“Contract” or “Contracts” shall mean each Water Distribution and Supply Contract entered 

into by the Issuer and each of the Member Entities. 

 

“Gross Revenues” shall mean all payments and amounts received by the Issuer pursuant to 

Section 5.02 of the Contract, and all investments, interest, and income from any Fund created 

pursuant to this Resolution. 

 

“Fund” shall mean any fund created by this Resolution. 

229



 

 

“Issuer” shall mean Riverbend Water Resources District. 

 

“Issuance Date” shall mean the date of delivery of the Bonds to the initial purchaser thereof. 

 

“Outstanding” means, when used with respect to Parity Obligations, as of the date of 

determination, all Parity Obligations theretofore delivered under this Resolution and any resolution 

of the Issuer authorizing other Parity Obligations or Additional Parity Obligations, except: 

 

(1)  Parity Obligations theretofore cancelled and delivered to the Issuer or delivered 

to the Paying Agent/Registrar for cancellation; 

 

(2)  Parity Obligations deemed paid pursuant to the provisions of Section 20 of this 

Resolution or any comparable section of any resolution authorizing other Parity 

Obligations; 

 

(3)  Parity Obligations upon transfer of or in exchange for and in lieu of which other 

Parity Obligations have been authenticated and delivered pursuant to this Resolution and 

any resolution authorizing other Parity Obligations; and 

 

(4)  Parity Obligations under which the obligations of the Issuer have been released, 

discharged or extinguished in accordance with the terms thereof. 

 

“Parity Obligations” shall mean, collectively, the Series 2020 Bonds, the Bonds, the 

Taxable Series 2022A Bonds, and any Additional Parity Obligations hereafter issued by the Issuer 

or obligations issued to refund any of the foregoing (as determined within the sole discretion of 

the Issuer’s Board of Directors in accordance with applicable law) if issued in a manner that 

provides that the refunding bonds are payable from and equally and ratably secured by a first lien 

on and pledge of the Pledged Revenues. 

 

“Pledged Revenues” shall mean: (a)  the payments to be made to the Issuer by the Member 

Entities pursuant to Section 3(a)(1) of the Contracts and (b) any additional revenues, income, 

receipts, or other resources, including, without limitation, any grants, donations, or income 

received or to be received from the United States Government, or any other public or private 

source, whether pursuant to an agreement or otherwise, which in the future may, at the option of 

the Issuer, be pledged to the payment of the Parity Obligations. 

 

“Project” shall mean the Planned Improvements as defined in the Contract, being the 

regional water system described in the Riverbend Regional Water Master Plan, dated July 25, 

2018, including without limitation a new surface water treatment plant with an initial treatment 

capacity of 25 million gallons per day, a new raw water intake at Wright Patman Lake, water 

transmission lines, storage facilities, pumps, and related infrastructure for the distribution and sale 

of treated water, raw water, and reuse water. 

 

“Series 2020 Bonds” shall have the meaning assigned thereto in the preambles hereof. 

 

“Series 2020 Bond Resolutions” shall have the meaning assigned thereto in the preambles 

hereof. 

230



 

 

“Series 2022B Bonds” or “Bonds” shall mean, collectively the Initial Bond as described 

and defined in Section 1 of this Resolution, and all substitute bonds exchanged therefor as well as 

all other substitute and replacement bonds issued pursuant to this Resolution. 

 

“Series 2022B Resolution” or “Resolution” shall mean this resolution authorizing the 

Bonds. 

 

“Taxable Series 2022A Bonds” shall mean the Issuer’s Contract Revenue Bonds (Regional 

Water System Project), Taxable Series 2022A being issued contemporaneously with the Bonds. 

 

“Taxable Series 2022A Resolution” shall mean the resolution adopted by the Issuer on the 

date hereof authorizing the issuance of the Taxable Series 2022A Bonds. 

 

“TWDB” shall mean the Texas Water Development Board. 

 

“year” shall mean the 12 month period beginning each September 1, or such other 12 month 

period hereafter established by the Issuer as a fiscal year for the purposes of this Resolution. 

 

Section 9.  PLEDGE.  (a)  The Bonds, and the interest thereon, are and shall be secured by 

and payable from a first lien on and pledge of the Pledged Revenues, and the Pledged Revenues 

are further pledged to the establishment and maintenance of the Interest and Redemption Fund as 

provided in this Resolution.  It is specifically recognized that the Member Cities are required to 

make payments, from the gross revenues of their respective waterworks and sewer systems, to the 

Issuer pursuant to the Contracts sufficient to enable the Issuer to make all deposits and payments 

provided for herein, and that the Bonds, and the interest thereon, are and shall be payable from and 

secured by a first lien on and pledge of all of the Pledged Revenues and the Pledged Revenues are 

further pledged irrevocably to the establishment and maintenance of the Funds hereinafter 

described. 

 

(b) The Bonds and the interest thereon constitute and shall be special obligations of the 

Issuer payable solely from the Pledged Revenues, and the owner or owners thereof shall never 

have the right to demand payment thereof out of funds raised or to be raised from taxation.  The 

Issuer has no taxing power. 

 

Section 10.  REVENUE FUND.  The Issuer previously created and established pursuant to 

the Series 2020 Bond Resolutions, and there shall be maintained at an official depository of the 

Issuer (which must be a member of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation) a separate fund to 

be entitled the “Riverbend Water Resources District Contract Revenue Bonds (Regional Water 

System Project) Revenue Fund” (hereafter called the “Revenue Fund”).  All Pledged Revenues 

shall be credited to the Revenue Fund immediately upon receipt and shall be deposited from the 

Revenue Fund in the manner and amounts hereinafter provided. 

 

Section 11.  INTEREST AND REDEMPTION FUND.  For the sole purpose of paying the 

principal of and interest on all outstanding Bonds and any Additional Parity Obligations, as the 

same come due, the Issuer previously created and established pursuant to the Series 2020 Bond 

Resolutions and there shall be maintained with the Paying Agent/Registrar, a separate fund to be 

entitled the “Riverbend Water Resources District Contract Revenue Bonds (Regional Water 

231



 

System Project) Interest and Redemption Fund” (hereinafter called the “Interest and Redemption 

Fund”).  The Pledged Revenues shall be deposited into the Interest and Redemption Fund from the 

Revenue Fund when and as required by this Resolution. 

 

Section 12. [RESERVED]. 

 

Section 13.  INVESTMENTS.  Money in every Fund required to be maintained by this 

Resolution may, at the option of the Issuer, be invested as provided in the Public Funds Investment 

Act, Chapter 2256, Texas Government Code, for the investment of funds of the entities described 

therein; provided that all such deposits and investments shall be made in such manner that the 

money required to be expended from any Fund will be available at the proper time or times when 

expected to be needed.  Interest and income derived from such deposits and investments shall be 

credited to the Fund from which the deposit or investment was made and shall be used only for the 

purpose or purposes for which such Fund is required or permitted to be used.  Such investments 

shall be sold promptly when necessary to prevent any default in connection with the Bonds. 

 

Section 14.  FUNDS SECURED.  All Funds required to be maintained by this Resolution 

shall be secured in the manner and to the fullest extent by law, including particularly, the Public 

Funds Collateral Act, Chapter 2257, Texas Government Code, and such Funds shall be used only 

for the purposes and in the manner permitted or required by this Resolution. 

 

Section 15.  DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS.  (a)  Immediately after the delivery of 

the Bonds the Issuer shall deposit to the credit of the Interest and Redemption Fund, from the 

proceeds received from the sale and delivery of the Bonds, all accrued interest, to be used to pay 

part of the interest coming due on the Bonds. 

 

(b) The Issuer shall transfer from the Pledged Revenues credited to the Revenue Fund 

and deposit to the credit of the Interest and Redemption Fund the amounts, at the times, as follows: 

 

(1) on or before the fifth day prior to each interest payment date for the Bonds, 

such amounts as will be sufficient, together with other amounts, if any, then on hand in the 

Interest and Redemption Fund and available for such purpose, to pay the interest scheduled 

to accrue and come due on the Bonds and any Additional Parity Obligations on such next 

succeeding interest payment date; 

 

(2) on or before the fifth day prior to each principal payment date for the Bonds, 

such amounts as will be sufficient, together with other amounts, if any, then on hand in the 

Interest and Redemption Fund and available for such purpose, to pay the principal 

scheduled to mature and come due, on the Bonds and any Additional Parity Obligations on 

such next succeeding principal payment date; 

 

(3) on or before the fifth day prior to any optional redemption date set by the 

Issuer for any Bonds, such amount as will be sufficient to pay the principal of, premium, if 

any, and interest on the Bonds scheduled to be redeemed on such optional redemption date; 

and 

 

(4) any amounts required to be deposited therein pursuant to Sections 30 and 

31 of this Resolution 

232



 

 

Section 16.  DEFICIENCIES.  If on any occasion there shall not be sufficient Pledged 

Revenues to make the required deposits into the Interest and Redemption Fund, then such 

deficiency shall be made up as soon as possible from the next available Pledged Revenues, or from 

any other sources available for such purpose. 

 

Section 17.  EXCESS PLEDGED REVENUES.  Subject to making the required deposits 

to the credit of the Interest and Redemption Fund, when and as required by this Resolution, or any 

Resolution authorizing the issuance of Additional Parity Obligations, the excess Pledged Revenues 

may be used by the Issuer for any other lawful purpose. 

 

Section 18.  CONSTRUCTION FUND.  There shall be established a separate fund to be 

known as the “Series 2022B Bond Construction Fund” (the “Construction Fund”) with the Issuer’s 

depository bank and upon the delivery of the Bonds, and subject to making the deposits required 

by Sections 12 and 15(a) hereof, the remaining proceeds of the Bonds shall be deposited into the 

Construction Fund.  Subject to any escrow or trust and agency fund requirements imposed by the 

TWDB pursuant to Section 31 hereof, money in the Construction Fund shall be subject to 

disbursements by the Issuer for payment of all costs incurred in carrying out the purpose for which 

the Bonds are issued. 

 

Section 19.  PAYMENT OF BONDS.  On or before the fourteenth calendar day of each 

April and of each October hereafter while any of the Bonds or Additional Parity Obligations are 

outstanding and unpaid, the Issuer shall make available to the paying agents therefor, out of the 

Interest and Redemption Fund, if necessary, money sufficient to pay such interest on and such 

principal of the Bonds and Additional Parity Obligations as will accrue or mature on the April 15 

or October 15 immediately following. 

 

Section 20.  FINAL DEPOSITS.  (a) At such times as the aggregate amount of money and 

investments in the Interest and Redemption Fund are at least equal in market value to (1) the 

aggregate principal amount of all unpaid (unmatured and matured) outstanding Bonds and 

Additional Parity Obligations, plus (2) the aggregate amount of all unpaid interest, including all 

unpaid (unmatured and matured) outstanding interest coupons, appertaining to such Bonds and 

Additional Parity Obligations, no further deposits need be made into the Interest and Redemption 

Fund.  In determining the amount of such Bonds and Additional Parity Obligations, and unpaid 

interest appertaining thereto, outstanding at any time, there shall be subtracted and excluded the 

amount of any such Bonds and Additional Parity Obligations, and unpaid interest appertaining 

thereto, which shall have been duly called for redemption and for which funds shall have been 

deposited with the paying agents therefor sufficient for such redemption. 

 

(b) Any money deposited with the Paying Agent/Registrar in trust for the payment of 

the principal of, redemption premium, if any, or interest on any Bond and remaining unclaimed 

for four years after such principal of, redemption premium, if any, or interest on such Bond has 

become due and payable shall, subject to the unclaimed property laws of the State of Texas, be 

paid to the Issuer; provided, however, that before the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be required to 

make any such repayment, the Paying Agent/Registrar may at the expense of the Issuer cause to 

be published at least once, in a financial newspaper, journal, or publication of general circulation 

in The City of New York, New York, or in the State of Texas, a notice that such money remains 

unclaimed and that, after a date specified therein, which shall not be less than 30 days from the 

233



 

date of such publication, any unclaimed balance of such money then remaining will be repaid to 

the Issuer.  After the payment of such unclaimed moneys to the Issuer, the owner of such Bond 

shall thereafter look only to the Issuer for the payment thereof, and all liability of the Paying 

Agent/Registrar with respect to such money shall thereupon cease. 

 

Section 21.  ADDITIONAL PARITY OBLIGATIONS.  (a)  The Issuer shall have the right 

and power at any time and from time to time, and in one or more Series or issues, to authorize, 

issue, and deliver additional parity revenue bonds or notes (herein called “Additional Parity 

Obligations”), in any amounts, for any lawful purpose of or relating to the Project and the Planned 

Improvements (as such term is defined in the Contracts), as permitted by the Contracts, including 

the refunding of any Parity Obligation.  Such Additional Parity Obligations, if and when 

authorized, issued, and delivered in accordance with this Resolution, shall be secured by and made 

payable equally and ratably on a parity with the Bonds and the Taxable Series 2022A Bonds, and 

all other Outstanding Parity Obligations, from a first lien on and pledge of the Pledged Revenues; 

provided, however, that for so long as the TWDB is the holder of Outstanding Parity Obligations, 

such Pledged Revenues may not be pledged to the payment of any Additional Parity Obligations 

secured by a pledge of the same Pledge Revenues unless the Issuer demonstrates to the TWDB 

Executive Administrator=s satisfaction that the Pledged Revenues will be sufficient for the 

repayment of all then Outstanding Parity Obligations and the proposed Additional Parity 

Obligations. 

 

(b) The Interest and Redemption Fund established by this Resolution shall secure and 

be used to pay all Additional Parity Obligations as well as the Bonds and the Taxable Series 2022A 

Bonds.  However, each Resolution under which Additional Parity Obligations are issued shall 

provide and require that, in addition to the amounts required by the provisions of this Resolution 

and the provisions of any other Resolution or Resolutions authorizing Additional Parity 

Obligations to be deposited to the credit of the Interest and Redemption Fund, the Issuer shall 

deposit to the credit of the Interest and Redemption Fund at least such amounts as are required for 

the payment of all principal of and interest on said Additional Parity Obligations then being issued, 

as the same come due. 

 

(c) The principal of all Additional Parity Obligations must be scheduled to be paid or 

mature on October 15 of the years in which such principal is scheduled to be paid or mature; and 

all interest thereon must be payable on April 15 and October 15. 

 

(d) The Issuer further reserves the right to issue bonds, notes, or other obligations of 

inferior liens and bonds, notes, or other obligations payable from sources other than Pledged 

Revenues. 

 

Section 22.  FURTHER REQUIREMENTS FOR ADDITIONAL PARITY 

OBLIGATIONS.  Additional Parity Obligations shall be issued only in accordance with this 

Resolution, but notwithstanding any provisions of this Resolution to the contrary, without the 

consent of owners of at least 51% in aggregate principal amount of Bonds outstanding, no 

installment or series of Additional Parity Obligations shall be issued unless: 

 

(a) a certificate is executed by the President or the chief administrative officer 

of the Issuer to the effect that no default exists in connection with any of the covenants or 

requirements of the Resolution or resolutions authorizing the issuance of all then 

234



 

outstanding Parity Obligations and that the Interest and Redemption Fund contains the 

amount then required to be on deposit therein; 

 

(b) an opinion of Bond Counsel is rendered to the effect that (i) such Additional 

Parity Obligations are valid and binding obligations of the Issuer and enforceable in 

accordance with their terms subject to governmental immunity, bankruptcy, insolvency, 

reorganization, moratorium and other laws affecting creditors’ rights or remedies generally 

and to the extent that certain equitable remedies, including specific performance may not 

be available; (ii) such Additional Parity Obligations have been duly and validly authorized 

and issued in accordance with law; and 

 

(c) the Resolution authorizing the issuance of such Additional Parity 

Obligations shall provide for the payment of principal and interest on such Additional 

Parity Obligations. 

 

Section 23.  GENERAL COVENANTS.  The Issuer further covenants and agrees that: 

 

(a) PERFORMANCE.  It will faithfully perform at all times any and all covenants, 

undertakings, stipulations, and provisions contained in this Resolution and each resolution 

authorizing the issuance of Additional Parity Obligations, and in each and every Bond and 

Outstanding Parity Obligation; that it will promptly pay or cause to be paid the principal of and 

interest on every Bond and Outstanding Parity Obligation, on the dates and in the places and 

manner prescribed in such resolutions and Bonds or Outstanding Parity Obligations; and that it 

will, at the times and in the manner prescribed, deposit or cause to be deposited the amounts 

required to be deposited into the Interest and Redemption Fund; and any holder of the Bonds or 

Outstanding Parity Obligations may require the Issuer, its Board, and its officials and employees, 

to carry out, respect, or enforce the covenants and obligations of this Resolution or any resolution 

authorizing the issuance of other Parity Obligations, by all legal and equitable means, including 

specifically, but without limitation, the use and filing of mandamus proceedings, in any court of 

competent jurisdiction, against the Issuer, its Board, and its officials and employees. 

 

(b) ISSUER’S LEGAL AUTHORITY.  The Issuer is a duly created and existing 

conservation and reclamation district of the State of Texas pursuant to Article 16, Section 59 of 

the Texas Constitution and the Issuer Act, and is duly authorized under the laws of the State of 

Texas to create and issue the Bonds; that all action on its part for the creation and issuance of the 

Bonds has been duly and effectively taken, and that the Bonds in the hands of the holders and 

owners thereof are and will be valid and enforceable special obligations of the Issuer in accordance 

with their terms. 

 

(c) OPERATION OF PROJECT.  While the Bonds or any Parity Obligations are 

outstanding and unpaid it will cause the Project to be continuously and efficiently operated and 

maintained in good condition, repair, and working order in accordance with the Contracts. 

 

(d) FURTHER ENCUMBRANCE.  While the Bonds or any Parity Obligations are 

outstanding and unpaid, the Issuer shall not additionally encumber the Pledged Revenues in any 

manner, except as permitted in this Resolution in connection with Additional Parity Obligations, 

unless said encumbrance is made junior and subordinate in all respects to the liens, pledges, 

covenants, and agreements of this Resolution and any resolution authorizing the issuance of 

235



 

Outstanding Parity Obligations; but the right of the Issuer and the Board to issue revenue bonds 

payable from a subordinate lien on the Pledged Revenues is specifically recognized and retained. 

 

(e) RECORDS.  Proper books of record and account will be kept in which full, true, 

and correct entries will be made of all dealings, activities, and transactions relating to the Project, 

the Pledged Revenues, and all Funds described in this Resolution; and all books, documents, and 

vouchers relating thereto shall at all reasonable times be made available for inspection upon request 

of any bondholder. 

 

(f) AUDITS.  The Issuer covenants that within 120 days after the close of each Fiscal 

Year, it shall have had made, and will file with the TWDB, so long as its owns any Bonds, and the 

rating agencies which have issued a rating on the Bonds, in such quantity as each may require, an 

audited financial statement for itself prepared in accordance with the requirements of Section 

49.192, Texas Water Code, as amended. 

 

Copies of such audit shall be filed in the office of the Issuer and shall be open for inspection 

by any interested person during normal office hours.  The Issuer shall furnish a copy of such audit 

reports any owner of Bonds upon request. 

 

(g) GOVERNMENTAL AGENCIES.  It will comply with all of the terms and 

conditions of any and all agreements applicable to the Project and the Bonds or Outstanding Parity 

Obligations entered into between the Issuer and any governmental agency, and the Issuer will take 

all action necessary to enforce said terms and conditions; and the Issuer will obtain and keep in 

full force and effect all franchises, permits, and other requirements necessary with respect to the 

acquisition, construction, operation, and maintenance of the Project. 

 

(h) CONTRACTS WITH MEMBER ENTITIES.  It will comply with the terms and 

conditions of the Contracts and will cause the Member Entities to comply with all of its obligations 

thereunder, particularly the obligation to fix and collect rates for services sufficient to pay the 

Bonds and any other Outstanding Parity Obligations, by all lawful means. 

 

(i) INSPECTION.  Any registered owner of any Bonds shall have the right at all 

reasonable times to inspect all financial records, accounts, audits, and data of the Issuer relating to 

the Project.  In addition, so long as the TWDB or other state agency holds any of the Bonds, the 

Issuer shall give any duly authorized agent of such agency access to and right to copy any records, 

reports and files of the Issuer pertaining to the Project, and shall prepare and furnish to such agency 

such reports on the physical condition and finances of the Project as such agency shall request. 

 

(j) BUDGET.  It will prepare, adopt, and place into effect an annual budget (the 

“Annual Budget”) for operation and maintenance of the Planned Improvements (as defined in the 

Contracts) for each fiscal year, including in each Annual Budget such items as are customarily and 

reasonably contained in a regional water system budget under generally accepted accounting 

procedures.  The Issuer shall, at least thirty days subsequent to adopting and placing into effect 

each Annual Budget, furnish, without cost, a copy of same to the TWDB, so long as it owns any 

Bonds, and to any owner of 25% or more in aggregate principal amount of all then Outstanding 

Parity Obligations who may so request. 

 

236



 

(k) PERMITS.  It will comply with all of the terms and conditions of any and all 

franchises, permits, and authorizations applicable to or necessary with respect to the Project and 

which have been obtained from any governmental agency; and the Issuer has or will obtain and 

keep in full force and effect all franchises, permits, authorizations, and other requirements 

applicable to or necessary with respect to the acquisition, construction, equipment, operation, and 

maintenance of the Project. 

 

Section 24.  AMENDMENT OF RESOLUTION.  (a)  The holders or owners of Parity 

Obligations aggregating 51% in principal amount of the aggregate principal amount of all then 

Outstanding Parity Obligations shall have the right from time to time to approve any amendment 

to this Resolution or any other resolution authorizing the issuance of Parity Obligations, which 

may be deemed necessary or desirable by the Issuer, provided, however, that nothing herein 

contained shall permit or be construed to permit the amendment of the terms and conditions in said 

resolutions or in the Parity Obligations so as to: 

 

(1) Make any change in the maturity of the Outstanding Parity Obligations; 

 

(2) Reduce the rate of interest borne by any of the Outstanding Parity Obligations; 

 

(3) Reduce the amount of the principal payable on the Outstanding Bonds or Additional 

Parity Obligations; 

 

(4) Modify the terms of payment of principal of or interest on the Outstanding Parity 

Obligations, or impose any conditions with respect to such payment; 

 

(5) Affect the rights of the holders of less than all of the Parity Obligations then 

Outstanding; 

 

(6) Change the minimum percentage of the principal amount of Parity Obligations 

necessary for consent to such amendment. 

 

(b) If at any time the Issuer shall desire to amend a resolution under this Section, the 

Issuer shall cause notice of the proposed amendment to be published in a financial newspaper or 

journal published in the City of Texarkana, Texas, or in the City of Austin, Texas, once during 

each calendar week for at least two successive calendar weeks.  Such notice shall briefly set forth 

the nature of the proposed amendment and shall state that a copy thereof is on file at the principal 

office of each Paying Agent for each Series of Parity Obligations for inspection by all holders of 

Parity Obligations.  Such publication is not required, however, if notice in writing is given to each 

holder of Parity Obligations. 

 

(c) Whenever at any time not less than thirty days, and within one year, from the date 

of the first publication of notice or other service of written notice the Issuer shall receive an 

instrument or instruments executed by the holders or owners of at least 51% in aggregate principal 

amount of all Parity Obligations then outstanding, which instrument or instruments shall refer to 

the proposed amendment described in said notice and which specifically consent to and approve 

such amendment in substantially the form of the copy thereof on file as aforesaid, the Issuer may 

adopt the amendatory resolution in substantially the same form. 

 

237



 

(d) Upon the adoption of any amendatory resolution pursuant to the provisions of this 

Section, the resolution being amended shall be deemed to be amended in accordance with the 

amendatory resolution, and the respective rights, duties, and obligations of the Issuer and all the 

holders or owners of then Outstanding Parity Obligations and all future Additional Parity 

Obligations shall thereafter be determined, exercised, and enforced hereunder, subject in all 

respects to such amendment. 

 

(e) Any consent given by the holder or owner of any Parity Obligation pursuant to the 

provisions of this Section shall be irrevocable for a period of six months from the date of the first 

publication of the notice provided for in this Section, and shall be conclusive and binding upon all 

future holders or owners of the same Parity Obligation during such period.  Such consent may be 

revoked at any time after six months from the date of the first publication of such notice by the 

holder or owner who gave such consent, or by a successor in title, by filing notice thereof with 

each Paying Agent for each Series of Parity Obligations and the Issuer, but such revocation shall 

not be effective if the holders of 51% in aggregate principal amount of the then Outstanding Parity 

Obligations as in this Section defined have, prior to the attempted revocation, consented to and 

approved the amendment. 

 

(f) The ownership of all registered Parity Obligations shall be ascertained by the 

registration books pertaining thereto kept by the Paying Agent/Registrar.  The Issuer may 

conclusively assume that such holding or ownership continues until written notice to the contrary 

is served upon the Paying Agent/Registrar. 

 

Section 25.  DEFEASANCE OF BONDS.  (a) Any Bond and the interest thereon shall be 

deemed to be paid, retired, and no longer outstanding (a “Defeased Bond”) within the meaning of 

this Resolution, except to the extent provided in subsection (d) of this Section 25, when payment 

of the principal of such Bond, plus interest thereon to the due date (whether such due date be by 

reason of maturity, upon redemption, or otherwise) either (i) shall have been made or caused to be 

made in accordance with the terms thereof (including the giving of any required notice of 

redemption), or (ii) shall have been provided for on or before such due date by irrevocably 

depositing with or making available to the Paying Agent/Registrar for such payment (1) lawful 

money of the United States of America sufficient to make such payment or (2) Defeasance 

Securities which mature as to principal and interest in such amounts and at such times as will 

insure the availability, without reinvestment, of sufficient money to provide for such payment, and 

when proper arrangements have been made by the Issuer with the Paying Agent/Registrar for the 

payment of its services until all Defeased Bonds shall have become due and payable.  At such time 

as a Bond shall be deemed to be a Defeased Bond hereunder, as aforesaid, such Bond and the 

interest thereon shall no longer be secured by, payable from, or entitled to the benefits of the 

Pledged Revenues pledged as provided in this Resolution, and such principal and interest shall be 

payable solely from such money or Defeasance Securities. 

 

(b) Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection (a), the Issuer expressly reserves the 

right, pursuant to Section 1207.033(c), Texas Government Code, to later call a Defeased Bond for 

redemption in accordance with the provisions of this Resolution. 

 

(c) Any moneys so deposited with the Paying Agent/Registrar may at the written 

direction of the Issuer also be invested in Defeasance Securities, maturing in the amounts and times 

as hereinbefore set forth, and all income from such Defeasance Securities received by the Paying 

238



 

Agent/Registrar which is not required for the payment of the Bonds and interest thereon with 

respect to which such money has been so deposited, shall be turned over to the Issuer, or deposited 

as directed in writing by the Issuer. 

 

(d) The term “Defeasance Securities” as used in this Section, means any securities and 

obligations now or hereafter authorized by State of Texas law that are eligible to refund, retire or 

otherwise discharge obligations such as the Bonds. 

 

(e) Until all Defeased Bonds shall have become due and payable, the Paying 

Agent/Registrar shall perform the services of Paying Agent/Registrar for such Defeased Bonds the 

same as if they had not been defeased, and the Issuer shall make proper arrangements to provide 

and pay for such services as required by this Resolution. 

 

(f) In the event that the Issuer elects to defease less than all of the principal amount of 

Bonds of a maturity, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall select such amount of Bonds by such random 

method as it deems fair and appropriate. 

 

(g) So long as the TWDB is the registered owner of any of the Bonds, the Issuer shall 

provide written notice to the TWDB of a defeasance of the Bonds pursuant to subsection (a) of 

this Section. 

 

Section 26.  DAMAGED, MUTILATED, LOST, STOLEN, OR DESTROYED BONDS.  

(a)  Replacement Bonds.  In the event any outstanding Bonds or Bond authorized by this 

Resolution is damaged, mutilated, lost, stolen, or destroyed, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall cause 

to be printed, executed, and delivered, a new bond of the same principal amount, maturity, and 

interest rate, as the damaged, mutilated, lost, stolen, or destroyed Bond, in replacement for such 

Bond in the manner hereinafter provided. 

 

(b) Application for Replacement Bonds.  Application for replacement of damaged, 

mutilated, lost, stolen, or destroyed Bonds shall be made by the registered owner thereof to the 

Paying Agent/Registrar.  In every case of loss, theft, or destruction of a Bond, the registered owner 

applying for a replacement bond shall furnish to the Issuer and to the Paying Agent/Registrar such 

security or indemnity as may be required by them to save each of them harmless from any loss or 

damage with respect thereto.  Also, in every case of loss, theft, or destruction of a Bond, the 

registered owner shall furnish to the Issuer and to the Paying Agent/Registrar evidence to their 

satisfaction of the loss, theft, or destruction of such Bond, as the case may be.  In every case of 

damage or mutilation of a Bond, the registered owner shall surrender to the Paying Agent/Registrar 

for cancellation the Bond so damaged or mutilated. 

 

(c) No Default Occurred.  Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section, in 

the event any such Bond shall have matured, and no default has occurred which is then continuing 

in the payment of the principal of, redemption premium, if any, or interest on the Bond, the Issuer 

may authorize the payment of the same (without surrender thereof except in the case of a damaged 

or mutilated Bond) instead of issuing a replacement Bond, provided security or indemnity is 

furnished as above provided in this Section. 

 

(d) Charge for Issuing Replacement Bonds.  Prior to the issuance of any replacement 

bond, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall charge the registered owner of such Bond with all legal, 

239



 

printing, and other expenses in connection therewith.  Every replacement bond issued pursuant to 

the provisions of this Section by virtue of the fact that any Bond is lost, stolen, or destroyed shall 

constitute a contractual obligation of the Issuer whether or not the lost, stolen, or destroyed Bond 

shall be found at any time, or be enforceable by anyone, and shall be entitled to all the benefits of 

this Resolution equally and proportionately with any and all other Bonds duly issued under this 

Resolution. 

 

(e) Authority for Issuing Replacement Bonds.  In accordance with Section 1201.067, 

Texas Government Code, this Section of this Resolution shall constitute authority for the issuance 

of any such replacement bond without necessity of further action by the governing body of the 

Issuer or any other body or person, and the duty of the replacement of such bonds is hereby 

authorized and imposed upon the Paying Agent/Registrar, and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall 

authenticate and deliver such Bonds in the form and manner and with the effect, as provided in 

Section 6(d) of this Resolution for Bonds issued in conversion and exchange for other Bonds. 

 

Section 27.  COVENANTS REGARDING TAX-EXEMPTION.  (a)  Covenants.  The 

Issuer covenants to refrain from any action which would adversely affect, or to take such action to 

assure, the treatment of the Bonds as obligations described in section 103 of the Internal Revenue 

Code of 1986 (the “Code”), the interest on which is not includable in the “gross income” of the 

holder for purposes of federal income taxation.  In furtherance thereof, the Issuer covenants as 

follows: 

 

(1) to take any action to assure that no more than 10 percent of the proceeds of 

the Bonds or the projects financed therewith (less amounts deposited into a reserve fund, 

if any) are used for any “private business use,” as defined in section 141(b)(6) of the Code, 

or if more than 10 percent of the proceeds or the projects financed therewith are so used, 

such amounts, whether or not received by the Issuer, with respect to such private business 

use, do not, under the terms of this Resolution or any underlying arrangement, directly or 

indirectly, secure or provide for the payment of more than 10 percent of the debt service 

on the Bonds, in contravention of section 141(b)(2) of the Code; 

 

(2) to take any action to assure that in the event that the “private business use” 

described in subsection (a) hereof exceeds five percent of the proceeds of the Bonds or the 

projects financed therewith (less amounts deposited into a reserve fund, if any) then the 

amount in excess of five percent is used for a “private business use” which is “related” and 

not “disproportionate,” within the meaning of section 141(b)(3) of the Code, to the 

governmental use; 

 

(3) to take any action to assure that no amount which is greater than the lesser 

of $5,000,000, or five percent of the proceeds of the Bonds (less amounts deposited into a 

reserve fund, if any) is, directly or indirectly, used to finance loans to persons, other than 

state or local governmental units, in contravention of section 141(c) of the Code; 

 

(4) to refrain from taking any action that would otherwise result in the Bonds 

being treated as “private activity bonds” within the meaning of section 141(b) of the Code; 

 

(5) to refrain from taking any action that would result in the Bonds being 

“federally guaranteed” within the meaning of section 149(b) of the Code; 

240



 

 

(6) to refrain from using any portion of the proceeds of the Bonds, directly or 

indirectly, to acquire or to replace funds which were used, directly or indirectly, to acquire 

investment property (as defined in section 148(b)(2) of the Code) which produces a 

materially higher yield over the term of the Bonds, other than investment property acquired 

with -- 

 

(A) proceeds of the Bonds invested for a reasonable temporary period of 

3 years or less, or, in the case of refunding bond, for a period of 90 days or less, 

until such proceeds are needed for the purpose for which the Bonds or refunding 

bonds are issued, 

 

(B) amounts invested in a bona fide debt service fund, within the meaning 

of section 1.148-1(b) of the rules and regulations of the United State Department of 

the Treasury (the “Treasury Regulations”), and 

 

(C) amounts deposited in any reasonably required reserve or replacement 

fund to the extent such amounts do not exceed 10 percent of the stated principal 

amount (or, in the case of a discount, the issue price) of the Bonds; 

 

(7) to otherwise restrict the use of the proceeds of the Bonds or amounts treated 

as proceeds of the Bonds, as may be necessary, so that the Bonds do not otherwise 

contravene the requirements of section 148 of the Code (relating to arbitrage), section 

149(g) of the Code (relating to hedge bonds); 

 

(8) to refrain from using the proceeds of the Bonds or proceeds of any prior 

bonds to pay debt service on another issue more than 90 days after the date of issue of the 

Bonds in contravention of the requirements of section 149(d) of the Code (relating to 

advance refundings); and 

 

(9) to pay to the United States of America at least once during each five-year 

period (beginning on the date of delivery of the Bonds) an amount that is at least equal to 

90 percent of the “Excess Earnings,” within the meaning of section 148(f) of the Code and 

to pay to the United States of America, not later than 60 days after the Bonds have been 

paid in full, 100 percent of the amount then required to be paid as a result of Excess 

Earnings under section 148(f) of the Code; and 

 

(10) to assure that the proceeds of the Bonds will be used solely for new money 

projects. 

 

(11) to assure that the Issuer will not acquire any of the Texas Water 

Development Board’s source series bonds in an amount related to the amount of Bonds 

acquired by the Texas Water Development Board. 

 

(12) to file or cause to be filed with the Secretary of the Treasury, not later than 

the 15th day of the second calendar month after the close of the calendar quarter in which 

the Bonds are issued, an information statement concerning the Bonds, all under and in 

241



 

accordance with section 149(e) of the Code and the applicable Treasury Regulations 

promulgated thereunder. 

 

For purposes of the foregoing (a)(1) and (a)(2), the Issuer understands that the term “proceeds” 

includes “disposition proceeds” as defined in the Treasury Regulations and, in the case of 

refunding bonds, transferred proceeds (if any) and proceeds of the refunded bonds expended prior 

to the date of issuance of the Bonds.  It is the understanding of the Issuer that the covenants 

contained herein are intended to assure compliance with the Code and any regulations or rulings 

promulgated by the United States Department of the Treasury pursuant thereto.  In the event that 

regulations or rulings are hereafter promulgated which modify or expand provisions of the Code, 

as applicable to the Bonds, the Issuer will not be required to comply with any covenant contained 

herein to the extent that such failure to comply, in the opinion of nationally-recognized bond 

counsel, will not adversely affect the exemption from federal income taxation of interest on the 

Bonds under section 103 of the Code.  In the event that regulations or rulings are hereafter 

promulgated which impose additional requirements which are applicable to the Bonds, the Issuer 

agrees to comply with the additional requirements to the extent necessary, in the opinion of 

nationally-recognized bond counsel, to preserve the exemption from federal income taxation of 

interest on the Bonds under section 103 of the Code.  In furtherance of such intention, the Issuer 

hereby authorizes and directs its President or General Manager to execute any documents, 

certificates or reports required by the Code and to make such elections, on behalf of the Issuer, 

which may be permitted by the Code as are consistent with the purpose for the issuance of the 

Bonds.  The Issuer covenants to comply with the covenants contained in this section after 

defeasance of the Bonds. 

 

In order to facilitate compliance with the covenant in subsection (a)(9) above, a “Rebate 

Fund” is hereby established by the Issuer for the sole benefit of the United States of America, and 

such fund shall not be subject to the claim of any other person, including without limitation, the 

bondholders.  The Rebate Fund is established for the additional purpose of compliance with section 

148 of the Code. 

 

(b) Reimbursement.  This Resolution is intended to satisfy the official intent 

requirements set forth in section 1.150-2 of the Treasury Regulations. 

 

Section 28.  ALLOCATION OF, AND LIMITATION ON, EXPENDITURES FOR THE 

PROJECT; DISPOSITION OF THE PROJECT.  (a)  The Issuer covenants to account for the 

expenditure of Bond proceeds and investment earnings to be used for the construction or 

acquisition of the property constituting the Project financed with proceeds of the sale of the Bonds 

on its books and records by allocating proceeds to expenditures within 18 months of the later of 

the date that (1) the expenditure is made or (2) such construction or acquisition is completed.  The 

foregoing notwithstanding, the Issuer shall not expend proceeds of the Bonds or investment 

earnings thereon more than 60 days after the earlier of (1) the fifth anniversary of the delivery of 

the Bonds or (2) the date the Bonds are retired, unless the Issuer obtains an opinion of nationally-

recognized bond counsel that such expenditure will not adversely affect the tax-exempt status of 

the Bonds.  For purposes hereof, the Issuer shall not be obligated to comply with this covenant if 

it obtains an opinion that such failure to comply will not adversely affect the excludability for 

federal income tax purposes from gross income of the Bonds on the Bonds. 

 

242



 

(b) The Issuer covenants that the property constituting the Project financed with 

proceeds of the Bonds will not be sold or otherwise disposed in a transaction resulting in the receipt 

by the Issuer of cash or other compensation, unless any action taken in connection with such 

disposition will not adversely affect the tax-exempt status of the Bonds.  For purpose of the 

foregoing, the Issuer may rely on an opinion of nationally-recognized bond counsel that the action 

taken in connection with such sale or other disposition will not adversely affect the tax-exempt 

status of the Bonds.  For purposes of the foregoing, the portion of the property comprising personal 

property and disposed in the ordinary course shall not be treated as a transaction resulting in the 

receipt of cash or other compensation.  For purposes hereof, the Issuer shall not be obligated to 

comply with this covenant if it obtains an opinion that such failure to comply will not adversely 

affect the excludability for federal income tax purposes from gross income of the interest. 

 

Section 29.  CUSTODY, APPROVAL, AND REGISTRATION OF INITIAL BOND; 

BOND COUNSEL’S OPINION, CUSIP NUMBERS, INSURANCE, AND PREAMBLE.  The 

General Manager of the Issuer is hereby authorized to have control of the Initial Bond issued 

hereunder and all necessary records and proceedings pertaining to the Initial Bond pending its 

delivery and its investigation, examination, and approval by the Attorney General of the State of 

Texas, and its registration by the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas.  Upon 

registration of the Initial Bond said Comptroller of Public Accounts (or a deputy designated in 

writing to act for said Comptroller) shall manually sign the Comptroller’s Registration Certificate 

on the Initial Bond, and the seal of said Comptroller shall be impressed, or placed in facsimile, on 

the Initial Bond.  The approving legal opinion of the Issuer’s Bond Counsel and the assigned 

CUSIP numbers may, at the option of the Issuer, be printed on the Initial Bond or on any Bonds 

issued and delivered in conversion of and exchange or replacement of any Bond, but neither shall 

have any legal effect, and shall be solely for the convenience and information of the registered 

owners of the Bonds.  If insurance is obtained on any of the Bonds, the Initial Bond and all the 

Bonds shall bear an appropriate legend concerning insurance as provided by the insurer.  The 

preamble to this Resolution is hereby adopted and made a part hereof for all purposes. 

 

Section 30.  INTEREST EARNINGS ON BOND PROCEEDS.  Interest earnings derived 

from the investment of proceeds from the sale of the Initial Bond shall be used along with other 

bond proceeds for the acquisition, by purchase and construction, of the Project in accordance with 

the Contracts; provided that after completion of the Project, if any of such interest earnings remain 

on hand, such interest earnings along with any surplus bond proceeds shall be deposited in the 

Interest and Sinking Fund.  It is further provided, however, that any interest earnings on bond 

proceeds which are required to be rebated to the United States of America pursuant to this 

Resolution in order to prevent the Bonds from being arbitrage bonds shall be so rebated and not 

considered as interest earnings for the purposes of this Section. 

 

Section 31. ESCROW AGREEMENT AND ESCROW ACCOUNT.  (a)  The Escrow 

Agreement relating to the Bonds between the Issuer and the escrow agent named therein (the 

“Escrow Agent”) substantially in the form and content attached hereto as Exhibit A, specifying 

the duties and responsibilities of the Issuer and the Escrow Agent, is hereby approved and the 

President of the Board is hereby authorized and directed to execute the Escrow Agreement on 

behalf of the Issuer.  The Escrow Agent named in the Escrow Agreement is hereby appointed as 

the Escrow Agent pursuant to such Escrow Agreement. 

 

243



 

(b) On the closing date, the Issuer shall cause the proceeds from the sale of the Bonds 

to be deposited into the Escrow Account or, if agreed to by the TWDB, all or a portion of the 

proceeds of the Bonds may be deposited into the Construction Fund or as otherwise directed by 

the Issuer. 

 

(c) Except as provided in Section 38, moneys disbursed from the Escrow Account 

established pursuant to the Escrow Agreement shall be applied only for the projects for which the 

Bonds are issued. 

 

(d) The security for, and the investment of, funds on deposit in the Escrow Account 

shall be governed by the provisions of the Escrow Agreement. 

 

Section 32.  SALE OF INITIAL BOND.  The Bonds hereby sold and shall be delivered to 

the Texas Water Development Board for cash for the principal amount thereof.  In accordance with 

its Resolution No. 20-076, the Texas Water Development Board will purchase the Bonds, with an 

amount approved by the Texas Water Development Board to be deposited to the Construction 

Fund authorized by Section 18 hereof (the “Construction Fund”) upon initial delivery of the Bonds, 

and the balance of the proceeds to be deposited to the Escrow Account authorized by Section 31 

hereof until authorized for transfer to the Construction Fund by the Texas Water Development 

Board.  The officers of the Issuer are authorized to do any and all things necessary in connection 

with the issuance of the Bonds and are authorized to execute and deliver such certificates as are 

necessary or appropriate in connection with the issuance of the Bonds.  It is hereby officially found, 

determined, and declared that the terms of this sale are the most advantageous reasonably 

obtainable.  The Bonds shall initially be registered in the name of the TWDB or its designee. 

 

Section 33.  DTC REGISTRATION.  The Bonds initially shall be issued and delivered in 

such manner that no physical distribution of the Bonds will be made to the public, and the 

Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), New York, New York, initially will act as depository for the 

Bonds.  DTC has represented that it is a limited purpose trust company incorporated under the 

laws of the State of New York, a member of the Federal Reserve System, a “clearing corporation” 

within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and a “clearing agency” 

registered under Section 17A of the federal Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the 

Issuer accepts, but in no way verifies, such representations.  The Initial Bond authorized by this 

Resolution shall be delivered to and registered in the name of the TWDB.  However, it is a 

condition of delivery and sale that the TWDB, immediately after such delivery, shall cause the 

Paying Agent/Registrar, as provided for in this Resolution, to cancel said Initial Bond and deliver 

in exchange therefor a substitute Bond for each maturity of such Initial Bond, with each such 

substitute Bond to be registered in the name of CEDE & CO., the nominee of DTC, and it shall be 

the duty of the Paying Agent/Registrar to take such action.  It is expected that DTC will hold the 

Bonds on behalf of the TWDB and/or the DTC Participants, as defined and described in the 

Official Statement referred to and approved in Section 29 hereof (the “DTC Participants”).  So 

long as each Bond is registered in the name of CEDE & CO., the Paying Agent/Registrar shall 

treat and deal with DTC in all respects the same as if it were the actual and beneficial owner 

thereof.  It is expected that DTC will maintain a book entry system which will identify beneficial 

ownership of the Bonds by DTC Participants in integral amounts of $5,000, with transfers of 

ownership being effected on the records of DTC and the DTC Participants pursuant to rules and 

regulations established by them, and that the substitute Bonds initially deposited with DTC shall 

be immobilized and not be further exchanged for substitute Bonds except as hereinafter provided.  

244



 

The Issuer is not responsible or liable for any functions of DTC, will not be responsible for paying 

any fees or charges with respect to its services, will not be responsible or liable for maintaining, 

supervising, or reviewing the records of DTC or the DTC Participants, or protecting any interests 

or rights of the beneficial owners of the Bonds.  It shall be the duty of the TWDB and the DTC 

Participants to make all arrangements with DTC to establish this book-entry system, the beneficial 

ownership of the Bonds, and the method of paying the fees and charges of DTC.  The Issuer does 

not represent, nor does it in any way covenant that the initial book-entry system established with 

DTC will be maintained in the future.  The Issuer reserves the right and option at any time in the 

future, in its sole discretion, to terminate the DTC (CEDE & CO.) book-entry only registration 

requirement described above, and to permit the Bonds to be registered in the name of any owner.  

If the Issuer exercises its right and option to terminate such requirement, it shall give written notice 

of such termination to the Paying Agent/ Registrar and to DTC, and thereafter the Paying 

Agent/Registrar shall, upon presentation and proper request, register any Bond in any name as 

provided for in this Resolution.  Notwithstanding the initial establishment of the foregoing book-

entry system with DTC, if for any reason any of the originally delivered substitute Bonds is duly 

filed with the Paying Agent/Registrar with proper request for transfer and substitution, as provided 

for in this Resolution, substitute Bonds will be duly delivered as provided in this Resolution, and 

there will be no assurance or representation that any book-entry system will be maintained for such 

Bonds. 

 

Section 34.   CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING.  (a).Definitions.  As used 

in this Section, the following terms have the meanings ascribed to such terms below: 

 

 “Financial Obligation” means a (a) debt obligation; (b) derivative instrument 

entered into in connection with, or pledged as security or a source of payment for, an existing or 

planned debt obligation; or (c) guarantee of a debt obligation or any such derivative instrument; 

provided that “financial obligation” shall not include municipal securities (as defined in the 

Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) as to which a final official statement (as defined in 

the Rule) has been provided to the MSRB consistent with the Rule. 

 

 “MSRB” means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board or any successor to its 

functions under the Rule. 

 

 “Rule” means SEC Rule 15c2-12, as amended from time to time. 

 

 “SEC” means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission. 

 

 (b) Annual Reports.  The Issuer shall provide annually to the MSRB, within 

twelve months after the end of each fiscal year ending in or after 2022, financial information and 

operating data with respect to the Issuer to the extent that such information is customarily prepared 

by the Issuer and is publicly available.  Any financial statements so to be provided shall be (1) 

prepared in accordance with the accounting principles described in the notes to the financial 

statements filed with the Texas Water Development Board as part of the Issuer’s application to the 

Texas Water Development Board, or such other accounting principles as the Issuer may be 

required to employ from time to time pursuant to state law or regulation, and (2) audited, if the 

Issuer commissions an audit of such statements and the audit is completed within the period during 

which they must be provided.  If the audit of such financial statements is not complete within such 

period, then the Issuer shall provide unaudited financial information that is available to the Issuer 

245



 

by the required time and will provide audited financial statements for the applicable fiscal year to 

the MSRB, when and if the audit report on such statements become available.  Such information 

shall be transmitted electronically to the MSRB, in such format and accompanied by such 

identifying information as prescribed by the MSRB. 

 

If the Issuer changes its fiscal year, it will notify the MSRB of the change (and of the date 

of the new fiscal year end) prior to the next date by which the Issuer otherwise would be required 

to provide financial information and operating data pursuant to this Section.  The financial 

information and operating data to be provided pursuant to this Section may be set forth in full in 

one or more documents or may be included by specific reference to any document (including an 

official statement or other offering document, if it is available from the MSRB) that theretofore 

has been provided to the MSRB or filed with the SEC. 

 

(c) Notice of Certain Events.  (i) The Issuer shall file notice of any of the following 

events with respect to the Bonds with the MSRB in a timely manner and not more than 10 business 

days after occurrence of the event: 

 

(1) Principal and interest payment delinquencies; 

(2) Non-payment related defaults if material; 

(3) Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties; 

(4) Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; 

(5) Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform; 

(6) Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or 

final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-

TEB), or other material notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of 

the Bonds, or other material events affecting the tax status of the Bonds; 

(7) Modifications to rights of holders of the Bonds if material; 

(8) Bond calls, if material, and tender offers; 

(9) Defeasances; 

(10) Release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds if 

material; 

(11) Rating changes; 

(12) Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership, or similar event of the Issuer; 

(13) The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the Issuer 

or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Issuer, other than in the 

ordinary course of business, the entry into of a definitive agreement to undertake 

such an action or the termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such 

actions, other than pursuant to its terms, if material; 

(14) Appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of a trustee, 

if material; 

(15) Incurrence of a Financial Obligation of the Issuer, if material, or agreement to 

covenants, events of default, remedies, priority rights, or other similar terms of a 

Financial Obligation of the Issuer, any of which affect security holders, if material; 

and 

(16) Default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or other 

similar events under the terms of a Financial Obligation of the Issuer, any of which 

reflect financial difficulties. 

 

246



 

For these purposes, (i) any event described in the immediately preceding paragraph (12) is 

considered to occur when any of the following occur: the appointment of a receiver, fiscal agent, 

or similar officer for the Issuer in a proceeding under the United States Bankruptcy Code or in any 

other proceeding under state or federal law in which a court or governmental authority has assumed 

jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the Issuer, or if such jurisdiction has 

been assumed by leaving the existing governing body and officials or officers of the Issuer in 

possession but subject to the supervision and orders of a court or governmental authority, or the 

entry of an order confirming a plan of reorganization, arrangement, or liquidation by a court or 

governmental authority having supervision or jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or 

business of the Issuer., and (ii) the Issuer intends the words used in the immediately preceding 

paragraphs (15) and (16) and the definition of Financial Obligation in this Section to have the same 

meanings as when they are used in the Rule, as evidenced by SEC Release No. 34-83885, dated 

August 20, 2018. 

 

The Issuer shall file notice with the MSRB, in a timely manner, of any failure by the Issuer 

to provide financial information or operating data in accordance with Subsection (b) of this Section 

by the time required by such Subsection. 

 

(d)  Limitations, Disclaimers, and Amendments.  (i)  The Issuer shall be obligated to 

observe and perform the covenants specified in this Section for so long as, but only for so long as, 

the Issuer remains an “obligated person” with respect to the Bonds within the meaning of the Rule, 

except that the Issuer in any event will give the notice required by Subsection (a) hereof of any 

Bond calls and defeasance that cause the Issuer to no longer be such an “obligated person”. 

 

(ii)  The provisions of this Section are for the sole benefit of the registered owners 

and beneficial owners of the Bonds, and nothing in this Section, express or implied, shall 

give any benefit or any legal or equitable right, remedy, or claim hereunder to any other 

person.  The Issuer undertakes to provide only the financial information, operating data, 

financial statements, and notices which it has expressly agreed to provide pursuant to this 

Section and does not hereby undertake to provide any other information that may be 

relevant or material to a complete presentation of the Issuer’s financial results, condition, 

or prospects or hereby undertake to update any information provided in accordance with 

this Section or otherwise, except as expressly provided herein.  The Issuer does not make 

any representation or warranty concerning such information or its usefulness to a decision 

to invest in or sell Bonds at any future date. 

 

(iii)  UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL THE ISSUER BE LIABLE TO 

THE REGISTERED OWNER OR BENEFICIAL OWNER OF ANY BOND OR ANY 

OTHER PERSON, IN CONTRACT OR TORT, FOR DAMAGES RESULTING IN 

WHOLE OR IN PART FROM ANY BREACH BY THE ISSUER, WHETHER 

NEGLIGENT OR WITHOUT FAULT ON ITS PART, OF ANY COVENANT 

SPECIFIED IN THIS SECTION, BUT EVERY RIGHT AND REMEDY OF ANY SUCH 

PERSON, IN CONTRACT OR TORT, FOR OR ON ACCOUNT OF ANY SUCH 

BREACH SHALL BE LIMITED TO AN ACTION FOR MANDAMUS OR SPECIFIC 

PERFORMANCE. 

 

(iv)  No default by the Issuer in observing or performing its obligations under this 

Section shall comprise a breach of or default under the Ordinance for purposes of any other 

247



 

provision of this Ordinance.  Nothing in this Section is intended or shall act to disclaim, 

waive, or otherwise limit the duties of the Issuer under federal and state securities laws. 

 

(v)  The provisions of this Section may be amended by the Issuer from time to time 

to adapt to changed circumstances that arise from a change in legal requirements, a change 

in law, or a change in the identity, nature, status, or type of operations of the Issuer, but 

only if (1) the provisions of this Section, as so amended, would have permitted an 

underwriter to purchase or sell Bonds in the primary offering of the Bonds in compliance 

with the Rule, taking into account any amendments or interpretations of the Rule since 

such offering as well as such changed circumstances and (2) either (a) the registered 

owners of a majority in aggregate principal amount (or any greater amount required by any 

other provision of this Ordinance that authorizes such an amendment) of the outstanding 

Bonds consent to such amendment or (b) a person that is unaffiliated with the Issuer (such 

as nationally recognized bond counsel) determined that such amendment will not 

materially impair the interest of the registered owners and beneficial owners of the Bonds.  

If the Issuer so amends the provisions of this Section, it shall include with any amended 

financial information or operating data next provided in accordance with subsection (a) of 

this Section an explanation, in narrative form, of the reason for the amendment and of the 

impact of any change in the type of financial information or operating data so provided.  

The Issuer may also amend or repeal the provisions of this continuing disclosure agreement 

if the SEC amends or repeals the applicable provision of the Rule or a court of final 

jurisdiction enters judgment that such provisions of the Rule are invalid, but only if and to 

the extent that the provisions of this sentence would not prevent an underwriter from 

lawfully purchasing or selling Bonds in the primary offering of the Bonds. 

 

Section 35.  ATTORNEY GENERAL FEES.  The Issuer hereby authorizes and directs 

payment from legally available funds of the Issuer, of the nonrefundable examination fee of the 

Attorney General of the State of Texas required by Section 1202.004, Texas Government Code, 

as amended. 

 

Section 36.  REPEAL OF CONFLICTING RESOLUTIONS.  All resolutions and all parts 

of any resolutions which are in conflict or inconsistent with this Resolution are hereby repealed 

and shall be of no further force or effect to the extent of such conflict or inconsistency. 

 

Section 37.  SECURITY INTEREST.  Article 1208, Government Code, applies to the 

issuance of the Bonds and the pledge of the Pledged Revenues granted by the Issuer under this 

Section, and is therefore valid, effective, and perfected.  Should Texas law be amended at any time 

while the Bonds are outstanding and unpaid, the result of such amendment being that the pledge 

of the Pledged Revenues granted by the Issuer under this Section is to be subject to the filing 

requirements of Chapter 9, Business & Commerce Code, in order to preserve to the registered 

owners of the Bonds a security interest in said pledge, the Issuer agrees to take such measures as 

it determines are reasonable and necessary under Texas law to comply with the applicable 

provisions of Chapter 9, Business & Commerce Code and enable a filing of a security interest in 

said pledge to occur. 

 

Section 38.  TEXAS WATER DEVELOPMENT BOARD.  The provisions of this Section 

shall apply so long as the Bonds, or any of them, are owned by the TWDB.  The Issuer hereby 

248



 

agrees to comply with all conditions set forth in TWDB Resolution No. 20-076, which conditions 

are incorporated herein. 

 

 (a)  Annual Audit Reporting.  The Issuer shall provide the Texas Water Development Board 

with an annual report prepared in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by a 

certified public accountant or licensed public accountant, to be submitted without charge within 

120 days of the close of each fiscal year. 

 

 (b)  Covenant to Abide with Rules.  The Issuer will abide with all applicable laws of the 

State of Texas and Rules of the Texas Water Development Board relating to the loan of funds 

evidenced by the Bonds and the Project for which the Bonds are issued, sold and delivered. 

 

 (c)  Water Conservation Program.  The Issuer agrees and covenants that it will implement 

an approved water conservation program in accordance with 31 TAC § 371.71. 

 

 (d)  Records and Accounts.  The Issuer agrees and covenants that it will maintain current, 

accurate and complete records and accounts regarding the System in accordance with 31 TAC § 

371.71. 

 

 (e)  Environmental Determinations.  The Issuer agrees and covenants that it will comply 

with any special conditions of the environmental determination of the Executive Administrator in 

accordance with 31 TAC § 371.71. 

 

 (f)  Prohibition on Use of Proceeds.  The Issuer covenants and agrees that none of the 

proceeds of the Bonds will be expended on costs incurred or to be incurred relating to the sampling, 

testing, removing or disposing of potentially contaminated soils and/or media at the project site. 

 

 (g)  Indemnification.  The Issuer further agrees, to the extent permitted by law, to 

indemnify, hold harmless and protect the Texas Water Development Board from any and all claims 

or causes of action or damages to the person or property of third parties arising from the sampling, 

analysis, transport, storage, treatment, removal and off site disposition of any contaminated sewage 

sludge, contaminated sediments and/or contaminated media that may be generated by the Issuer, 

its contractors, consultants, agents, officials and employees as a result of activities relating to the 

Project. 

 

 (h)  Conveyance of Obligations.  Prior to any action by the Issuer to convey its obligations 

under the Bonds to another entity, if permitted by law, the conveyance and the assumption of such 

obligations must be approved by the Texas Water Development Board.  The Issuer shall notify the 

Executive Administrator prior to taking any actions to alter its legal status in any manner, such a 

sale-transfer-merger with another retail public utility. 

 

 (i)  Davis-Bacon Act Compliance.  All laborers and mechanics employed by contractors 

and subcontractors for the Project who are paid from proceeds of the Bonds on deposit in the 

Construction Fund shall be paid wages at rates not less than those prevailing on projects of a similar 

character in the locality of the Issuer in accordance with the federal Davis-Bacon Act and the U.S. 

Department of Labor's implementing regulations pertaining thereto. 

 

249



 

 (j)  Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act.  The Issuer shall provide the 

Texas Water Development Board with all information required by the Federal Funding 

Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006, Pub. L. 109-282. 

 

 (k)  DUNS Number and CAGE Code.  The Issuer shall obtain a Data Information 

Numbering System (DUNS) Number and shall register with the System for Award Management 

to obtain a Commercial and Government Entity (CAGE) Code and maintain current registration 

at all times during which the Bonds are outstanding. 

 

 (l)  Timely Expenditures.  All proceeds of the Bonds will be timely and expeditiously used, 

as required by applicable federal statutes and U.S. Environmental Protection Agency regulations, 

and the Issuer shall adhere to a project construction schedule acceptable to the Executive 

Administrator that facilitates timely use of funds and project completion. 

 

 (m)  As-Built Plans.  The Issuer shall provide to the Texas Water Development Board a 

full and complete set of "as-built" plans relating to the Project, promptly upon completion of the 

Project. 

 

 (n)  Final Accounting.  The Issuer shall render a final accounting of the cost of the Project 

to the Texas Water Development Board within 60 days of the completion of the Project.  If the 

total cost of the Project, as finally completed, is less than originally estimated, so that the proper 

share of the participation by the Texas Water Development Board in the Project is reduced, such 

surplus proceeds shall be used in accordance with subsection (o) below. 

 

 (o)  Surplus Proceeds.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Resolution or the Bonds 

restricting early redemption of the Bonds, the Issuer shall use any surplus proceeds from the Bonds 

that are determined to be surplus funds remaining after completion of the project and completion 

of a final accounting in a manner as approved by the Texas Water Development Board’s 

(“TWDB”) Executive Administrator (the “Executive Administrator”), including without limitation 

to redeem, on any date, the Bonds owned by the TWDB, at a price of par plus accrued interest to 

the date fixed for redemption. 

 

 (p)  Insurance.  Insurance coverage be obtained and maintained by the Issuer in an amount 

sufficient to protect the interest of the Texas Water Development Board in the Project. 

 

 (q)  Remedies.  The TWDB may exercise all remedies available to it in law or equity, and 

any provision of the Bonds or this Resolution that restricts or limits the TWDB's full exercise of 

such remedies shall be of no force and effect. 

 

 (r)  American Iron and Steel Requirements.  The Issuer will abide by all applicable 

construction contract requirements related to the use of iron and steel products in the United States, 

as required by the 2014 Federal Appropriations Act and related State Revolving Fund Policy 

Guidelines. 

 

 (s)  Covenant Regarding Taxes and System Rates.  The Issuer hereby agrees that, for so 

long as the Bonds are outstanding, to maintain and collect sufficient rates and charges to produce 

System revenues in an amount necessary to meet the debt service requirements of all Bonds and 

to maintain the funds established and required by the Bonds. 

250



 

 

 (t)  Outlay Reports.  The Issuer shall submit outlay reports with sufficient documentation 

on costs on a quarterly or monthly basis in accordance with TWDB outlay report guidelines. 

 

Section 39.  FURTHER PROCEDURES.  (a) The President and Secretary, respectively, of 

the Board of Directors of the Issuer, the General Manager, Operations Manager, and Chief 

Financial Officer of the Issuer, and all other officers, employees, and agents of the Issuer, and each 

of them, shall be and they are hereby expressly authorized, empowered, and directed from time to 

time and at any time to do and perform all such acts and things and to execute, acknowledge, and 

deliver in the name and under the corporate seal and on behalf of the Issuer all such instruments, 

whether or not herein mentioned, as may be necessary or desirable in order to carry out the terms 

and provisions of this Resolution, the Bonds, and the sale of the Bonds, including without 

limitation the Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations to DTC and federal tax documents or 

returns.  The expenses of issuing the Bonds shall be paid from the proceeds from the sale of the 

Initial Bond.  In case any officer whose signature shall appear on any Bond shall cease to be such 

officer before the delivery of such Bond, such signature shall nevertheless be valid and sufficient 

for all purposes the same as if such officer had remained in office until such delivery. 

 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank] 

 

251



 

EXHIBIT A 

 

 ESCROW AGREEMENT 

 

(Attached) 

 

252



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  
WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 26, 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM VI. J. 

Riverbend Water Resources District’s 

Future Growth Plan 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

253



P
ro

p
o

se
d

 R
W

R
D

 G
ro

w
th

 P
la

n
 –

 F
u

lly
 Im

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 b

y 
2

0
2

6
 

R
iv

er
b

en
d

 B
o

ar
d

 
o

f 
D

ir
ec

to
rs

Ex
ec

u
ti

ve
 

D
ir

ec
to

r/
C

EO

C
h

ie
f 

Fi
n

an
ci

al
 

O
ff

ic
er

A
cc

o
u

n
ti

n
g 

Sp
ec

ia
lis

t

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o

f 
O

p
er

at
io

n
s

W
at

er
 

O
p

er
at

io
n

s

W
as

te
 W

at
er

 
O

p
er

at
io

n
s

In
d

u
st

ri
al

 W
W

 
O

p
er

at
io

n
s

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o

f 
En

gi
n

ee
ri

n
g

M
ai

n
te

n
an

ce

C
o

n
su

lt
an

ts

H
R

 M
an

ag
er

P
u

rc
h

as
in

g 
M

an
ag

er

A
d

m
in

. A
ss

t.

2
0

2
2

-2
3

2
0

2
4

-2
5

2
0

2
4

-2
5

 

2
0

2
4

-2
5

P
o

te
n

ti
al

 N
e

e
d

 b
y 

Ye
ar

254




